IL

<

VIIL

18] SCHOOI DISTRICT

AGENDA FOR THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING
Monday, June 27, 2022 - District Office (2323 E. Farwell Rd., Mead, WA) - 6 pm

Webinar Link: mead354-org.zoom.us/j/81547325752
Or Call 669-900-6833 Webinar ID 815 4732 5752

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of June 13, 2022

RETIREE RECOGNITION

REMARKS FOR THE GOOD OF THE SCHOOLS - Public Comment

CONTINUING BUSINESS
A. 3" Reading Policy & Procedure 3241 Revision
Student Discipline
(Presented by: Josh Westermann, Director Student & Family Services)
B. 2" Reading Policy & Procedure 2161 Revision
Special Education and Related Services For Eligible Students
(Presented by: Jay Tyus, Special Education Director)
C. 2" Reading Policy 3246 Review & Procedure 3246 Revision
Restraint, Isolation and Other Uses of Reasonable Force
(Presented by: Jay Tyus, Special Education Director)

NEW BUSINESS

A. Consent Agenda
Vouchers, Personnel Actions, Extra-Curricular and Supplemental Contracts

B. Establish Calendar for 2022-2023 (August — June) Board Meeting Dates
C. Student Travel Proposal

Mt. Spokane High School Performing Arts Department

(Presented by: Darren Nelson, Director Secondary Education)
D. 2022/2023 Athletic Participation Fees

(Presented by: Darren Nelson, Director Secondary Education)
E. Contract/Bargaining Agreement

1135 MT (Bus Drivers)

(Presented by: Keri Hutchins, Director Human Resources)
F. Award Cap & Gown Contract

(Presented by: Adina Grimsley, Director Business Services)
G. Award School Pictures Contract

(Presented by: Adina Grimsley, Director Business Services)
H. Award School Supplies Contract

(Presented by: Adina Grimsley, Director Business Services)

VIIL. REPORTS

IX.

A. Superintendent’s Report
B. Financial Report for the month of May 2022

ADJOURN

(Action)
(Action)

(Action) 1

(Non-Action) 2

(Non-Action) 3

(Action) 4
(Action) 5

(Action) 6

(Action) 7

(Action) 8
(Action) 9
(Action) 10

(Action) 11

12



Public Participation — Policy 1430
The Board recognizes the value of public comment on educational issues and the importance of involving members of the public in its meetings, Therefore, the

opportunity for individuals (staff, guests and/or district residents) to express an opinion is provided at the beginning of School Board meetings. Per Policy 1430 public
comment should relate to agenda items. Those wishing to speak must sign-in with: name, address, phone number and topic being addressed. Sign-in must be done prior
to the beginning of the meeting before the gavel has dropped. If a group wishes to speak, it is recommended they choose a spokesperson to speak on behalf of the
group. The Board President will recognize each speaker and invite him/her to step up to the podium. Comment time is limited to three (3) minutes. Individuals making
public comments are asked to refrain from any inappropriate behavior, including but not limited to: clapping, shouting and/or sarcastic, vulgar or disrespectful
language or actions. The School Board will not respond to public comments during the meeting. The board may express regret regarding the speaker’s concerns and
thank them for their contribution. This allows the Board time to confer with district staff and gain valuable knowledge before determining whether or not to more fully

respond to a speaker’s comments.

Individuals with disabilities who may need a modification to participate in a meeting should contact the Superintendent's office no later than three days
before a regular meeting and as soon as possible in advance of a special meeting so that arrangements for the modification can be made.




\

—~
Aﬁl!l‘éL SCHOOL DISTRICT

Minutes from the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
Monday, June 13, 2022

The Board of Directors held a Regular Board Meeting on Monday, June 13, 2022. This meeting
was held in-person and virtually via a Zoom link posted on the Mead School District website.
Directors Burchard, Denholm, Olson, and Gray were present. Director Cannon was excused. Also
attending were Superintendent Shawn Woodward, Chief Financial Officer Heather Ellingson and
Assistant Superintendents Heather Havens and Jared Hoadley.

L Pledge of Allegiance
The meeting began with President Burchard asking all to rise for the Pledge of Allegiance.

I Approval of Agenda
Director Denholm made a motion to approve the meeting agenda, as amended (New Business,

Item D, Civics Education Policy Discussion, was removed). Director Gray seconded the motion.
The motion carried unanimously.

M. Approval of Minutes
Director Denholm made a motion to approve the minutes of the May 23, 2022, Regular Board
Meeting, as presented. Director Olson seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously.

IV. Remarks for the Good of the Schools - Public Comment
President Burchard first opened the floor for board comments followed by comments from the

nine individuals who signed-up to speak.

Board Comments

Director Gray, who was in attendance at the Mead Learning Options graduation ceremony on
June 9*, was very complimentary of the event and noted in particular how nice it was for all of
the programs operating under the Mead Learning Options umbrella to celebrate their graduates

together.

Director Olson, who along with Director Cannon, shook the hands of 500+ Mt. Spokane and Mead
High graduates, commented on this impressive group of young adults who are moving out into

the world.

Public Comments

Antionette Go, a Mead School District parent and staff member, addressed the board on behalf
of a group of families who are concerned about the level of support for special needs students.
(Many of these families were in attendance.) This group of parents recently met and compiled a
list of 30 specific concerns. In the time allotted to her for Public Comment she shared twelve of
these including: levels of SLP and OT/PT services, how the lack of meeting current needs can be
rectified with even fewer resources, and wondering why there were no reductions proposed for
sports and other co-curricular activities. Special needs families feel as if they are always the first
on the chopping block which is disheartening as these students already face so many uphill
battles. Regarding inclusion, Mead is in the dark ages compared to districts on the west side of
the state. The group requests the district find a better solution to address budget issues that
does not negatively impact special education resources.




Brian Vaughn (Mead School District parent), taking up where Antionette Go left off, shared
concerns 13-30 including: how special education cuts will impact student safety, where the
money raised through property taxes is being spent, and the lack of an appropriate Autism
program. He additionally suggested sports/extra-curriculars be cut before reductions are made
to special services programs and wondered about the para-educator plan for next year. Rather
than come to Mead, he and others now encourage families of special needs children to go to

school in the valley.

Stacie Davis, mother of three children who attend school in the Mead School District, including
a 7™ grade son with extreme dyslexia, shared his journey in the district that included “begging”
for testing. If you met her son you would have no idea he has a disability. She noted one in five
students is dyslexic and most are not receiving services. Her son, who has received private
tutoring for years, needs his resource room instruction to make progress. Because of his reading
struggles her son comes home from school every day exhausted because he has to work so hard.
Two years ago the state passed legislation regarding required instruction for those with dyslexia.
It took until May of this year for her son to receive the services set forth in this legislation. She
commended staff who work miracles despite lack of curriculum and shared it is foolish to think

you can meet student needs with less resources/staff.

Ron McInerney, a resident of the district, first noted the powerful testimony of the previous
speaker (Stacie Davis). At the May 23, 2022, board meeting Mr. McInerney referenced the financial
information shared by Superintendent Woodward on April 25, 2022, related to the resolution
passed by the board modifying the district’s education program by making reductions that range
from $2-3.3 million. As he did on May 23, Mr. McInerney once again suggested, since student
enrollment is actually lower than in 2017, the district consider closing down the three new
schools that were opened after 2017 thereby saving $3.3 million in operating costs. He asked
that the board give this suggestion serious consideration.

Regarding school safety, Mr. McInerney, who works in construction, shared he has it on good
authority that outside doors, other than the “single point” of entry door, at least in Spokane, are
not always locked during the school day like they should be. Regarding glass he shared tempered
glass can be shattered with the butt of a gun. A good alternative would be laminated or wired
glass. The Mead School District community is trusting schools to care for students and keep

them safe.

Mr. McInerney, on the subject of Visual Learning Systems, wondered why the district, considering
the trauma of the last two years, would implement something like this that has not received
proper vetting. He read information from the Visual Learning Systems website and shared
concerns about more and more screentime for students. Superintendent Woodward, for the
record, noted this was not something ever presented or discussed at a board meeting. Doug
Turner (community resident), who in a summary report to Mr. McInerney about the May 23"
board meeting, was the one who told Mr. McInerney about Visual Learning Systems. Mr. Turner
noted it was part of the PLC presentation. Superintendent Woodward clarified the Wednesday
Late Start Proposal presentation, that provides PLC time for teachers to collaborate, referenced
a book titled Visible Learning. This is not the same as Visual Learning Systems. To provide
additional context/clarifying information Superintendent Woodward offered to sit down and talk

with both Mr. McInerney and Mr. Turner.

Tia McInerney, a resident of the district, expressed concern about vaping in school bathrooms
and wondered why this problem has not been addressed. Students are dehydrating themselves
so that they do not need to use restrooms. A list of health issues that arise from dehydrating
was shared. She requested bathroom safety be on the agenda at the next board meeting.

Tonya Moreno, parent of a special needs son who struggles with anxiety, is ADHD and on the
spectrum, shared they do not feel welcome in the Mead School District. They have tried a part-




time, online schedule but still her son did not receive instruction for two months. Her experience
has been very frustrating. She and other parents want to know what the plan for special needs

children is.

Karly Searl, mother of adopted four-year old twins who are on the spectrum, who is herself a 4.0
Mead graduate, noted she was the beneficiary of the prominent general education/extra-
curricular type opportunities available in the Mead School District. Now as the mom of special
needs children she realizes her kids need Mead more than she did including the services
provided by para educators. Her children deserve a voice. She has hired an outside individual to
help her maximize the IEPs for her children. She noted preschool enrollment issues and that her

twins need services just to survive.

Troy Mize, parent of a 6™ grade Autistic son with an IEP, noted the importance of schools helping
with socialization. If providing that help is cut the impact will be huge for families. He noted the
importance of being able to read social cues. For Autistic children, who cannot read social cues,
socialization instruction is vital. He is concerned about the impact to children like his son if

special education staff is reduced.

Jennifer Killman, mother of three boys (two at Evergreen and one at Highland), is concerned
about screentime noting, in particular, the lack of access controls on district laptops. She is
personally very involved in the Evergreen Living Outdoor Classroom and believes the type of
hands-on science instruction that takes place in this environment is preferable to online
instruction. She would like to see all schools have an outdoor learning space. She noted the
screentime battle that takes place, particularly with their middle school son, at home. He
indicates he needs his computer for homework but they often see him playing games. She also
noted all of her children have district computers but do not know how to type. She is concerned
about the cutting and pasting/plagiarism that takes place and encouraged the district to
consider investing in software that limits computer use when children are at home.

President Burchard reminded/invited community members to reach out to the district via phone
or email with issues/concerns. Director Denholm asked that the list of 30 special education

concerns be emailed to Superintendent Woodward.

On the topic of budget and some areas of misinformation, Superintendent Woodward clarified
that each year all district programs/systems are audited. Regarding special education the
district, for next year, will allocate para educators based on student need rather than teacher
FTE. As shared at previous board meetings, this could result in a cost savings but may also result
in no reduction at all. Early estimates indicate the district could actually end up spending more
on paraeducator services in the 2022/2023 school year because of the change in how allocations

will be determined.

On the subject of Education Specialists, Superintendent Woodward reminded Mead is the only
district in the state currently using this model. After careful analysis the district has determined
it can revamp and do the work performed by these individuals more efficiently and for less
money. The new model will be shared with the board in August or September.

In respondence to a question from Director Gray, Superintendent Woodward assured the district
will meet the paraeducator needs of all special education students. While acknowledging how
paras are allocated is a shift from what currently takes place, Superintendent Woodward noted

it is a needed shift.

In response to a question from Director Olson, Superintendent Woodward shared additional
information on the bathroom situation, and why many are kept locked during the school day at
both high schools, will be covered later in the meeting during his Superintendent Report.




V. Continuing Business
A. 3+ Reading Policy & Procedure 4311 Adoption
School Safety & Security Services Program
Family & Student Services Director Josh Westermann presented the adoption of Policy &
Procedure 4311, School Safety & Security Services Program, for third reading consideration.
Having a school board approved policy/procedure that addresses the district’s School Safety and
Security Services Program is a requirement of Substitute House Bill 1214 passed by the state
legislature in 2021. WSSDA Sample Policy 4311 and Sample Procedure 4311 are templates for
the presented drafts. The presented policy and procedure comply with state/federal statutes
and clearly outline the duties of a School Resource Officer.

The presented policy sets forth the purpose of the School Safety & Security Services Program,
which includes the improvement of safety and the educational climate at school.

In the Limitations section the policy states, “The primary responsibility of maintaining proper
order and conduct in the schools resides with school principals or their designee, with support
of other school staff.” The School Resource Officer (SRO) is prohibited from being involved in
formal school discipline situations that are the responsibility of school administrators.

Other sections of the policy address Requests for Intervention and Law Enforcement Activity &
Immigration Enforcement, as well as Annual Review & Adoption of Agreements with Law
Enforcement Agencies or Security Guard Companies. Any agreement must include: 1) a clear
statement regarding SRO duties and responsibilities as they relate to student behavior and
discipline; 2) a jointly determined hiring and placement process and a performance evaluation
process; and 3) an avenue to confirm the SRO has completed an appropriate training series. The
agreement review and adoption process must involve parents, students and community

members.

The presented procedure includes sections on Safety & Security Staff Training, Complaint
Resolution Process and Annual Data Collection & Reporting. A comprehensive list of data to be
collected is set forth in the procedure. This data, along with a copy of any signed agreements
between the district and a law enforcement agency or security guard company, must be

submitted annually to OSPIL.

No first reading (May 9, 2022) or second reading (May 23, 2022) changes were recommended.

Director Denholm made a motion to adopt Policy/Procedure 4311, School Safety and Security
Services Program, as presented. Director Olson seconded the motion. The motion carried

unanimously.

B. 24 Reading Policy & Procedure 3241 Revision
Student Discipline

Family & Student Services Director Josh Westermann presented a revision to Policy & Procedure
3241, Classroom Management, Discipline and Corrective Action, for second reading
consideration. This policy/procedure was adopted on September 10, 2018, with no revisions
approved since that time. While WSSDA Sample Policy 3241 and Sample Procedure 3241 were
used as templates for the presented revisions, both of these WSSDA templates were reviewed by
the district’s attorney with recommended changes incorporated into the presented drafts. The
presented revisions bring this policy/procedure into compliance with discipline changes
approved by state legislators via SSHB 1191. Because of the extensive nature of the revisions,
they were presented as standalone documents with current Policy 3241 and current Procedure
3241 provided to board members for reference.

The presented revisions align both the policy and procedure to current state law and current
district practices. In addition to changing the policy/procedure name to “Student Discipline” the




revisions contain definitions as set forth in SSHB 1191 including those specifically related to all
forms of exclusionary discipline.

The presented policy places a focus on school discipline that supports students with best
practices and strategies. For example, there is a focus on prevention and an individualized
approach to meeting student needs. Additionally, schools must attempt other interventions

before utilizing exclusionary discipline.

Included as a part of the procedure is a Behavioral Violations - Best Practices and Strategies
matrix tool for the purpose of bringing consistency and an equitable approach to exclusionary
discipline. The matrix clearly spells out what to do in specific circumstances.

In response to a first reading question from Director Cannon, Mr. Westermann shared discipline
situations arising from extra-curricular and co-curricular Codes of Conduct violations are

addressed on page 3 and page 4 of the procedure.

In response to a question from Director Gray, Mr. Westermann noted the proposed revisions are
designed to establish clear guidelines and strong, consistent consequence boundaries.

Director Burchard noted the presented revisions emphasize the goal of keeping kids in school
and promote more parent/school/student early interventions. Director Gray agreed keeping kids
in school is important while at the same time teaching the right lessons when discipline is
required. Director Denholm noted there are times when an expulsion is appropriate especially
when one person’s behavior negatively impacts ten others.

Mr. Westermann shared that in the past a first discipline step, at times, was to simply remove a
student from school. As set forth in the presented policy/procedure revision, a typical first step
would now be to ascertain how to help and work with the student and family.

President Burchard asked that the policy/procedure revision be brought back for third reading,
as an action item, at the next board meeting. Board members were encouraged to reach out to
Mr. Westermann prior to the next meeting with questions.

C. Wednesday Late-Start Proposal

Learning & Teaching Assistant Superintendent Heather Havens briefly recapped information that
was shared at the May 23" board meeting regarding the Wednesday Late-Start Proposal. For
elementary, middle and high schools the school day would start 10 minutes earlier on Mondays,
Tuesdays, Thursdays & Fridays. On Wednesdays the school day would start 40 minutes later.
The net result is an additional 1200 minutes for teachers to work collaboratively, as well as an
additional 412 minutes of direct student instruction each school year. This increase in
instructional time (10 minutes each week) is due to the fact that the school start time on
Wednesdays, while 40 minutes later based on the proposed new school start times, is only 30
minutes later than the current, 2021/22 school year, start times.

The time gained on Wednesdays would be dedicated to teacher collaboration. During this
collaboration time teachers will be able to develop professionally and work with colleagues to
improve instructional practice. The presentation also included accountability measures for
teachers, considerations for the impact on families and shared creative solutions for students
and families who might need additional support during the late start time. The goals for this
change are greater growth and achievement for students.

Ms. Havens explained the rational for selecting Wednesday as the late start day, as opposed to a
Monday morning for example, which is a day/time teachers attend to the details of making sure
the week gets off on the right foot. While Learning & Teaching recommends Wednesday as the




late start day, Ms. Havens was clear to point out having PLC time is the top priority regardless
of which day of the week it takes place.

President Burchard requested, at a minimum, an annual board update on the effectiveness of
the late start/PLC time on student learning. Director Gray, asking about outcomes, wondered
what should be expected at two years, five years, twenty years, to which Ms. Havens shared her
expectation that there would be steady, incremental growth.

Director Gray referenced parents wanting daily schedule consistency and, therefore, wondered
about Friday as an option. Ms. Havens shared that Fridays have the highest weekly teacher

absenteeism rate.

Responding to a question from Director Olson, Ms. Havens assured that at both elementary and
secondary the option to drop students off early would be available.

Director Olson indicated he likes Wednesdays and noted the board could always reconsider the
day of the week in the future. Director Denholm also noted the ability to adjust the late start day
and likes that the proposal includes increased instructional minutes.

Director Olson made a motion to approve the Wednesday Late Start Proposal, as presented.
Director Denholm seconded the motion. The motion carried. Director Gray, explaining her no
vote, shared that while she supports PLC time and increased instructional minutes, she does not
feel the board was adequately prepared to make this decision. She does not believe her questions
regarding how the district will gauge effectiveness were adequately answered.

On the topic of determining the effectiveness of the late-start/PLC time, Superintendent
Woodward referenced the draft District Scorecard that will include student growth and
achievement data, as well as one, three and five year goals. The scorecard will consider many
metrics and let the district know where adjustments need to be made.

VI New Business
A. Consent Agenda
Director Gray made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, as presented. Director Denholm
seconded the motion. The motion carried. Director Olson abstained from the vote.

Consent Agenda

1. Hired Certificated Personnel:
Katie Bagdon Special Services Cert 1.0 FTE Continuing Assistant Director Special Services effective
7/1/22
2. Hired Classified Personnel:
Robert Lee Mt. Spokane Class 1.0 FTE Continuing Athletic Director effective 7/1/22
John Barrington Mead High School | Class 1.0 FTE Continuing Athletic Director effective 7/1/22
(resigning MEA certificated position effective 6/30/22)
3. Hired Certificated Substitutes:
Whitney Womac Katie Morris Shelly Hicks Kristi Lupton Stephanie Williams
Teresa Everett Dawn Matlock Jayne Grimes Karly Wittkopp Kaitlyn Zemke
Elizabeth Lewis
4. Hired Classified Substitutes:
Kirsteen Winn Hailee Muller | Angie Richardson | Michelle Mielke | Robert Smalley
Claire Sinner
Elizabeth Lewis
5. Approved AP Vouchers for General Fund, Capitol Projects, Private Purpose Trust & ASB.

Vouchers audited and certified by auditing officers as required by RCW 42.24.080, and those expense
reimbursement claims certified as required by RCW 42.24.090, have been recorded on a listing which has




been made available to the Board. As of this day, June 13, 2022, the Board, by a unanimous vote does
approve for payment the vouchers included in the above referenced list and further described as Warrant

Numbers 106623 to 106223 in the following amounts:

Fund
General Fund - AP
General Fund - PR

Amount
$ 1,066,938.51
10,450,518.13

ASB Fund 57,104.58
Capital Projects Fund 218,861.80
Trust Fund 3,000.00
6. Approved Requests for Unpaid Leave (i.e., parenting, medical, Good of the District, etc.):
Rachel Markum Shiloh Hills Cert .5 FTE Leave (of a 1.0 FTE Contract) 22/23 school year
Behka Corker Highland Cert 1.0 FTE Leave 22/23 school year
Melissa Kehr Special Services Cert .6 FTE Leave (of a .6 FTE Contract) 1* semester 22/23 school
year
Charmaine O'Donnal Evergreen Class Leave for the entire 22/23 school year
Vieyn Krop Shiloh Hills Class Leave M-W for the entire 22/23 school year
Melissa Johnson Student & Family Class 6/10/22,6/13/22 & 6/14/22
Services
7. Approved teachers teaching “Outside of Endorsement” during the 2021/22 school year.

8. Approved Mead High School Summer Tennis Camp fee (elementary & middle school $50, high
school & advanced juniors $90.

9. Approved Mead Summer STEM Camp fee of $135/module.
10. Approved Employee Termination:

Katie Spiger

Mead High

| Class | 6/3/22 (job abandonment)

11. Approved Requests for Retirement/Resignation:

Kristin Sims-Cutler Special Services Cert Retirement effective 4/22/22 (School Psychologist)
Colleen Kutz Brentwood Cert Retirement effective 6/30/22 (Teacher)
Janel Smith Mountainside Cert Resignation effective 8/29/22 (Teacher)
Rose Kingma Five Mile Prairie Class Resignation effective 5/25/22 (LDE)
Thomas Shaw Transportation Class Retirement effective 6/120/22 (Bus Driver)
Jacob Harbert Northstar Class Resignation effective 5/25/22 (LDE)
Jacob Oritt Mead High Class Resignation effective 8/29/22 (Interpreter)
Amber White Prairie View Class Resignation effective 6/1/22 (Para Ed)
Steven Acosta Mead High Cert Resignation effective 8/29/22 (Teacher)
Ann Reyes Mountainside Class Retirement effective 8/29/22 (Para Ed)
Teresa Thompson Shiloh Hills Cert Resignation effective 6/14/19 (Teacher - on leave the
past three vears)
Bonnie Murphey Highland Cert Retirement effective 8,/29/22 (Teacher)
Veradean Helmuth Transportation Class Retirement effective 8/29/22 (Bus Driver)
Catherine Young Northwood Class Retirement effective 8/29/22 (Para Ed)
Sarina Hartsell Colbert Class Resignation effective 6/20/22 (Para Ed)
Colleen Bloom Creekside Cert Retirement effective 8/29/22 (Preschool Teacher)
Paula Magluyan Evergreen Cert Retirement effective 8/29/22 (Teacher)
B. 1*t Reading Policy & Procedure 2161 Revision

presented revisions.

Special Education and Related Services For Eligible Students

Special Services Director Jay Tyus presented the revision of Policy/Procedure 2161, Special
Education and Related Services for Eligible Students, for first reading consideration. This
policy/procedure was adopted on September 24, 2007, with revisions to the policy approved on
March 10, 2008 and July 20, 2016. Revisions to the procedure were approved on March 11, 2010,
January 12, 2015 and July 20, 2016. The presented revisions bring this policy/procedure into
compliance with the state's new special education reporting process that requires school
districts to analyze and update their special education policies and procedures by August 31,
2022. WSSDA Sample Policy 2161 and Sample Procedure 2161 were used as templates for the

Special Education procedures are designed to: 1) Ensure that students who are eligible for
services under the Individuals with Disabilities Act are served appropriately and given assurance
of individualized support for their success, and 2) Limit the district’s liability and ensure




fiduciary responsibility by enacting policies and procedures that mitigate potential litigation and
risk.

The presented revisions to the policy are minimal.

Presented procedure revisions include changing existing language to meet the requirements of
new legislation and/or policy governance. Important shifts include:

o Amending the process for Specific Learning Disability Evaluation/Qualification from the
Discrepancy Model (formalized testing with cut score qualifications) to allow for
Response to Intervention models and patterns of strength and weakness. By 2028 the
district must have in place a robust system for ensuring scientific, research-based
interventions are employed through a RTI approach for Specific Learning Disability
Qualifications. (Prior to 2028 the section of the procedure that addresses this area will
need to be, once again, revised/updated.)

o Clarity around interpreters, First Language support and communication, as legally
required, have been added.

e Graduation requirements now require a detailed Transition Plan and High School &
Beyond Plan. These plans allow access to alternate pathways for credits and course of
study.

¢ Regarding restraint, isolation and reasonable use of force, revisions are primarily
connected to the type of training to be used and the increased attention to de-escalation
strategies, and a system that has its emphasis in trauma-informed practices.

Prior to the next board meeting Director Denholm indicated he would reach out to Mr. Tyus to
set up a time to discuss the proposed changes in more detail.

No first reading changes were recommended. President Burchard requested the
policy/procedure revision be brought forward for second reading at the next board meeting as

a non-action item.

C. 1* Reading Policy 3246 Review & Procedure 3246 Revision
Restraint, Isolation and Other Uses of Reasonable Force
Special Services Director Jay Tyus presented the review of Policy 3246 and revision of Procedure
3246, Restraint, Isolation and Other Uses of Reasonable Force, for first reading consideration.
This policy/procedure was adopted on July 18, 2011, with revisions approved on December 14,
2015 and September 12, 2016. The presented review/revision brings this policy/procedure into
compliance with the state’s new special education reporting process that requires school
districts to analyze and update their special education policies and procedures by August 31,

2022.

WSSDA Sample Procedure 3246 was used as the template for the presented procedure revisions.
Current Policy 3246 was compared to WSSDA Sample Policy 3246 with no policy changes
recommended following this comparison/analysis. The review of the policy was brought to the
board as the district must, to comply with new state requirements, show the policy was revisited
to ascertain if revisions are needed.

Presented procedure revisions include changing existing language to meet the requirements of
new legislation and/or policy governance. Primary revisions are connected to the type of training
to be used and the increased attention to de-escalation strategies, and a system that has its
emphasis in trauma-informed practices. Restraint, isolation and reasonable use of force data will

be reported annually, as legally required, to OSPL




No first reading changes were recommended. Board members were invited to reach out to Mr.
Tyus with questions. President Burchard requested the policy review/procedure revision be
brought forward for second reading at the next board meeting as a non-action item.

VII. Reports
A. Superintendent’s Report
Superintendent Woodward reported on the district’s Class of 2022 graduation ceremonies and
the success of students graduating from Mead Learning Options programs, Mead High School
and Mt. Spokane High School. He expressed his thanks to each of the school principals (Nick
Edwards, Jeff Naslund and Chelsea Gallagher), as well as Director of Secondary Education Darren
Nelson, noting in particular the work involved in making a last minute weather related location
change for the Mead High and Mt. Spokane events. Acknowledging how unpredictable weather
can be in June, Superintendent Woodward shared the district will be looking to secure an indoor

venue for future graduations.

Secondary Education Director Darren Nelson presented a report on the current issues of
restroom vandalism and vaping particularly at district high schools. Technology, supervision
and new access systems are under consideration/review with the goal of helping to curb current
inappropriate behavior in restrooms. The district is testing out new sensor and door access
technology, working on adding more supervision in schools and making changes to classroom

bathroom use check-in/check-out procedures.

While the current vandalism situation is not as bad as in the fall following a Tik Tok “devious
licks” challenge, Mr. Nelson acknowledged vaping is worse since COVID. He also noted all schools
in the area are experiencing the same challenges. With the addition of new technologies, better
access controls and enhanced supervision the hope is that the situation will improve next year.

In response to a question from Director Gray, Maintenance Director Travis Bown shared the
district is working to find the sweet sensor spot so that they are triggering when appropriate.
Early indications are promising and the district hopes to have sensors installed in all bathrooms

in the fall.

In conclusion, Mr. Nelson shared he is hopeful, with the opportunity to reset expectations in the
fall, something that has not happened in the past few years because of COVID, the bathroom

situation will improve.

VIII. Executive Session
At 7:35 pm President Burchard called for an Executive Session of approximately 15 minutes to

hear a Harassment, Intimidation and Bullying Appeal.

At 8 pm President Burchard returned the meeting to Open Session. No other business was
discussed and no action was taken.

IX. Adjourn
The meeting was adjourned at 8 pm.

President Secretary




MEAD SCHOOL DISTRICT

Board Meeting of June 27, 2022

Continuing Business

Agenda Item:

Background:

Summary:

Staffing Implication:

VILA.

34 Reading Policy & Procedure 3241 Revision
Student Discipline

Policy/Procedure 3241, Classroom Management, Discipline and
Corrective Action, was adopted on September 10, 2018, with no
revisions approved since that time. The presented revisions bring
this policy/procedure into compliance with discipline changes
approved by state legislators via SSHB 1191.

While WSSDA Sample Policy 3241 and Sample Procedure 3241
were used as templates for the presented revisions, both of these
WSSDA templates were reviewed by the district’s attorney with
recommended changes incorporated into the presented drafts. Due
to the extensive nature of the revisions, they are being presented as
standalone documents with current Policy 3241 and current
Procedure 3241 attached for reference.

The presented revisions align both the policy and procedure to
current state law and current district practices. In addition to
changing the policy/procedure name to “Student Discipline” the
revisions contain definitions as set forth in SSHB 1191 including
those specially related to all forms of exclusionary discipline.

The presented policy places a focus on school discipline that
supports students with best practices and strategies. For example,
there is a focus on prevention and an individualized approach to
meeting student needs. Additionally, schools must attempt other
interventions before utilizing exclusionary discipline.

Included as a part of the procedure is a Behavioral Violations —
Best Practices and Strategies matrix tool for the purpose of
bringing consistency and an equitable approach to exclusionary
discipline.

No first reading (May 23, 2022) or second reading (June 13, 2022)
changes were recommended. President Burchard requested the
policy/procedure revision be brought forward for third reading as

an action item.

None




Other Considerations: None

Recommendation: Approval of the presented revisions to Policy/Procedure 3241 is
recommended.

Attachments:
e Draft Policy/Procedure 3241
e Current Policy/Procedure 3241




DRAF T Policy 3241
STUDENTS

AKEGd) scroor DisTRICT

STUDENT DISCIPLINE

Introduction/Philosophy/Purpose

The Board of the Mead School District focuses on the educational achievement of each and every student.
The District holds high expectations for all students and strives to provide all students the opportunity to
achieve personal and academic success. “Discipline” means any action taken by the school district in
response to behavioral violations, including exclusionary as well as positive and supportive forms of
discipline. The Board intends that this policy and procedure be implemented in a manner that supports
positive school climate, maximizes instructional time as appropriate, and increases equitable educational

opportunities.

The purposes of this policy and accompanying procedure include:
o Engaging with school personnel, students, parents, families, and the community in decisions

related to the development and implementation of discipline policies and procedures;
« Supporting students in meeting behavioral expectations, including providing for early involvement

of parents or guardians and families;
« Administering discipline in ways that respond to the needs and strengths of students and keep

students in the classroom to the maximum extent possible;
o Providing educational services that students need to complete their education without disruption;
o Facilitating collaboration between school personnel, students, and parents or guardians, and
families to support successful reentry into the classroom following a suspension or expulsion;
o Ensuring fairness, equity, and due process in the administration of discipline;
o Implementing culturally responsive discipline that provides every student the opportunity to

achieve personal and academic success;
 Providing a safe environment for all students, district employees, and members of the community.

Rights and Responsibilities/District Commitment

The Board recognizes the negative and disproportionate impact of exclusionary discipline practices and is

committed to:
o Identifying and addressing discipline policies and practices that perpetuate educational opportunity

gaps;
« Proactively implementing discipline practices that support students in meeting behavioral

expectations without losing access to instruction;

The District will observe students’ fundamental rights and will administer discipline in a manner that does

not:
1. Unlawfully discriminate against a student on the basis of sex, race, creed, religion, color, national

origin, sexual orientation, gender expression, gender identity, disability, or the use of a trained dog
guide or service animal;




STUDENT DISCIPLINE
Policy 3241

2. Deprive a student of the student's constitutional right to freedom of speech and press, the
constitutional right to peaceably assemble and to petition the government and its representatives
for a redress of grievances, the constitutional right to the free exercise of religion and to have the
student's school free from sectarian control or influence, subject to reasonable limitations upon the
time, place, and manner of exercising the right;

3. Deprive a student of the student's constitutional right to be secure in the student's person, papers,
and effects against unreasonable searches and seizures;

4. Unlawfully interfere in a student's pursuit of an education while in the custody of the school
district; or

5. Deprive a student of the student's right to an equal educational opportunity, in whole or in part, by
a school district without due process of law.

This District’s student discipline policy and procedure is designed to provide students and staff with a
safe, healthy, and educationally sound environment. Students are expected to be aware of and comply
with this policy and procedure, including behavioral expectations that respect the rights, person, and
property of others. Students are also expected to pursue the required course of studies. Students and staff

are expected to work together to develop a positive climate for learning.

Development and Review

The district will collect data on disciplinary actions administered in each school, as required by RCW
28A.300.042, and any additional data required under other district policies and procedures.

The District will ensure that school principals confer with certificated building employees as appropriate
to develop and/or review building discipline standards and review the fidelity of implementation of those
standards. At each district school, principals and certificated staff may develop written school procedures
for administering discipline that are consistent with this policy and procedure. Each school may also:

1. Establish behavioral expectations with students and proactively teach expectations across various
school settings.

2. Develop precise definitions for problem behaviors and behavioral violations to address differences
in perceptions of subjective behaviors and reduce the effect of implicit bias.

3. Define the differences between minor and major behavior incidents to clarify the types of
behaviors that may or may not result in classroom exclusion or are severe enough that an
administrator needs to be involved.

4. Identify a continuum of best practices and strategies for classroom-based responses that building
staff should administer before or instead of classroom exclusion to support students in meeting

behavioral expectations.

School handbooks, codes of conduct, and building discipline standards must not conflict with this policy,
accompanying procedures, or other Board policies.

School principals will strive to ensure that teachers and other school personnel receive adequate support
to effectively implement a continuum of identified best practices and strategies that:

1. Focus on prevention to reduce the use of exclusionary discipline practices;

2. Allow the exercise of professional judgment and skill sets; and

3. May be adapted to individual student needs in a culturally responsive manner.




STUDENT DISCIPLINE
Policy 3241

School principals will confer with certificated building employees as appropriate to establish criteria for
when certificated employees must complete classes to improve classroom management skills.

The District will periodically review and further develop this policy and procedure with the participation
of school personnel, students, parents, families, and the community. As part of this development and
review process, the district will use disaggregated data collected under RCW 28A.300.042. This process
may include reviewing data to prevent and address discrimination against students in protected classes
identified in chapters 28A.640 and 28A.642 RCW, however, the District will ensure it reviews
disaggregated discipline data in accordance with WAC 392-190-048 at least annually.

Distribution of Policies and Procedures

The District will make the current version of this policy and procedure available to families and the
community. The District will annually provide this policy and procedure to all District personnel,
students, parents, and families, which may require language assistance for students and parents with
limited-English proficiency under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,

The District will ensure district employees and contractors are knowledgeable of this student discipline
policy and procedure. At the building level, schools will annually provide the current building discipline
standards, developed as stated above, to all school personnel, students, and parents, which may require
Janguage assistance for students and parents with limited-English proficiency under Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964. Schools will ensure all school personnel are knowledgeable of the school building
discipline standards. Schools may provide discipline training developed under RCW 28A.415.410 to
support implementation of this policy and procedure to all school staff as feasible.

Application

This policy and accompanying procedure will be construed in a manner consistent with Washington law
as stated in WAC 392-400-020.

Cross References: 2121 - Substance Abuse Program
2161 - Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students
3122 - Excused and Unexcused Absences
3210 - Nondiscrimination
3520 - Student Fees, Fines, or Charges
4210 - Regulation of Dangerous Weapons on School Premises

Legal References:
RCW 9.41.280 Possessing dangerous weapons on school facilities — Penalty —
Exceptions
RCW 28A.150.240 Certificated teaching and administrative staff as accountable for
classroom teaching — Scope — Responsibilities — Penalty
Chapter 28A.225, RCW Compulsory school attendance and admission




Management
Resources:

STUDENT DISCIPLINE
Policy 3241

Chapter 28A.320, RCW Provisions applicable to all districts

RCW 28A.400.100 Principals and vice principals — Employment of — Qualifications
— Duties

RCW 28A.400.110 Principal to assure appropriate student discipline — Building
discipline standards — Classes to improve classroom management skills

Chapter 28A.600 RCW, Students

WAC 392-190-048 Access to course offerings — Student discipline

Chapter 392-400 WAC, Student Discipline

34 CFR Part 100.3 Regulations implementing Civil Rights Act of 1964

42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq. Civil Rights Act of 1964

2021 — February Issue
2019 — April Policy Alert
2018 - August Issue

2016 - July Issue

2014 - December Issue
2014 - August Issue
2010 - June Issue

Adopted: September 10, 2018

Revised:




Policy 3241
STUDENTS

AKXiM]L schooL DisTRICT

CLASSROOM MANAGEMENT, DISCIPLINE
AND CORRECTIVE ACTION

Rules of student conduct are essential to maintain a school environment conducive to learning. A
student’s refusal to comply with written rules and regulations established for the governing of the school

will constitute sufficient cause for discipline or corrective action.

Staff are responsible for supervising student behavior, employing effective classroom management
methods and enforcing the rules of student conduct in a fair, consistent and non-discriminatory manner.
Corrective action must be reasonable and necessary under the circumstances and reflect the district’s
priority to maintain a safe and positive learning environment for all students and staff.

The district will distribute its discipline policy and procedure to students, their parents/guardians, and the
community on an annual basis. Students and/or their parents/guardians will be provided all required
substantive and procedural due process in regard to grievances, hearings and/or appeals of corrective
action. The district will also strive to provide trainings regarding policies and procedures related to
student discipline for appropriate school and district staff whose duties require them to interact with
students and enforce or implement components of student discipline.

The district will assist long-term suspended and expelled students in returning to school as soon as
possible by providing them with a reengagement plan tailored to the student’s individual circumstances,
including consideration of the incident that led to the student’s long-term suspension or expulsion.

The district will annually collect and review data on disciplinary actions taken against students within
cach school. The data will be disaggregated into subgroups as required by RCW 28A.300.042 and will ,
include students protected by the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act and Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973. The review must include short-term suspensions, long-term suspensions and
expulsions. In reviewing the data, the district will determine whether it has disciplined a substantially
disproportionate number of students within any of the disaggregated categories. If disproportionality is
found, the district will take action to ensure that it is not the result of discrimination.

In consultation with school district staff, students, families and the community, the district will
periodically review and update this policy and its accompanying procedure.




Cross References:

Legal References:

Management Resources:

Adopted: September 10, 2018

CLASSROOM MANAGEMENT, DISCIPLINE AND CORRECTIVE ACTION
Policy 3241

2161 - Special Education and Related Services for Eligible
Students

3122 - Excused and Unexcused Absences

3210 - Nondiscrimination

3240 - Student Conduct Expectations and Reasonable Sanctions
4210 - Regulation of Dangerous Weapons on School Premises

RCW 9A.16.100 Use of force on children — Policy — Actions
presumed unreasonable

RCW 9.41.280 Possessing dangerous weapons on school
facilities — Penalty — Exceptions

RCW 28A.150.240 Certificated teaching and administrative
staff as accountable for classroom teaching — Scope —
Responsibilities — Penalty

Chapter 28A.225, RCW Compulsory school attendance and
admission

Chapter 28A.320, RCW Provisions applicable to all districts

RCW 28A.400.100 Principals and vice principals —
Employment of — Qualifications — Duties

RCW 28A.400.110 Principal to assure appropriate student
discipline — Building discipline standards — Classes to
improve classroom management skills

Chapter 28A.600 RCW, Students

WAC 392-190-048 Access to course offerings — Student
discipline

Chapter 392-400, WAC Pupils

34 CFR Part 100.3 Regulations implementing Civil Rights Act
of 1964

42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq. Civil Rights Act of 1964

2016 - July Issue

2014 - December Issue
2014 - August [ssue
2010 - June Issue




DRAFT Procedure 3241

AKXF M) scoorDisTRICT STUDENTS

STUDENT DISCIPLINE

Introduction

The purpose of this student discipline procedure is to implement the District’s student discipline
policy as adopted by the Board. These procedures are consistent with the Board’s student
discipline policy, as well as all applicable federal and state laws.

Definitions

For purposes of the student disciplinary policy and procedures, the following definitions will
apply:

e “Behavioral violation” means a student’s behavior that violates the district’s discipline
policies.

o “Best practices and strategies” refers to other forms of discipline, including but not
limited to other forms of discipline that the district has identified in this procedure, that
school personnel should administer when appropriate to support students in meeting
behavioral expectations.

s  “Classroom exclusion” means the exclusion of a student from a classroom or
instructional or activity area for behavioral violations, subject to the requirements of
WAC 392-400-330 and 392-400-335. Classroom exclusion does not include actions that
result in missed instruction for a brief duration when:

(a) a teacher or other school personnel attempts other forms of discipline to
support the student in meeting behavioral expectations; and

(b) the student remains under the supervision of the teacher or other school
personnel during such brief duration.

e “Culturally responsive” has the same meaning as “cultural competency” in RCW
28A.410.270, which states "cultural competency" includes knowledge of student cultural
histories and contexts, as well as family norms and values in different cultures;
knowledge and skills in accessing community resources and community and parent
outreach; and skills in adapting instruction to students' experiences and identifying
cultural contexts for individual students.

o “Discipline” means any action taken by a school district in response to behavioral
violations.

» “Disruption of the educational process” means the interruption of classwork, the
creation of disorder, or the invasion of the rights of a student or group of students.

« “Emergency expulsion” means the removal of a student from school because the
student’s presence poses an immediate and continuing danger to other students or school
personnel, or an immediate and continuing threat of material and substantial disruption of




the educational process, subject to the requirements in WAC 392-400-510 through 392-
400-530.

“Expulsion” means a denial of admission to the student’s current school placement in
response to a behavioral violation, subject to the requirements in WAC 392-400-430
through 392-400-480.

“Length of an academic term” means the total number of school days in a single
trimester or semestet, as defined by the board of directors.

“Other forms of discipline” means actions used in response to problem behaviors and
behavioral violations, other than classroom exclusion, suspension, expulsion, or
emergency expulsion, which may involve the use of best practices and strategies included
in the state menu for behavior developed under RCW 28A.165.035.

“Parent” has the same meaning as in WAC 392-172A-01125, and means (a) a biological
or adoptive parent of a child; (b) a foster parent; (c) a guardian generally authorized to act
as the child’s parent, or authorized to make educational decisions for the student, but not
the state, if the student is a ward of the state; (d) an individual acting in the place of a
biological or adoptive parent, including a grandparent, stepparent, or other relative with
whom the student lives, or an individual who is legally responsible for the student’s
welfare; or a surrogate parent who has been appointed in accordance with WAC 392-
172A-05130. If the biological or adoptive parent is attempting to act as the parent and
more than one party meets the qualifications to act as a parent, the biological or adoptive
parent must be presumed to be the parent unless he or she does not have legal authority to
make educational decisions for the student. If a judicial decree or order identifies a
specific person or persons to act as the “parent” of a child or to make educational
decision on behalf of a child, then that person or persons shall be determined to be the
parent for purposes of this policy and procedure.

“School board” means the governing board of directors of the local school district.
“School business day” means any calendar day except Saturdays, Sundays, and any
federal and school holidays upon which the office of the Superintendent is open to the
public for business. A school business day concludes or terminates upon the closure of
the Superintendent’s office for the calendar day.

“School day” means any day or partial day that students are in attendance at school for
instructional purposes.

“Suspension” means the denial of attendance in response to a behavioral violation from
any subject or class, or from any full schedule of subjects or classes, but not including
classroom exclusions, expulsions, or emergency expulsions. Suspension may also include
denial of admission to or entry upon, real and personal property that is owned, leased,

rented, or controlled by the district.
e In-school suspension means a suspension in which a student is excluded from the

student's regular educational setting but remains in the student's current school
placement for up to ten consecutive school days, subject to the requirements in
WAC 392-400-430 through 392-400-475.

e Short-term suspension means a suspension in which a student is excluded from
school for up to ten consecutive school days, subject to the requirements in WAC
392-400-430 through 392-400-475.

« Long-term suspension means a suspension in which a student is excluded from
school for more than ten consecutive school days, subject to the requirements in
WAC 392-400-430 through 392-400-475.




Engaging with Families & Language Assistance

The district will provide for early involvement of parents in efforts to support students in
meeting behavioral expectations. Additionally, school personnel will make every reasonable
attempt to involve the student and parent in the resolution of behavioral violations.

The district will ensure that it provides all discipline related communications [oral and written]
required in connection with this policy and procedure in a language the student and parent(s)
understand. These discipline related communications include notices, hearings, conferences,
meeting, plans, proceedings, agreements, petitions, and decisions. This effort may require
language assistance for students and parents with limited-English proficiency under Title VI of
the Civil Rights Act of 1964. This effort may require accommodations for parents and students
with communication disabilities. For parents who are unable to read any language, the district

will provide written material orally.
Supporting Students with Best Practices and Strategies

The District will implement culturally responsive discipline that strive to provide every student
the opportunity to achieve personal and academic success. The administration of other forms of
discipline may involve the use of best practices and strategies included in the state menu for
behavior available online at: https://www k12.wa.us/student-success/support-programs/learning-
assistance-pro gram-lap/menus-best-practices-strategies/behavior-menu-best-practices-strategies.

The District will ensure schools receive adequate support to effectively implement a continuum
of identified best practices and strategies that:

1. Focus on prevention to reduce the use of exclusionary discipline practices;
2. Allow the exercise of professional judgment and skill sets; and
3. May be adapted to individual student needs in a culturally responsive manner.

Each school within the District will implement best practices and strategies consistent with this
policy and procedure. In accordance with WAC 392-400-110(1)(e), the District has identified a
continuum of best practices and strategies (attached) that school personnel should administer
before or instead of exclusionary discipline to support students in meeting behavioral

expectations.

All school personnel are authorized to implement the best practices and strategies identified
above as well as building discipline standards. School personnel at each District school will
review the identified best practices and strategies as well as building discipline standards as

appropriate.

Unless a student’s presence poses an immediate and continuing danger to others, or a student’s
presence poses an immediate and continuing threat of material and substantial disruption to the
educational process, school personnel must first attempt one or more best practices and strategies
to support students in meeting behavioral expectations before considering imposing classroom
exclusion, short-term suspension, or in-school suspension. Before considering imposing a long-
term suspension or expulsion, school personnel must first consider one or more best practices

and strategies.




When administering best practices and strategies in response to behavioral violations, school
personnel will follow this policy and procedure as well as building discipline standards.

Behavioral Violations

Having sought the participation of school personnel, students, parents, families, and the
community, the District has developed definitions for behavioral violations (attached), which
clearly state the types of behaviors for which discipline—including other forms of discipline,
classroom exclusion, suspension, expulsion, and emergency expulsion—may be administered.

The District will continue to further develop and/or revise the definitions for what constitutes
behavioral violations as appropriate to reduce the effect of implicit or unconscious bias. In
addition to these District definitions, school principals will confer with certificated building
employees as appropriate to develop and/or review building discipline standards as stated in the
Board Policy. This development of building standards will also address differences in
perceptions of subjective behaviors and reduce the effect of implicit or unconscious bias.

Staff Authority and Exclusionary Discipline

District staff members are responsible for supervising students immediately before and after the
school day; during the school day; during school activities (whether on or off campus); on school
grounds before or after school hours when a school group or school activity is using school
grounds; off school grounds, if the actions of the student materially or substantially affect or
interferes with the educational process; and on the school bus. Staff have the responsibility to
provide a safe and supportive learning environment for all students and staff during school-
related activities. In accordance with the Board’s student discipline policy, district staff will
administer discipline in ways that respond to the needs and strengths of students, support
students in meeting behavioral expectations, and keep students in the classroom to the maximum

extent possible.

Staff members will seek early involvement of parents in efforts to support students in meeting
behavioral expectations. The Superintendent, Assistant Superintendent, school principals, school
vice-principals, as well as their designees, have general authority to administer discipline.

Exclusions from Transportation or Extra-Curricular Activities and Detention

The Superintendent authorizes school principals and school vice-principals and their designees to
administer other forms of discipline that exclude a student from transportation services or
extracurricular activities or impose detention. For students who meet the definition of homeless,
the district will provide transportation according to 3115 — Students in Transition: Enrollment

Rights and Services.

Authorized staff may administer lunch detention for not more than the duration of a lunch period
on any given day. Students with lunch detention will eat their lunch in a designated area
supervised by authorized staff. Before assigning detention, the staff member will inform the
student of the specific behavioral violation prompting their decision to administer detention.




Students will also be provided with an opportunity to share their perspective and explanation
regarding the behavioral violation.

The district will not administer other forms of discipline in a manner that would result in the
denial or delay of a nutritionally adequate meal to a student or prevent a student from
accomplishing a specific academic grade, subject, or graduation requirements. The district will
not exclude a student from transportation services without providing access to alternative
transportation the student needs to participate fully in educational services provided during

suspension or expulsion.

Students and parents may challenge the administration of other forms of discipline, including
exclusions from transportation or extra-curricular activities and detentions using the district’s

grievance procedures.

Classroom Exclusions

After attempting at least one other form of discipline, as set forth in this procedure, teachers have
statutory authority to exclude a student from the teacher's classroom or instructional or activity
area for behavioral violations that disrupt the educational process while the student is under the
teacher's immediate supervision in accordance with this policy and procedure and building
discipline standards. Additionally, the district authorizes school principals and assistant
principals to administer classroom exclusion with the same authority and limits of authority as
classroom teachers. As stated in policy 3241, the Superintendent, school principals, and
certificated staff will work together to develop definitions and consensus on what constitutes
behavioral violations that disrupt the educational process to reduce the effect of implicit or

unconscious bias.

Unless the student's presence poses an immediate and continuing danger to other students or
school personnel, or an immediate and continuing threat of material and substantial disruption of
the educational process, the teacher or other school personnel must first attempt one or more
other forms of discipline to support the student in meeting behavioral expectations before using
classroom exclusion. Classroom exclusion may be administered for all or any portion of the
balance of the school day. Classroom exclusion does not encompass the involuntary removal of a
student from school, including involuntarily sending a student home early or requiring a parent
to keep a student at home, based on a behavioral violation. Involuntary removal of a student from
school constitutes a suspension, expulsion, or emergency expulsion and must include the
required notification and due process outlined in the procedures below. However, the voluntary
removal of a student from school for the day by a parent, guardian, or other appropriate
individual does not constitute a suspension or expulsion.

The school will provide the student an opportunity to make up any assignments and tests missed
during a classroom exclusion. The district will not administer other forms of discipline or
classroom exclusions, in a manner that would result in the denial or delay of a nutritionally
adequate meal to a student or prevent a student from accomplishing a specific academic grade,

subject, or graduation requirements.

Following the classroom exclusion of a student, the teacher (or other school personnel as
identified) must report the classroom exclusion, including the behavioral violation that led to the




classroom exclusion, to the principal or the principal’s designee as soon as reasonably possible.
Classroom exclusion under the behavioral violation category of “other” is insufficient.

The teacher, principal, or the principal’s designee must notify the student’s parents regarding the
classroom exclusion as soon as reasonably possible. As noted above, the district must ensure that
this notification is in a language and form (i.e. oral or written) the parents understand.

When the teacher or other authorized school personnel administers a classroom exclusion
because the student’s presence poses an immediate and continuing danger to other students or
school personnel, or an immediate and continuing threat of material and substantial disruption of

the educational process:

(a) The teacher or other school personnel must immediately notify the principal or the
principal’s designee; and

(b) The principal or the principal’s designee must meet with the student as soon as
reasonably possible and administer appropriate discipline.

The district will address student and parent grievances regarding classroom exclusion through
the district’s following grievance procedures.

Grievance Procedures for Classroom Exclusion and Other Forms of Discipline

Any parent/guardian or student who is aggrieved by the administration of classroom exclusion
and/or other forms of discipline, including discipline that excludes a student from transportation
or extra-curricular activities and detention, has the right to an informal conference with the

principal/designee for the purpose of resolving the grievance.

At such conference, the student will have the opportunity to share the student’s perspective and
explanation regarding the behavioral violation.

Student Disciplinary Board

The board recognizes that when a student’s behavior is subject to disciplinary action, review by a
panel of the student’s peers may positively influence the student’s behavior. The board has
discretion to authorize the establishment of one or more student disciplinary boards, which may
also include teachers, administrators, parents, or any combination thereof. If so authorized, the
district will strive to ensure that the student disciplinary board reflects the demographics of the
student body. The student disciplinary board may recommend to the appropriate school authority
other forms of discipline that might benefit the student’s behavior and may also provide input on
whether exclusionary discipline is needed. The school authority has discretion to set aside or
modify the student disciplinary board’s recommendation.

Suspension and Expulsion — General Conditions and Limitations

The district’s use of suspension and expulsion will have a real and substantial relationship to the
lawful maintenance and operation of the school district, including but not limited to, the

preservation of the health and safety of students, employees, and members of the community as
well as the preservation of an educational process that is conducive to learning. The district will




not administer discipline, including suspension and expulsion, in any manner related to a
student’s performance of or failure to perform any act not related to the orderly operation of the
school or school-sponsored activities or any other aspect of preserving the educational process.
The district will not administer any discipline, including suspension and expulsion, in a manner
that would result in the denial or delay of a nutritionally adequate meal to a student or prevent a
student from accomplishing a specific academic grade, subject, or graduation requirements.

The district will provide the parent(s) opportunity for involvement to support the student and
resolve behavioral violations. Additionally, the Superintendent or designee must consider the
student’s individual circumstances and the nature of the violation before administering any
suspension or expulsion to determine whether the suspension or expulsion, and the length of the

exclusion, is warranted.

The principal or designee at each school must report all suspensions and expulsions, including
the behavioral violation that led to the suspension or expulsion, to the Superintendent or designee
within twenty-four (24) hours after the administration. Suspension or expulsion under the
behavioral violation category of “other” is insufficient.

An expulsion or suspension of a student may not be for an indefinite period and must have an
end date.

After suspending or expelling a student, the district will make reasonable efforts to return the
student to the student’s regular educational setting as soon as possible. Additionally, the district
must allow the student to petition for readmission at any time. The district will not administer
any discipline in a manner that prevents a student from completing subject, grade-level, or
graduation requirements.

When administering a suspension or expulsion, the district may deny a student admission to, or
entry upon, real and personal property that the district owns, leases, rents, or controls. The
district must provide an opportunity for students to receive educational services during a
suspension or expulsion in accordance with WAC 392-400-610. The district will not suspend or
expel a student from school for absences or tardiness.

If during a suspension or expulsion the district enrolls a student in another program or course of
study, the district may not preclude the student from returning to the student’s regular
educational setting following the end of the suspension or expulsion, unless one of the following

applies:

The Superintendent or designee grants a petition to extend a student’s expulsion under WAC
392-400-480; The change of setting is to protect victims under WAC 392-400-810; or
Other law precludes the student from returning to their regular educational setting.

In-School Suspension and Short-Term Suspension — Conditions and Limitations

The Superintendent designates principals and vice-principals and their designees with the
authority to administer in-school and short-term suspension. Before considering administering an
in-school or short-term suspension, staff members must have first attempted one or more other
forms of discipline to support the student in meeting behavioral expectations. Before
administering in-school or short-term suspension, the district will consider the student’s




individual circumstances and the nature and circumstances of the behavioral violation to
determine whether the suspension and the length of the suspension, is warranted. The district will
not administer in-school or short-term suspension in a manner that would result in the denial or
delay of a nutritionally adequate meal to a student or prevent a student from accomplishing a
specific academic grade, subject, or graduation requirements.

The district is not required to impose in-school or short-term suspensions and instead, strives to
keep students in school, learning in a safe and appropriate environment. However, there are
circumstances when the district may determine that in-school or short-term suspension is
appropriate. As stated in this policy and procedure, the district will work to develop definitions
and consensus on what constitutes behavioral violations to reduce the effect of implicit or

unconscious bias.

For students in kindergarten through fourth grade, the district will not administer in-school or
short-term suspension for more than ten (10) cumulative school days during any academic term.
For students in grades five through twelve, the district will not administer in-school or short-term
suspension for more than fifteen (15) cumulative school days during any single semester, or
more than ten (10) cumulative school days during any single trimester. Additionally, the district
will not administer a short-term or in-school suspension beyond the school year in which the

behavioral violation occurred.

The district will not administer in-school or short-term suspensions in a manner that would result
in the denial or delay of a nutritionally adequate meal to a student.

When administering an in-school suspension, school personnel will ensure they are physically in
the same location as the student to provide direct supervision during the duration of the in-school
suspension. Additionally, school personnel will ensure they are accessible to offer support to
keep the student current with assignments and course work for all of the student’s regular

subjects or classes.

Long-Term Suspensions and Expulsions — Conditions and Limitations

Before administering a long-term suspension or an expulsion, district personnel must consider
other forms of discipline to support the student in meeting behavioral expectations. The district
must also consider the other general conditions and limitations listed above.

Unless otherwise required by law, the district is not required to impose long-term suspension or
expulsion and may only administer long-term suspension or expulsion for specific behavioral
violations. In general, the district strives to keep students in school, learning in a safe and
appropriate environment. However, in accordance with the other parameters of this policy there
are circumstances when the district may determine that long-term suspension or expulsion is
appropriate for behavioral violations that meet the definitions provided under RCW 28A.600.015

(6)(a) through (d), which include:

a. Having a firearm on school property or school transportation in violation of RCW
28A.600.420;




b. Any of the following offenses listed in RCW 13.04.155, including:

1. any violent offense as defined in RCW 9.94A.030, including:

« any felony that Washington law defines as a class A felony or

an attempt, criminal conspiracy, or solicitation to commit a

class A felony;

manslaughter;

indecent liberties committed by forcible compulsion;

kidnapping;

arson;

assault in the second degree;

assault of a child in the second degree;

robbery;

drive-by shooting; and

vehicular homicide or vehicular assault caused by driving a

vehicle while under the influence of intoxicating liquor or any

drug, or by operating a vehicle in a reckless manner.

il. any sex offense as defined in RCW 9.94A.030, which includes any felony
violation of chapter 9A.44 RCW (other than failure to registered as a sex
offender in violation of 9A.44.132), including rape, rape of a child, child
molestation, sexual misconduct with a minor, indecent liberties,
voyeurism, and any felony conviction or adjudication with a sexual
motivation finding;

ii. any weapons violation of chapter 9.41 RCW, including having a
dangerous weapon at school in violation of RCW 9.41.280; or
iv. unlawful possession or delivery, or both, of a controlled substance in

violation of chapter 69.50 RCW.

C. Two or more violations of the following within a three-year period
1. criminal gang intimidation in violation of RCW 9A.46.120:
il. gang activity on school grounds in violation of RCW 28A.600.455;
iil. willfully disobeying school administrative personnel in violation of RCW
28A.635.020; and
iv. defacing or injuring school property in violation of RCW 28A.635.060;
and
d. Any student behavior that adversely affects the health or safety of other students

or educational staff.

The district may only administer long-term suspension or expulsion for behavioral violations that
meet the definitions provided under RCW 28A.600.015(6)(a) through (d) as outlined above, and
after determining that the student would pose an imminent danger to others or, in the case of
long-term suspension, an imminent threat of material and substantial disruption of the
educational process should they return to school before an imposed length of exclusion.




A long-term suspension may not exceed the length of an academic term. The district may not
administer a long-term suspension beyond the school year in which the behavioral violation

occurred.

An expulsion may not exceed the length of an academic term, unless the Superintendent grants a
petition to extend the expulsion under WAC 392-400-480. The district is not prohibited from
administrating an expulsion beyond the school year in which the behavioral violation occurred.

In accordance with RCW 28A.600.420, a school district must expel a student for no less than one
year if the district has determined that the student has carried or possessed a firearm on school
premises, school-provided transportation, or areas of facilities while being used exclusively by
public schools. The Superintendent may modify the expulsion on a case-by-case basis.

A school district may also suspend or expel a student for up to one year if the student acts with
malice (as defined under RCW 9A.04.110) and displays an instrument that appears to be a
firearm on school premises, school-provided transportation, or areas of facilities while being
used exclusively by public schools. These provisions do not apply to students while engaged in a
district authorized military education; a district authorized firearms convention or safety course;
or district authorized rifle competition.

Except for a firearm violation under WAC 392-400-820, the district will not impose a long-term
suspension or an expulsion for any student in kindergarten through fourth grade.

After suspending or expelling a student, the district will make reasonable efforts to return the
student to the student’s regular educational setting as soon as possible.

Suspensions and Expulsions — Initial Hearing

Before administering any suspension or expulsion, the district will attempt to notify the student’s
parent(s) as soon as reasonably possible regarding the behavioral violation and the principal or
designee will conduct an informal initial hearing with the student to hear the student’s
perspective. At the initial hearing, the principal or designee must provide the student an
opportunity to contact their parent(s), or, in the case of long-term suspension or expulsion, the
principal or designee must make a reasonable attempt to contact their parent(s) to provide an
opportunity for the parents to participate in the initial hearing in person or by telephone. The
district must hold the initial hearing in a language the student and parents understand.

At the initial hearing, the principal or designee will provide the student:

« Notice of the student’s violation of this policy;

o An explanation of the evidence regarding the behavioral violation;

e An explanation of the discipline that may be administered; and

« An opportunity for the student to share their perspective and provide explanation
regarding the behavioral violation.

10

—_——— e = — =



Suspensions and Expulsions — Notice

Following the initial hearing, the principal or designee will inform the student of the disciplinary
decision regarding the behavioral violation, including the date when any suspension or expulsion

will begin and end.

No later than one (1) school business day following the initial hearing with the student, the
district will provide written notice of the suspension or expulsion to the student and parents in
person, by mail, or by email in a language and form the student and parents will understand. The

written notice must include:

a. A description of the student’s behavior and how the behavior violated this policy;

b. The duration and conditions of the suspension or expulsion, including the dates on
which the suspension or expulsion will begin and end;

c. The other forms of discipline that the district considered or attempted, and an
explanation of the district’s decision to administer the suspension or expulsion;

d. The opportunity to receive educational services during the suspension or
expulsion;

e. The right of the student and parent(s) to an informal conference with the principal
or designee; and

f. The right of the student and parent(s) to appeal the suspension or expulsion; and

g. For any long-term suspension or expulsion, the opportunity for the student and

parents to participate in a reengagement meeting.
Emergency Expulsions — Conditions and Limitations

The district may immediately remove a student from the student’s current school placement,
subject to the following requirements:

The district must have sufficient cause to believe that the student’s presence poses:

o An immediate and continuing danger to other students or school personnel; or
« An immediate and continuing threat of material and substantial disruption of the

educational process.

The district may not impose an emergency expulsion solely for investigating student conduct.

For purposes of determining sufficient cause for an emergency expulsion, the phrase “immediate
and continuing threat of material and substantial disruption of the educational process” means:

« The student’s behavior results in an extreme disruption of the educational process that
creates a substantial barrier to learning for other students across the school day; and

o School personnel have exhausted reasonable attempts at administering other forms of
discipline to support the student in meeting behavioral expectations.

An emergency expulsion may not exceed ten consecutive school days. An emergency expulsion
must end or be converted to another form of discipline within ten (10) school days from its start.

11




If the district converts an emergency expulsion to a suspension or expulsion, the district must:

(a) Apply any days that the student was emergency expelled before the conversion to the

total length of the suspension or expulsion; and
(b) Provide the student and parents with notice and due process rights under WAC 392-

400-430 through 392-400-480 appropriate to the new disciplinary action.

All emergency expulsions, including the reason the student’s presence poses an immediate and
continuing danger to other students or school personnel, must be reported to the Superintendent
or designee within twenty-four (24) hours after the start of the emergency expulsion.

Emergency Expulsions — Notice

After an emergency expulsion, the district must attempt to notify the student’s parents, as soon as
reasonably possible, regarding the reason the district believes the student’s presence poses an
immediate and continuing danger to other students or school personnel, or an immediate and
continuing threat of material and substantial disruption of the education process.

Within twenty-four (24) hours after an emergency expulsion, the district will provide written
notice to the student and parents in person, by mail, or by email. The written notice must include:

o The reason the student’s presence poses an immediate and continuing danger to students
or school personnel, or poses an immediate and continuing threat of material and

substantial disruption of the educational process;

« The duration and conditions of the emergency expulsion, including the date on which the
emergency expulsion will begin and end;

o+ The opportunity to receive educational services during the emergency expulsion;

« The right of the student and parent(s) to an informal conference with the principal or
designee; and

o The right of the student and parent(s) to appeal the emergency expulsion, including where
and to whom the appeal must be requested.

Optional Conference With Principal

If a student or the parent(s) disagree with the district’s decision to suspend, expel, or emergency
expel the student, the student or parent(s) may request an informal conference with the principal
or designee to resolve the disagreement. The parent or student may request an informal

conference orally or in writing.

The principal or designee must hold the conference within three (3) school business days after
receiving the request, unless otherwise agreed to by the student and parent(s).

During the informal conference, the student and parent(s) will have the opportunity to share the
student’s perspective and explanation regarding the behavioral violation and the events that led
to the exclusion. The student and parent will also have the opportunity to confer with the
principal or designee and school personnel involved in the incident that led to the suspension or
expulsion and discuss other forms of discipline that the district could administer.

12




An informal conference will not limit the right of the student or parent(s) to appeal the
suspension, expulsion, or emergency expulsion, participate in a reengagement meeting, or
petition for readmission.

Appeals

Requesting Appeal
The appeal provisions for in-school and short-term suspension differ from those for long-term

suspension and expulsion. The appeal provisions for long-term suspension or expulsion and
emergency expulsion have similarities but the timelines differ.

A student or the parent(s) may appeal a suspension, expulsion, or emergency expulsion to the
Superintendent or designee orally or in writing. For suspension or expulsion, the request to
appeal must be within five (5) school business days from when the district provided the student
and parent with written notice. For emergency expulsion, the request to appeal must be within
three (3) school business days from when the district provided the student and parent with

written notice.

When an appeal for long-term suspension or expulsion is pending, the district may continue to
administer the long-term suspension or expulsion during the appeal process, subject to the
following requirements:

« The suspension or expulsion is for no more than ten (10) consecutive school days from
the initial hearing or until the appeal is decided, whichever is earlier;

o The district will apply any days of suspension or expulsion occurring before the appeal is
decided to the term of the student’s suspension or expulsion and may not extend the term
of the student’s suspension or expulsion; and

o If the student returns to school before the appeal is decided, the district will provide the
student an opportunity to make up assignments and tests missed during the suspension or
expulsion upon the student’s return.

In-School and Short-Term Suspension Appeal
For short-term and in-school suspensions, the Superintendent or designee will provide the
student and parents the opportunity to share the student’s perspective and explanation regarding

the behavioral violation orally or in writing.

The Superintendent or designee must deliver a written appeal decision to the student and
parent(s) in person, by mail, or by email within two (2) school business days after receiving the
appeal. The written decision must include:

e The decision to affirm, reverse, or modify the suspension;

o The duration and conditions of the suspension, including the beginning and ending dates;

e The educational services the district will offer to the student during the suspension; and

« Notice of the student and parent(s)’ right to request review and reconsideration of the
appeal decision, including where and to whom to make such a request.

13




Long-Term Suspension or Expulsion and Emergency Expulsion Appeal

For long-term suspension or expulsion and emergency expulsions, the Superintendent or
designee will provide the student and parent(s) written notice in person, by mail, or by email,
within one (1) school business day after receiving the appeal request, unless the parties agree to a
different timeline. Written notice will include:

e The time, date, and location of the appeal hearing;

o The name(s) of the official(s) presiding over the appeal;

« The right of the student and parent(s) to inspect the student’s education records;

o The right of the student and parent(s) to inspect any documentary or physical evidence
and a list of any witnesses that will be introduced at the hearing;

o The rights of the student and parent(s) to be represented by legal counsel; question
witnesses; share the student’s perspective and explanation; and introduce relevant
documentary, physical, or testimonial evidence; and

e  Whether the district will offer a reengagement meeting before the appeal hearing.

For long-term suspension or expulsion, the student, parent(s) and district may agree to hold a
reengagement meeting and develop a reengagement plan before the appeal hearing. The student,
parent(s), and district may mutually agree to postpone the appeal hearing while participating in
the reengagement process.

Hearings

A hearing to appeal a long-term suspension or expulsion or emergency expulsion is a quasi-
judicial process exempt from the Open Public Meetings Act (OPMA). To protect the privacy of
student(s) and others involved, the district will hold hearing without public notice and without
public access unless the student(s) and/or the parent(s) or their counsel requests an open hearing.
Regardless of whether the hearing is open or closed, the district will make reasonable efforts to
comply with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) concerning confidentiality

of student education records.

When students are charged with violating the same rule and have acted in concert and the facts
are essentially the same for all students, a single hearing may be conducted for them if the
hearing officer believes that the following conditions exist:

o A single hearing will not likely result in confusion; and
e No student will have his/her interest substantially prejudiced by a group hearing.

If the official presiding over the hearing finds that a student’s interests will be substantially
prejudiced by a group hearing, the presiding official may order a separate hearing for that
student. The parent and student have the right to petition for an individual hearing.

For long-term suspension or expulsion, the district will hold an appeal hearing within three (3)
school business days after the Superintendent or designee received the appeal request, unless
otherwise agreed to by the student and parent(s).

For emergency expulsion, the district will hold an appeal hearing within two (2) school business
days after the Superintendent or designee received the appeal request, unless the student and

parent(s) agree to another time.

14




The school board may designate a discipline appeal council to hear and decide any appeals in
this policy and procedure or to review and reconsider a district’s appeal decisions. A discipline
appeal council must consist of at least three persons appointed by the school board for fixed
terms. All members of a discipline appeal council must be knowledgeable about the rules in
Chapter 392-400 WAC and this policy and procedure. The school board may also designate the
Superintendent or a hearing officer to hear and decide appeals. The presiding official(s) may not
have been involved in the student’s behavioral violation or the decision to suspend or expel the

student.

Upon request, the student and parent(s) or their legal representative may inspect any
documentary or physical evidence and list of any witnesses that the district will introduce at the
appeal hearing. The district must make the information available as soon as reasonably possible,
but no later than the end of the school business day before the appeal hearing. The district may
also request to inspect any documentary or physical evidence and list of any witnesses that the
student and parent(s) intend to introduce at the appeal hearing. The student and parent(s) must
make this information available as soon as reasonably possible, but no later than the end of the

school business day before the appeal hearing.

Upon request, the student and parent(s) may review the student’s education records. The district
will make the records available as soon as reasonably possible, but no later than the end of the

school business day before the appeal hearing.

If a witness for the district cannot or does not appear at the appeal hearing, the presiding
official(s) may excuse the witness’ nonappearance if the district establishes that:

o The district made a reasonable effort to produce the witness; and
o The witness’ failure to appear is excused by fear of reprisal or another compelling reason.

The district will record the appeal hearing by manual, electronic, or other type of recording
device and upon request of the student or parent(s) provide them a copy of the recording.

For long-term suspension or expulsion, the presiding official(s) must base the decision solely on
the evidence presented at the hearing. The presiding official(s) will provide a written decision to
the student and parent(s) in person, by mail, or by email within three (3) school business days
after the appeal hearing. The written decision must include:

e The findings of fact;
e A determination whether (i) the student’s behavior violated this policy; (ii) the behavioral

violation reasonably warrants the suspension or expulsion and the length of the
suspension or expulsion; and (iii) the suspension or expulsion is affirmed, reversed, or

modified;
e The duration and conditions of suspension or expulsion, including the beginning and

ending dates;
o Notice of the right of the student and parent(s) to request a review and reconsideration of

the appeal decision. The notice will include where and to whom to make such a request;

and
« Notice of the opportunity for a reengagement meeting and contact information for the

person who will schedule it.

15




For emergency expulsion, the district will provide a written decision to the student and parent(s)
in person, by mail, or by email within one (1) school business day after the appeal hearing. The

written decision must include:

The findings of fact;
A determination whether the student’s presence continues to pose (i) an immediate and

continuing danger to students or school personnel; or (ii) an immediate and continuing
threat of material and substantial disruption of the educational process;

Whether the district will end the emergency expulsion or convert the emergency
expulsion to a suspension or expulsion. If the district converts the emergency expulsion
to a suspension or expulsion, the district will provide the student and parent(s) notice and
due process consistent with the disciplinary action to which the emergency expulsion was
converted; and

Notice of the right of the student and parent(s) to request a review and reconsideration of
the appeal decision. The notice will include where and to whom to make such a request.

Reconsideration of Appeal

The student or parents may request the school board or discipline appeal council, if established
by the school board, review and reconsider the district’s appeal decision for long-term
suspensions or expulsions and emergency expulsions. This request may be either oral or in

writing.

For long-term suspension or expulsion, the student or parent(s) may request a review within ten
(10) school business days from when the district provided the student and parent(s) with the

written appeal decision.

For emergency expulsion, the student or parent(s) may request a review within five (5) school
business days from when the district provided the student and parent(s) with the written appeal

decision.

In reviewing the district’s decision, the school board or discipline appeal council, if
established, must consider (i) all documentary and physical evidence from the appeal
hearing related to the behavioral violation; (ii) any records from the appeal hearing; (iii)
relevant state law; and (iv) this policy adopted.

The school board (or discipline appeal council) may request to meet with the student and
parent(s), the principal, witnesses, and/or school personnel to hear further arguments and
gather additional information.

The decision of the school board (or discipline appeal council) will be made only by
board or discipline council members who were not involved in (i) the behavioral
violation; (ii) the decision to suspend or expel the student; or (iii) the appeal decision. If
the discipline appeal council presided over the appeal hearing, the school board will
conduct the review and reconsideration.

For long-term suspension or expulsion, the school board (or discipline appeal council) will
provide a written decision to the student and parent(s) in person, by mail, or by email within ten

16



(10) school business days after receiving the request for review and reconsideration. The written
decision must identify:

o Whether the school board (or discipline appeal council) affirms, reverses, or modifies the
suspension or expulsion;

e The duration and conditions of the suspension or expulsion, including the beginning and
ending dates of the suspension or expulsion; and

+ For long-term suspensions or expulsions, notice of the opportunity to participate in a
reengagement meeting.

For emergency expulsion, the school board (or discipline appeal council) will provide a written
decision to the student and parent(s) in person, by mail, or by email within five (5) school
business days after receiving the request for review and reconsideration. The written decision

must identify:

o  Whether the school board [or discipline appeal council] affirms or reverses the school
district’s decision that the student’s presence posed (i) an immediate and continuing
danger to students or school personnel; or (ii) an immediate and continuing threat of
material and substantial disruption of the educational process.

o If the emergency expulsion has not yet ended or been converted, whether the district will
end the emergency expulsion or convert the emergency expulsion to a suspension or
expulsion. If the district converts the emergency expulsion to a suspension or expulsion,
the district will provide the student and parent(s) notice and due process under WAC 392-
400-430 through 392-400-480 consistent with the disciplinary action to which the
emergency expulsion was converted

Petition to Extend an Expulsion

When risk to public health or safety warrants extending a student’s expulsion, the principal or
designee may petition the Superintendent or designee for authorization to exceed the academic
term limitation on an expulsion. The petition must inform the Superintendent or designee of:

o The behavioral violation that resulted in the expulsion and the public health or safety

concerns;

« The student’s academic, attendance, and discipline history;

» Any nonacademic supports and behavioral services the student was offered or received
during the expulsion;

o The student’s academic progress during the expulsion and the educational services
available to the student during the expulsion;

o The proposed extended length of the expulsion; and

¢ The student’s reengagement plan.

The principal or designee may petition to extend an expulsion only after the development of a
reengagement plan under WAC 392-400-710 and before the end of the expulsion. For violations
of WAC 392-400-820 involving a firearm on school premises, school-provided transportation, or
areas of facilities while being used exclusively by public schools, the principal or designee may
petition to extend an expulsion at any time.

17



Notice
The district will provide written notice of a petition to the student and parent(s) in person, by
mail, or by email within one (1) school business day from the date the Superintendent or

designee received the petition. The written notice must include:

e A copy of the petition;
o+ The right of the student and parent(s) to an informal conference with the Superintendent

or designee to be held within five (5) school business days from the date the district
provided written notice to the student and parent(s); and

o The right of the student and parent(s) to respond to the petition orally or in writing to the
Superintendent or designee within five (5) school business days from the date the district

provided the written notice.

The Superintendent or designee may grant the petition only if there is substantial evidence that, if
the student were to return to the student’s previous school of placement after the length of an
academic term, the student would pose a risk to public health or safety. The Superintendent or
designee must deliver a written decision to the principal, the student, and the student’s parent(s)
in person, by mail, or by email within ten (10) school business days after receiving the petition.

If the Superintendent or designee does not grant the petition, the written decision must identify
the date when the expulsion will end.

If the Superintendent or designee grants the petition, the written decision must include:

o The date on which the extended expulsion will end,;

e The reason that, if the student were to return before the initial expulsion end date, the
student would pose a risk to public health or safety; and

« Notice of the right of the student and parent(s) to request a review and reconsideration.
The notice will include where and to whom to make such a request;

Review and Reconsideration of Extension of Expulsion

The student or parent(s) may request that the school board (or discipline appeal council, if
established by the board) review and reconsider the decision to extend the student’s expulsion.
The student or parents may request the review orally or in writing within ten (10) school business
days from the date the Superintendent or designee provides the written decision.

The school board (or discipline appeal council) may request to meet with the student or parent(s)
or the principal to hear further arguments and gather additional information.

The decision of the school board (or discipline appeal council) may be made only board or
discipline appeal council members who were not involved in the behavioral violation, the

decision to expel the student, or the appeal decision.
The school board (or discipline appeal council) will provide a written decision to the student and

parent(s) in person, by mail, or by email within ten (10) school business days after receiving the
request for review and reconsideration. The written decision must identify:

18




¢ Whether the school board or discipline appeal council affirms, reverses, or modifies the
decision to extend the student’s expulsion; and
« The date when the extended expulsion will end.

Any extension of an expulsion may not exceed the length of an academic term.

The district will annually report the number of petitions approved and denied to the Office of
Superintendent of Public Instruction.

Educational Services

The district will offer educational services to enable a student who is suspended, expelled or
emergency expelled to:

« Continue to participate in the general education curriculum;
e Meet the educational standards established within the district; and
« Complete subject, grade-level, and graduation requirements.

When providing a student the opportunity to receive educational services during exclusionary
discipline, the school must consider:

o Meaningful input from the student, parents, and the student’s teachers;

o  Whether the student’s regular educational services include English language development
services, special education, accommodations and related services under Section 504 of
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, or supplemental services designed to support the student’s
academic achievement; and

o Access to any necessary technology, transportation, or resources the student needs to
participate fully in the educational services.

After considering the factors and input described above, the district will determine a student’s

educational services on a case-by-case basis. Any educational services in an alternative setting
should be comparable, equitable, and appropriate to the regular educational services a student

would have received in the absence of exclusionary discipline.

As soon as reasonably possible after administering a suspension or expulsion, the district will
provide written notice to the student and parents about the educational services the district will
provide. The notice will include a description of the educational services and the name and
contact information of the school personnel who can offer support to keep the student current
with assignments and course work.

For students subjected to suspension or emergency expulsion up to five (5) days, a school must
provide at least the following:

o Course work, including any assigned homework, from all of the student’s regular subjects

or classes;
e Access to school personnel who can offer support to keep the student current with

assignments and course work for all of the student’s regular subjects or classes; and

19




« An opportunity for the student to make up any assignments and tests missed during the
period of suspension or emergency expulsion.

For students subjected to suspension or emergency expulsion for six (6) to ten (10) consecutive
school days, a school must provide at least the following:

o Course work, including any assigned homework, from all of the student’s regular subjects
or classes;

« An opportunity for the student to make up any assignments and tests missed during the
period of suspension or emergency expulsion; and

o Access to school personnel who can offer support to keep the student current with
assignments and course work for all of the student’s regular subjects or classes. School
personnel will make a reasonable attempt to contact the student or parents within three
(3) school business days following the start of the suspension or emergency expulsion
and periodically thereafter until the suspension or emergency expulsion ends to:

e Coordinate the delivery and grading of course work between the student and the
student’s teacher(s) at a frequency that would allow the student to keep current
with assignments and course work for all of the student’s regular subjects or
classes; and

« Communicate with the student, parents, and the student’s teacher(s) about the
student’s academic progress.

For students subject to expulsion or suspension for more than ten (10) consecutive school days, a
school will make provisions for educational services in accordance with the “Course of Study”
provisions of WAC 392-121-107.

Readmission
Readmission Application Process

The readmission process is different from and does not replace the appeal process. Students who
have been suspended or expelled may make a written request for readmission to the district at
any time. If a student desires to be readmitted at the school from which he/she has been
suspended/expelled, the student will submit a written application to the principal, who will
recommend admission or non-admission. If a student wishes admission to another school, he/she

will submit the written application to the Superintendent. The application will include:
o The reasons the student wants to return and why the request should be considered;
e Any evidence that supports the request; and
A supporting statement from the parent or others who may have assisted the student.

The Superintendent will advise the student and parent of the decision within seven (7) school
days of the receipt of such application.

20




Reengagement

Reengagement Meeting

The reengagement process is distinct from a written request for readmission. The reengagement
meeting is also distinct from the appeal process, including an appeal hearing, and does not
replace an appeal hearing. The district must convene a reengagement meeting for students with a

long-term suspension or expulsion.

Before convening a reengagement meeting, the district will communicate with the student and
parent(s) to schedule the meeting time and location. The purpose of the reengagement meeting is
to discuss with the student and parent(s) a plan to reengage the student.

The reengagement meeting must occur:

»  Within twenty (20) calendar days of the start of the student’s long-term suspension or
expulsion, but no later than five (5) calendar days before the student’s return to school; or

e As soon as reasonably possible, if the student or parents request a prompt reengagement
meeting.

Reengagement Plan

The district will collaborate with the student and parents to develop a culturally sensitive and
culturally responsive reengagement plan tailored to the student’s individual circumstances to
support the student in successfully returning to school. In developing a reengagement plan, the

district must consider:

e The nature and circumstances of the incident that led to the student’s suspension or
expulsion;

e As appropriate, students’ cultural histories and contexts, family cultural norms and
values, community resources, and community and parent outreach;

o Shortening the length of time that the student is suspended or expelled;

« Providing academic and nonacademic supports that aid in the student’s academic success
and keep the student engaged an on track to graduate; and

 Supporting the student parents, or school personnel in taking action to remedy the
circumstances that resulted in the suspension or expulsion and preventing similar
circumstances from recurring.

The district must document the reengagement plan and provide a copy of the plan to the student
and parents. The district must ensure that both the reengagement meeting and the reengagement
plan are in a language the student and parents understand.

Behavior Agreements

The district authorizes school principals and assistant principals to enter into behavior
agreements with students and parents in response to behavioral violations, including agreements
to reduce the length of a suspension conditioned on the participation in treatment services,
agreements in lieu of suspension or expulsion, or agreements holding a suspension or expulsion

21




in abeyance. Behavior agreements will also describe district actions planned to support students
in meeting behavioral expectations. Behavior agreements may be supplemental to but will not
replace best practices and strategies implemented at the classroom level to support students in
meeting behavioral expectations. Behavior agreements entered into with students and parents
under this section may not replace or negate provisions within a student’s Individual Education
Plan (IEP), 504 Plan, or Behavioral Intervention Plan (BIP). The district will provide any
behavior agreement in a language and form the student and parents understand, which may
require language assistance for students and parents with limited-English proficiency under Title
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,

A behavior agreement does not waive a student’s opportunity to participate in a reengagement
meeting or to receive educational services. The duration of a behavior agreement must not
exceed the length of an academic term. A behavior agreement does not preclude the district from
administering discipline for behavioral violations that occur after the district enters into an
agreement with the student and parents.

Exceptions for Protecting Victims

The district may preclude a student from returning to the student’s regular educational setting
following the end date of a suspension or expulsion to protect victims of certain offenses as

follows:

o A student committing an offense under RCW 28A.600.460(2), when the activity is
directed toward the teacher, shall not be assigned to that teacher’s classroom for the
duration of the student’s attendance at that school or any other school where the teacher
is assigned;

e A student who commits an offense under RCW 28A.600.460(3), when directed toward
another student, may be removed from the classroom of the victim for the duration of the
student's attendance at that school or any other school where the victim is enrolled.

Adopted: September 10, 2018
Revised:

22




Procedure 3241

AKXYM) schoordisTRICT STUDENTS

CLASSROOM MANAGEMENT, DISCIPLINE
AND CORRECTIVE ACTION

Definitions

 Discipline means all forms of corrective action other than emergency removal,
suspension or expulsion. Discipline includes the exclusion of a student from any type of
activity conducted by or on behalf of the school district and exclusion of a student from a
class by a teacher or administrator for a period of time that does not exceed the balance of
the immediate class period, provided the student is in the custody of a school district
employee for the balance of such period.

o Discretionary Discipline, under RCW 28A.600.015 refers to any form of corrective
action taken in response to student misconduct that violates the rules, policies, or
procedures adopted by the board of directors, other than the misconduct listed in one or
more of the categories in this procedure set forth below in the section entitled
“Suspension, Expulsions, and Discretionary Discipline.” Discretionary discipline cannot
include long-term suspension or expulsion.

« Emergency Removal means a student’s immediate removal from a class, subject or
activity by a certificated teacher or an administrator or a school bus driver and sending of
that student to the building principal or designee, when the teacher or administrator has
good and sufficient reason to believe that the student’s presence poses an immediate and
continuing danger to the student, other students or school staff or an immediate and
continuing threat of substantial disruption of the class, subject, activity, or educational
process.

« Suspension means the denial of attendance for any single subject or class or for any full
schedule of subjects or classes for a stated period of time. Suspension may also include
denial of admission to, or entry upon, real and personal property that is owned, leased,
rented or controlled by the district.

o Short-Term Suspension means suspension for any portion of a calendar day up
to and not exceeding ten (10) consecutive school days.

o Long-Term Suspension means a suspension that exceeds ten (10) consecutive
school days. A long-term suspension may not exceed the length of an academic
term as defined by the school board and may not be imposed as a form of
discretionary discipline except for the offenses listed below in the section entitled
“Suspension, Expulsions, and Discretionary Discipline.”

o Emergency Expulsion means an emergency removal from school for up to, but not
exceeding, ten (10) consecutive school days from the student’s current school placement
by the superintendent or designee. An emergency expulsion requires the superintendent
or designee to have good and sufficient reason to believe that the student’s presence
poses an immediate and continuing danger to other students or school staff or an
immediate and continuing threat of substantial disruption of the educational process. An
emergency expulsion must end or be converted to another form of corrective action




within ten (10) school days from the date of the emergency removal from school. If the
district converts the emergency expulsion to another form of corrective action, it must
provide notice and an explanation of due process rights to the student and
parent/guardian.

« Expulsion means a denial of attendance for a period of time up to but no longer than
length of an academic term (as defined by the board of directors) from the time the
student is removed from his/her current school placement by a school district
superintendent or designee. An expulsion may not be for an indefinite period of time and
may not be imposed as a form of discretionary discipline except for the offenses listed
below in the section entitled “Suspension, Expulsions, and Discretionary Discipline.” An
expulsion may be extended beyond the length of an academic term if: 1) the school
petitions the superintendent for an extension; and 2) the superintendent authorizes the
extension pursuant to the superintendent of public instruction’s rules adopted for this
purpose (see Petition for Extension of Length of Expulsion below). An expulsion may
also include a denial of admission to, or entry upon, real or personal property that is
owned, leased, rented or controlled by the district.

+ School Business Day means any calendar day except Saturdays, Sundays and any federal
and school holidays upon which the office of the superintendent is open to the public for
business. A school business day concludes upon the closure of the superintendent’s
office for the calendar day.

o School Day means a calendar day except school holidays on which enrolled students are
engaged in educational activity which is planned, supervised and conducted by or under
the supervision of certificated staff and on which day all or any portion of enrolled
students participate in such educational activity.

« Reengagement Meeting means a meeting held between the district and the student and
parent/guardian to discuss how to return a long-term suspended or expelled student to an
educational setting as soon as possible.

» Reengagement Plan means a culturally sensitive and culturally responsive written plan
developed between the district and a student and his/her parent or guardian designed to
aid the student in taking the necessary steps to remedy the situation that led to the
student’s suspension or expulsion and to return the student to the educational setting as
soon as possible. Parents or guardians of students must have access to, provide
meaningful input on, and have the opportunity to participate in the student’s
reengagement plan.

Superintendent Authority
The superintendent or designee will have the authority to discipline, suspend or expel students.

The superintendent or designee will:

» Identify the conditions under which a teacher may exclude a student from his or her class;

and
 Designate which staff members have the authority to initiate or to impose discipline,

suspensions or expulsions.

No student will be expelled, suspended, or disciplined in any manner for the performance of or
failure to perform any act not related to the orderly operation of the school or school-sponsored
activities or any other aspect of the educational process.




No form of discipline will be enforced in such a manner as to prevent a student from
accomplishing a specific academic grade, subject or graduation requirements.

Notification of Suspensions of Students Eligible for Special Education Services

The principal will notify special education staff of any suspensions to be imposed on a student
who is currently eligible for special education services or any student who might be deemed
eligible for special education. To the extent that suspensions may cumulatively or consecutively
exceed ten (10) days, the principal will notify relevant special education staff so that the District
can ensure compliance with special education discipline procedures.

Notification of Procedures Relating to Student Behavior

Principals in each school will annually publish and make available to students, parents or
guardians, staff, and the community the rules, policies, and procedures of the District that
establish misconduct and the written procedures for administering corrective action. The
publication will also define student rights and responsibilities relating to student behavior.

Pursuant to the Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act (Amendments of 1989), students and
parents will be given annual notice of the standard of conduct the district requires regarding
controlled substance and alcohol use, and a statement of the disciplinary sanctions for violations

of that standard.

The District will also, in consultation with staff, students, student’s families, and the community,
periodically review and update the District’s rules, policies, and procedures related to student

discipline.
Rights and Responsibilities of Certificated Staff
Certificated staff will have the right to:

o Expect students to comply with school rules;

« Develop and/or review building rules relating to student conduct and control at
least once each year. Building rules will be consistent with district rules relating to
student conduct;

e Receive any complaint or grievance regarding corrective action of students.
Certificated staff will be given the opportunity to present their version of the
incident and to meet with the complaining party in the event that a conference is
arranged,

o Use such reasonable action as is necessary to protect himself/ herself, a student, or
others from physical abuse or injury;

Teachers have the right to exclude any student who creates a disruption of the educational
process in violation of building disciplinary standards, while under the teacher’s
supervision, from his/her individual classroom or instructional or activity area for all or
any portion of the balance of the school day or until the principal or designee and teacher
have conferred, whichever occurs first. Except in emergency circumstances as provided
for in WAC 392-400-290 (see Emergency Removal below), the teacher will attempt one
or more forms of corrective action prior to excluding the student. In no event, without the
consent of the teacher, may an excluded student return to the class during the balance of




that class or activity period or up to the following two days, or until the principal and the
teacher have conferred.

Certificated staff will have the responsibility to:

¢ Observe the rights of students;
o Supervise student behavior and enforce the rules of student conduct fairly,

consistently, and without discrimination. Any infractions will be reported orally
and in writing to the principal, as soon as possible, regardless of any corrective
actions taken by the teacher;

e Maintain good order in the classroom, in the hallways, on the playgrounds or other
common areas of the school, and on school buses (i.e., during field trips);

e Maintain accurate attendance records and report all cases of truancy;

o Set an appropriate example of personal conduct and avoid statements which may
be demeaning or personally offensive to any student or group of students; and

e Meet with a parent(s) within five (5) school days upon request to hear a complaint
regarding the use of classroom materials and/or teaching strategies that are being

employed in the classroom.
o Detain a student after school with due consideration for bus transportation.

Principals will have the responsibility to:

« Impose suspension or expulsion when appropriate;

e Notify parents when students are suspended or expelled; and

¢ Confer with certificated staff at least once per year to develop and/or review rules
of conduct to be employed in the school and corrective actions that may be
employed in the event of rule infractions.

Unexcused Absences and Tardiness

Students with one or more unexcused absences and/or tardiness and subject to compulsory
attendance pursuant to Chapter 28A.225 RCW may be subject to corrective action that is
reasonably calculated to modify the student’s conduct. However, if a district imposes corrective
action on a student for one or more unexcused absences, it must:

o Provide notice to the student’s parent/guardian in writing in English or the primary
language of the parent/guardian, that the student has failed to attend school without valid
justification, and by any other means necessary to provide notice of these facts;

o Schedule a conference or conferences with the parents/guardians and the student to
analyze the causes of the student’s absences and determine whether the student would be
appropriately placed in a special program designed for his/her educational success; and

» Take steps to reduce the student’s absences, which include, where appropriate in the
judgment of district staff, adjustments to the student’s school program or school or
courses or assisting the parent/guardian in obtaining supplementary services.

Additionally, a student’s academic grade or credit may only be adversely affected by reason of
tardiness or absences if:




« The student’s attendance or participation is related to the instructional objectives or goals
of the particular subject or course;

o The student’s attendance or participation has been identified by the teacher pursuant to
district policy as a basis for grading the subject or course; and

e The circumstances pertaining to the student’s inability to attend school have been taken
into consideration, including whether the absences are directly related to the student’s
disability under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1964, Title II of the Americans
with Disabilities Act (ADA) or the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA).

Alternative Forms of Corrective Action

The board encourages the use of alternative forms of correction action when possible and
practicable in light of the duty to maintain safe and orderly school environments conducive to
student learning. District administrators may consider alternative forms of corrective action—
including programs intended to lessen the time of exclusion from class attendance—which have
been approved by the board and/or superintendent.

Except in cases involving exceptional misconduct, district administrators must impose
alternative forms of corrective action for incidents of misbehavior prior to imposing a suspension
or expulsion for the same type of misbehavior.

Student Disciplinary Boards

The board recognizes that a student’s behavior may be positively influenced when an incident
giving rise to corrective action is reviewed by a panel of the student’s peers. The board may, in
its discretion, authorize the establishment of one or more student disciplinary boards composed
of students, which may also include teachers, administrators, parents or any combination thereof
pursuant to WAC 392-400-220. The student disciplinary board may be authorized to prescribe
reasonable discipline and may recommend suspension or expulsion to the appropriate school
authority. The school authority will be authorized to set aside or modify the student disciplinary

board’s recommendation.

Student Discipline
Student discipline will be enforced in order to maintain a safe and orderly school environment

that is conducive to student learning.

The methods employed in enforcing the rules of student conduct involve professional judgment.
Such judgment should be:

o Consistent from day to day and student to student;

« Guided by appropriate classroom management strategies;

o Balanced against the severity of the misconduct;

e Appropriate to the student’s circumstances and prior behavior;
e Fair to the student, parent/guardian, and others; and

o Effective

Since these criteria may conflict, established procedures must be followed in correcting
misbehavior. No form of discipline will be enforced in such a manner as to prevent a student
from accomplishing specific academic grade, subject or graduation requirements. Appeal
procedures have been established in order to provide for an opportunity for every corrective




action to be reviewed by someone in authority and to instill confidence among students and
parents as to the essential fairness of staff.

Detention
For minor infractions of school rules or regulations, or for minor misconduct, staff may

detain students after school hours with due consideration for bus transportation.

Preceding the assignment of detention, the staff member will inform the student of the
nature of the offense charged and of the specific conduct which allegedly constitutes the

violation. The student will be afforded an opportunity to explain or justify his/her actions

to the staff member.

Detention will not begin until the parent/guardian has been notified (except in the case of

an adult student) for the purpose of informing him/her of the basis and reason for the

detention and to permit him/her to make arrangements for the necessary transportation of

the student when he/she has been detained after school hours for corrective action.

Students detained for corrective action will be under the direct supervision of the staff
member or another member of the professional staff.

Grievance and Appeal Process for Student Discipline

Any parent/guardian or student who is aggrieved by the imposition of discipline will have

the right to an informal conference with the principal or designee for the purpose of
resolving the grievance. At such conference the student and parent will be subject to
questioning by the principal and will be entitled to question staff involved in the matter

being grieved.

The parent/guardian and student, after exhausting this remedy, will have the right, upon

two (2) school business days’ prior notice, to present a written and/or oral grievance to the
Discipline Appeals Council. A closed meeting may be held for the purpose of considering

the grievance. The Council will notify the parent and student of its response to the
grievance within five (5) business days after the date when the grievance was presented.
The disciplinary action will continue notwithstanding implementation of the grievance

procedure unless the principal, superintendent, superintendent designee, or board elects to

postpone such action.

If the grievance is not resolved at the Discipline Appeals Council level, the parent/-
guardian and student, upon two (2) school business days’ prior notice, will have the right
to present a written or oral grievance to the board at its next regular meeting, or at a
meeting held within 30 days, whichever is earlier. A closed meeting may be held for the
purpose of considering the grievance.

The board will notify the parent/guardian and student of its response to the gricvance

within ten (10) school business days after the date when the grievance was presented. The

disciplinary action will continue notwithstanding implementation of the grievance
procedure unless the principal, superintendent or board elects to postpone such action.




If a grievance request is not received within the prescribed period of time set forth above,
the right to a grievance will be deemed waived without further opportunity for the student

and/or parent/guardian to contest the matter.

Emergency Removal from Class or Subject

A student may be removed immediately from a class or subject by a teacher or administrator
without other forms of corrective action and sent to the principal or a designated school official,
without first attempting corrective action, provided that the teacher or administrator has good and
sufficient reason to believe that the student’s presence poses an immediate and continuing danger
to the student, other students or staff or an immediate and continuing threat of substantial
disruption of the class, subject, or educational process of the student’s school. The removal will

continue only until:

o The danger or threat ceases; OR
« The principal or designee acts to impose corrective action.

The principal or designee will meet with the student as soon as reasonably possible following the
removal and take or initiate appropriate corrective action. The meeting will take place no later

than the beginning of the school day following the student’s emergency removal. The teacher or
administrator who removed the student will be notified of the action taken or initiated.

Suspensions, Expulsions, and Discretionary Discipline
Suspensions (including long-term suspensions) and expulsions may be imposed for any of the

following student behaviors:

A. Having a firearm on school property or school transportation in violation of RCW
28A.600.420;

B. Any of the following offenses listed in RCW 13.04.155:
1. any violent offense as defined in RCW 9.94A.030, including

a. any felony that Washington law defines as a class A felony or an attempt,
criminal conspiracy, or solicitation to commit a class A felony;

b. manslaughter;
c. indecent liberties committed by forcible compulsion;
d. kidnapping;

€. arson;




f. assault in the second degree;

g. assault of a child in the second degree;
h. robbery;

i. drive-by shooting; and

j. vehicular homicide or vehicular assault caused by driving a vehicle while
under the influence of intoxicating liquor or any drug, or by operating a
vehicle in a reckless manner;

2. any sex offense as defined in RCW 9.94A.030, which includes any felony
violation of chapter 9A.44 RCW (other than failure to registered as a sex offender
in violation of 9A.44.132), including rape, rape of a child, child molestation,
sexual misconduct with a minor, indecent liberties, voyeurism, and any felony
conviction or adjudication with a sexual motivation finding;

3. inhaling toxic fumes in violation of chapter 9.47A RCW;
4. any controlled substance violation of chapter 69.50 RCW;
5. any liquor violation of RCW 66.44.270;

6. any weapons violation of chapter 9.41 RCW, including having a dangerous
weapon at school in violation of RCW 9.41.280;

7. any violation of chapter 9A.36 RCW, including assault, malicious harassment,
drive-by shooting, reckless endangerment, promoting a suicide attempt, coercion,

assault of a child, custodial assault, and failing to summon assistance for an
injured victim of a crime in need of assistance;

8. any violation of chapter 9A.40 RCW, including kidnapping, unlawful
imprisonment, custodial interference, luring, and human trafficking;

9. any violation of chapter 9A.46 RCW, including harassment, stalking, and criminal
gang intimidation; and

10. any violation of chapter 9A.48 RCW, including arson, reckless burning, malicious
mischief, and criminal street gang tagging and graffiti;

C. Two or more violations of the following within a three-year period
1. criminal gang intimidation in violation of RCW 9A.46.120:

2. gang activity on school grounds in violation of RCW 28A.600.455;




3. willfully disobeying school administrative personnel in violation of RCW
28A.635.020; and

4. defacing or injuring school property in violation of RCW 28A.635.060; and

D. Any student behavior that adversely affects the health or safety of other students or
educational staff.

Unless otherwise required by law, school administrators are not required to impose a long-term
suspension or expulsion for the misconduct listed above, and whenever reasonable school
administrators should first consider alternative sanctions.

For student behaviors—including specific offenses contained in Policy/Procedure 3240—that do
not fall within one or more of the categories listed above, schools may only impose discretionary
discipline as defined in this procedure. Schools may not impose long-term suspension or
expulsion as a form of discretionary discipline, but may impose other sanctions up to and
including short-term suspension in a manner consistent with this procedure.

Short-Term Suspension

Conditions and Limitations

The nature and circumstances of the student conduct violation must reasonably warrant a
short-term suspension. As a general rule, no student will be suspended for a short term
unless other forms of corrective action reasonably calculated to modify his/her conduct
have previously been imposed upon the student as a consequence of misconduct of the

same nature.

No student in grades kindergarten through fourth grade will be suspended for more than a
total of ten (10) school days during any single semester or trimester and no loss of
academic grades or credit will be imposed by reason of the suspension.

No student in fifth grade and above will be suspended for more than a total of fifteen (15)
school days during any single semester or ten school days during any single trimester.

Continuation of Educational Services

The district will not suspend the provision of educational services during a period of short-
term suspension and will provide the student the opportunity to receive such services.
Educational services may be provided in an alternative setting, provided that such setting
is comparable, equitable, and appropriate to the regular educational services a student
would have received in the absence of a short-term suspension. Examples of alternative
setting may include, but not be limited to, alternative schools or classrooms, one-on-one
tutoring when available, and online learning.

The principal will notify special education staff of any short-term suspensions to be
imposed for a student who is currently eligible for special education services or those who
might be deemed eligible for special education. To the extent that short-term suspensions
may cumulatively or consecutively exceed ten school (10) days, (see Procedure 2161,
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students, discipline section) the




principal will notify relevant special education staff so that the district can ensure that
special education discipline procedures are in place, in addition to general education
discipline procedures.

In-School Suspension

Students who are denied attendance at school are denied the opportunity to learn. The
district has therefore created an in-school suspension program which temporarily removes
the student from his/her regular learning environment but permits the student to maintain
his/her educational progress. An in-school suspension is no different from any other
suspension as defined by WAC 392-400-205, and therefore triggers the same substantive
and procedural due process, including student and parent/guardian notification.

Students who are assigned to in-school suspension are granted this opportunity as a
privilege and are expected to comply with the expectations of staff. The superintendent or
designee will establish guidelines for the operation of the in-school suspension program.

Suggested guidelines for in-school suspension are as follows:

o A student who is afforded the opportunity to be assigned to in-school
suspension will agree to the conditions specified by the school principal. Unless
the student is of majority age, the principal will obtain written authorization from
the parent or guardian. The student’s or parents’ or guardians’ authorization will
include the number of days the student will be assigned to in-school suspension.

o In-school suspension is designed to encourage learning. Students will be expected
to work on their classroom assignments at all times.

« A student in in-school suspension will attend a single subject or class or any full
schedule of subjects or classes in a separate location on school property from their
regular subject or class or schedule and/or classmates.

e The student will be denied the opportunity to participate in any school activities
while in in-school suspension.

e While in-school suspended, the student and staff may develop a behavior contract
that defines the future expected behavior of the student. The student and his/her
parents/guardians and a staff member will sign the contract.

o Any act of inappropriate conduct may result in imposition of other corrective
action.

e After a student is placed back into the regular classroom(s), the principal or
designee or school counselor will monitor the student's progress on a daily basis.
The student will be encouraged to maintain a relationship with the school counselor
as a means of dealing with any problems that arise.

o Specific rules and building procedures will be developed by the building principal.

Exceptional Misconduct

A student may be short-term or long-term suspended for exceptional misconduct, other
than absenteeism, when such misconduct is of such frequent occurrence or is so serious in
nature and/or is so serious in terms of disruption to the operation of the school that
immediate suspension is warranted. In cases of exceptional misconduct, a short-term or
long-term suspension may be imposed without first attempting alternative forms of

10



corrective action. An exception may be granted by an administrator when warranted by
extenuating circumstances.

Prior Notice and Conference

e Prior to the short-term suspension of a student, the principal or designee will
conduct a conference with the student and provide:

e An oral or written notice of the charges;

e An oral or written explanation of the evidence in support of the allegation(s); AND

e An oral or written explanation of the short-term suspension which may be imposed.

The student will be provided an opportunity to present his/her explanation of the
allegation(s).

If the short-term suspension is to exceed one (1) calendar day, the principal or designee
will notify the student’s parent/guardian of the reason for the suspension and its duration
either orally or by U.S. mail as soon as reasonably possible. The notice will also address
the parent/guardian’s right to an informal conference pursuant to WAC 392-400-255 and
the fact that the suspension may be reduced as a result of such conference.

Grievance and Appeal Process for Short-Term Suspension

Any parent/guardian or student who is aggrieved by the imposition of a short-term
suspension will have the right to an informal conference with the principal or designee for
the purpose of resolving the grievance. At such conference the student and parent will be
subject to questioning by the principal and will be entitled to question staff involved in the

matter being grieved.

The parent/guardian and student, after exhausting this remedy, will have the right, upon
two (2) school business days’ prior notice, to present a written and/or oral grievance to the
Discipline Appeals Council. A closed meeting may be held for the purpose of considering
the grievance. The Council will notify the parent and student of its response to the
grievance within five (5) business days after the date when the grievance was presented.
The disciplinary action will continue notwithstanding implementation of the grievance
procedure unless the principal, superintendent, superintendent designee, or board elects to

postpone such action.

If the grievance is not resolved at the Discipline Appeals Council level, the parent/-
guardian and student, upon two (2) school business days’ prior notice, will have the right
to present a written or oral grievance to the board at its next regular meeting, or at a
meeting held within 30 days, whichever is earlier. A closed meeting may be held for the
purpose of considering the grievance.

The board will notify the parent/guardian and student of its response to the grievance
within ten (10) school business days after the date when the grievance was presented. The
short-term suspension will continue notwithstanding implementation of the grievance
procedure unless the principal, superintendent or board elects to postpone such action.

11



If a grievance request is not received within the prescribed period of time set forth above,
the right to a grievance will be deemed waived without further opportunity for the student
and/or parent/guardian to contest the matter.

Readmission
Any student who has been short-term suspended will be allowed to make application for

readmission at any time in accordance with district policy and procedure. (See also
Readmission Application Process, below)

Reporting
Principals will report all short-term suspensions and the reasons therefor to the
superintendent or designee within twenty-four (24) hours after the imposing the short-term

suspension.
Emergency Expulsion

Conditions and Limitations

Schools may not impose an emergency expulsion for an immediate and continuing danger
or threat of substantial disruption unless the student’s misconduct falls within one or more
of the categories listed in this procedure above (“Suspension, Expulsions, and
Discretionary Discipline™). If the student’s behavior falls within one or more of such
categories, a student may be emergency expelled based on the conditions below. An
emergency expulsion may not be imposed as a form of discretionary discipline, as defined
in this procedure. In addition, an emergency expulsion may not be imposed solely for the
purposes of investigating student conduct.

A student may be immediately removed from school prior to a hearing without other forms
of corrective action if the superintendent or designee has good and sufficient reason to

believe that the student poses:

e Animmediate and continuing danger to other students or school staff; OR
« Animmediate and continuing threat of substantial disruption of the educational

process.

Such emergency expulsion must end or be converted to another form of corrective action
within ten (10) school days of the date of the expulsion. If the emergency expulsion is
converted to another form of corrective action, the district will provide the student and/or
parents/guardians with notice and due process rights appropriate to the new corrective

action.

Continuation of Educational Services

The district will not suspend the provision of educational services during a period of
emergency expulsion and will provide the student the opportunity to receive such services.
Educational services may be provided in an alternative setting, provided that such setting
is comparable, equitable, and appropriate to the regular educational services a student
would have received in the absence of an emergency expulsion. Examples of alternative
setting may include, but not be limited to, alternative schools or classrooms, one-on-one

tutoring when available, and online learning.

12




Notice of Hearing
The district will notify the student and his/her parents/guardians of the emergency

expulsion and of their opportunity for a hearing by:

o Hand-delivery of written notice within twenty-four hours of expulsion (school
districts must document delivery of the notice by obtaining the signature of the
student’s parents/guardians acknowledging receipt or the written certification of
the person making the delivery); OR

o Certified letter mailed within twenty-four hours of the expulsion (reasonable
attempts to contact the parents/guardians by phone or in person will also be made

as soon as reasonably possible).

The district’s written and oral notice of emergency expulsion and opportunity for hearing
will:

 Be provided in a language the student and/or a parent/guardian can understand, if
other than English;

o Specify the alleged reasons that the student’s presence poses an immediate and
continuing danger to students, school staff, or poses an immediate and continuing
threat of substantial disruption of the educational process.

« Set forth the date on which the emergency expulsion began and when it will end;

« Set forth the right of the student and/or his or her parents/guardians to a hearing for
purposes of contesting the allegations as soon as is reasonably possible; and

o Set forth the facts that: '

o A written or oral request for hearing must be received by a designated
school employee or his or her office on or before the end of the third
school business day after receipt of the notice of opportunity for
hearing; AND

o If the request is not received within three school business days, then
the right to a hearing may be deemed waived and the emergency
expulsion may be continued, if deemed necessary, for up to ten (10)
school days from the date of the student’s emergency expulsion from
school without any further opportunity for the student or his or her
parent/guardian to contest it.

As a best practice, the district should provide a schedule of school business days with the
notice.

The student and/or his or her parents/guardians must request a hearing within three (3)
school business days after receipt of the notice of opportunity for hearing. The request
may be provided in writing or orally, but must be provided to the district employee
specified in the notice or their office. If a request for hearing is not received within the
required period, the district may deem the right to hearing waived and the emergency
expulsion may be imposed for up to ten (10) school days from the date of the expulsion

from school.

Prehearing and Hearing

13




If a request for hearing is received within three (3) school business days after receipt of
notice, the school district will immediately schedule and give notice of a hearing to
commence as soon as reasonably possible and no later than the second school business day

after receipt of the request for hearing.
The student and his/her parents/guardians have the right to:

e Berepresented by legal counsel;
« Inspect in advance of the hearing any documentary and physical evidence that the

district intends to introduce at hearing;

o Question and confront witnesses (see WAC 392-400-305 for procedure if a school
district witness does not appear);

¢ Explain the alleged misconduct;

¢ Present relevant affidavits, exhibits, and witnesses.

The district and/or its representative have the right to inspect in advance of the hearing
evidence that the student and his/her parents/guardians intend to introduce at the hearing.

The hearing will be conducted before a hearing officer appointed by the superintendent.
Such hearing officer will not be a witness to the alleged conduct. Ideally, the individual
selected to be the hearing officer will possess both district administration experience
and/or legal training and/or prior experience conducting quasi-judicial hearings. Either a
tape-recorded or verbatim record of the hearing will be made.

When students are charged with violating the same rule and have acted in concert and the
facts are essentially the same for all students, a single hearing may be conducted for them
if the hearing officer believes that the following conditions exist:

o A single hearing will not likely result in confusion; AND
o No student will have his/her interest substantially prejudiced by a group hearing.

If the hearing officer finds that during the hearing a student’s interests will be substantially
prejudiced by the group hearing, he/she may order a separate hearing for that student. The
parent and student have the right to petition for an individual hearing.

The hearing officer will determine, based solely on the evidence presented at hearing, and
set forth in his/her written decision:

« Findings of fact as to whether the student has been afforded appropriate procedural
due process (e.g., notice, opportunity to inspect evidence prior to hearing);

« Findings of fact as to the alleged misconduct;

« A conclusion as to whether the student’s immediate and continuing danger to
students and/or school staff OR immediate and continuing threat of substantial
disruption of the educational process giving rise to the emergency expulsion has

terminated; AND
e A conclusion as to whether the emergency expulsion shall be converted to another

form of corrective action or stand as imposed.

14




Within one (1) school business day after the date upon which the hearing concludes, the
hearing officer will issue the decision and the district will provide notice of such decision
to the student and the student’s parents/guardians and legal counsel, if any, by depositing a
letter in certified U.S. mail.

If the hearing officer concludes in his/her decision that the emergency expulsion shall be
converted to another form of corrective action, the district must provide notice of all due
process rights to the student and parent/guardian for the appropriate corrective action. For
appeals from a hearing officer decision regarding an emergency expulsion, see Appeals of
long-term suspension and expulsion, below.

Long-Term Suspension

Conditions and Limitations
Schools may not impose a long-term suspension unless the student’s misconduct falls

within one or more of the categories listed in this procedure above (“Suspension,
Expulsions, and Discretionary Discipline™). If the student’s behavior falls within one or
more of such categories, a student may be long-term suspended for violation of school
district rules provided the long-term suspension does not exceed the length of an academic
term as defined by the school board. A long-term suspension may not be imposed as a
form of discretionary discipline, as defined in this procedure.

The nature and circumstances of the violation must reasonably warrant a long-term
suspension. As a general rule, no student will be long-term suspended unless other forms
of corrective action reasonably calculated to modify his/her conduct have previously been
imposed upon the student as a consequence of misconduct of the same nature.

No student in grades kindergarten through fourth grade will be long-term suspended
during any single semester or trimester and no loss of academic grades or credit will be

imposed by reason of the suspension.

No student in fifth grade and above will be long-term suspended in a manner that causes
the student to lose academic grades or credit for longer than one semester or trimester

during the same school year.

The principal will notify special education staff of any long-term suspension to be imposed
for a student who is currently eligible for special education services or those who might be
deemed eligible for special education. To the extent that suspensions may cumulatively or
consecutively exceed ten (10) days, the principal will notify relevant special education
staff so that the district can ensure that special education discipline procedures are in place,
in addition to general education discipline procedures.

Exceptional Misconduct

15




A student may be long-term suspended for exceptional misconduct, other than
absenteeism, when such misconduct is of such frequent occurrence or is so serious in
nature and/or is so serious in terms of disruptive effect on the operation of the school that
an immediate resort to a long-term suspension is warranted. In cases of exceptional
misconduct, a long-term suspension may be imposed without first attempting alternative
forms of corrective action. The superintendent or designee, following consultation with a
representative ad hoc citizens’ committee, will recommend for board approval, the nature
and extent of the corrective actions which may be imposed as a consequence of
exceptional misconduct. (See Procedure 3240). An exception may be granted by an
administrator and/or hearing officer when warranted by extenuating circumstances.

Continuation of Educational Services

The district will not suspend the provision of educational services during a period of long-
term suspension and will provide the student the opportunity to receive such services.
Educational services may be provided in an alternative setting, provided that such setting
is comparable, equitable, and appropriate to the regular educational services a student
would have received in the absence of a long-term suspension. Examples of alternative
setting may include, but not be limited to, alternative schools or classrooms, one-on-one
tutoring when available, and online learning.

Notice of Hearing
Prior to imposing a long-term suspension, the district will provide the student and/or

his/her parents/guardians a written notice of opportunity for hearing. The notice will be
delivered in person or by certified mail. The notice will:

e Beprovided in a language the student and his or her parents/guardians can
understand, if other than English;

o Specify the alleged misconduct and the school district rule(s) alleged to have been
violated;

o Set forth the proposed long-term suspension;

o Set forth the right to a hearing for the purpose of contesting the allegation(s); AND

o Set forth the facts that:
o A written or oral request for hearing must be received by the lead

Student Services administrator or their office on or before the end of
the third school business day after the notice is received; and

o If such a request is not received within that period, the hearing will be
deemed waived and the proposed long-term suspension may be
imposed without further opportunity for the student and/or their
parent/guardian to contest it.

As a best practice, the district should provide a schedule of school business days with the
notice.

The student and/or his or her parents/guardians must request a hearing within three (3)
school business days after receipt of the notice of opportunity for hearing. The request
may be provided in writing or orally, but must be provided to the district employee

specified in the notice or their office. If a request for hearing is not received within the

16




required period, the district may deem the right to hearing waived and the long-term
suspension may be imposed.

Pre-Hearing and Hearing
If a request for hearing is received within three (3) school business days after receipt of
notice, the school district will schedule a hearing to begin within three (3) school business

days after the date of receiving the request.
The student and parent/guardian have the right to:

o Berepresented by legal counsel;

« Inspect in advance of the hearing any documentary and physical evidence that the
district intends to introduce at hearing;

 Question and confront witnesses (see WAC 392-400-305 for procedure if a school
district witness does not appear);

o Explain the alleged misconduct; and

e Present relevant affidavits, exhibits, and witnesses.

The district and/or its representative have the right to inspect in advance of the hearing
evidence that the student and his/her parents/guardians intend to introduce at the hearing.
Either a tape-recorded or verbatim record of the hearing will be made.

The hearing will be conducted before a hearing officer appointed by the superintendent.
Such hearing officer will not be a witness to the alleged conduct. Ideally, the individual
selected to be the hearing officer will possess both district administration experience
and/or legal training and/or prior experience conducting administrative hearings.

When students are charged with violating the same rule and have acted in concert and the
facts are essentially the same for all students, a single hearing may be conducted for them
if the hearing officer believes that the following conditions exist:

e A single hearing will not likely result in confusion; AND
e No student will have his/her interest substantially prejudiced by a group hearing.

If the hearing officer finds that during the hearing a student’s interests will be substantially
prejudiced by the group hearing, he/she may order a separate hearing for that student. The
parent and student have the right to petition for an individual hearing.

The hearing officer will determine, based solely on the evidence presented at hearing, and
set forth in his/her written decision:

o Findings of fact as to whether the student has been afforded appropriate procedural
due process (e.g., notice, opportunity to inspect evidence prior to hearing);

« Findings of fact as to the alleged misconduct; AND

e A conclusion as to whether the nature and duration of the proposed long-term
suspension is appropriate or whether a lesser form of corrective action should be

imposed.

17




The hearing officer will issue the decision and the district will provide notice of such
decision to the student’s legal counsel, or, if none, to the student’s and his/her

parents/guardians.

If the hearing officer decides that a long-term suspension is appropriate, the parent/-
guardian and student will have the right to appeal that decision. See Appeal Process for
Long-Term Suspension or Expulsion, below.

If a timely notice of appeal is not provided to the district, the long-term suspension may be
imposed as of the calendar day following expiration of the two (2) school business day

period.

Readmission
Any student who has been long-term suspended will be allowed to make application for

readmission at any time in accordance with district policy and procedure. (See also
Readmission Application Process, below)

Reporting
Principals will report all long-term suspensions and the reasons therefor to the
superintendent or designee within twenty-four (24) hours after the imposing the expulsion.

Expulsion

Conditions and Limitations
Schools may not expel a student unless the student’s misconduct falls within one or more

of the categories listed in this procedure above (“Suspension, Expulsions, and
Discretionary Discipline”). If the student’s behavior falls within one or more of such
categories, a student may be expelled for a violation of school district rules, provided that
the expulsion does not exceed the length of an academic term as defined by the school
board. An emergency expulsion may not be imposed as a form of discretionary discipline,

as defined in this procedure.

The nature and circumstances of the alleged violation must reasonably warrant the
harshness of expulsion. No student will be expelled unless other forms of corrective action
reasonably calculated to modify his or her conduct have failed or there is good reason to
believe that other forms of corrective action would fail if used.

The district will make reasonable efforts to assist students in returning to an educational
setting prior to, and no later than, the end date of the expulsion.

An expulsion may not exceed the length of the academic term unless:
o The school petitions the superintendent for an extension; AND

o The superintendent authorizes the extension in compliance with the superintendent
of public instruction’s rules adopted for this purpose (see Petition for Extension of

Expulsion below).

18




Once a student is expelled in compliance with district policy, the expulsion will be brought
to the attention of appropriate local and state authorities, including, but not limited to,
juvenile authorities acting pursuant to the Basic Juvenile Court Act, so that such
authorities may address the student’s educational needs.

Any elementary or secondary school student who is determined to have carried a firearm
onto, or to have possessed a firearm on, public elementary or secondary school premises,
public school-provided transportation, or areas of facilities while being used exclusively
by public schools, will be expelled from school for not less than one calendar year
pursuant to RCW 28A.600.420 with notification to parents/guardians and law
enforcement. The superintendent may modify the expulsion of a student on a case-by-case

basis.

Continuation of Educational Services

The district will not suspend the provision of educational services during a period of
expulsion and will provide the student the opportunity to receive such services.
Educational services may be provided in an alternative setting, provided that such setting
is comparable, equitable, and appropriate to the regular educational services a student
would have received in the absence of an expulsion. Examples of alternative setting may
include, but not be limited to, alternative schools or classrooms, one-on-one tutoring when

available, and online learning.

Notice of Hearing
Prior to the expulsion of a student, the district will provide the student and/or his/her

parents/guardians a written notice of opportunity for hearing. The notice will be delivered
in person or by certified mail. The notice will:

o Be provided in a language the student and his or her parents/guardians can
understand, if other than English;
o Specify the alleged misconduct and the school district rule(s) alleged to have been
violated;
» Set forth the proposed expulsion;
o Set forth the right to a hearing for the purpose of contesting the allegation(s); AND
o Set forth the facts that:
o A written or oral request for hearing must be received by the lead
Student Services administrator or their office on or before the end of
the third school business day after the notice is received; and
o If such a request is not received within that period, the hearing will be
deemed waived and the proposed expulsion may be imposed without
further opportunity for the student and/or their parent/guardian to
contest it.

Prehearing and Hearing
If a request for hearing is received within three (3) school business days after receipt of

notice, the school district will schedule a hearing to begin within three (3) school business
days after the date of receiving the request.

19




The student and parent/guardian have the right to:

o Be represented by legal counsel;
« Inspect in advance of the hearing any documentary and physical evidence that the

district intends to introduce at hearing;

 Question and confront witnesses (see WAC 392-400-305 for procedure if a school
district witness does not appear);

e Explain the alleged misconduct;

e Present relevant affidavits, exhibits, and witnesses.

The district and/or its representative have the right to inspect in advance of the hearing
evidence that the student and his/her parents/guardians intend to introduce at the hearing.
Either a tape-recorded or verbatim record of the hearing will be made.

The hearing will be conducted before a hearing officer appointed by the superintendent.
Such hearing officer will not be a witness to the alleged conduct. Ideally, the individual
selected to be the hearing officer will possess both district administration experience
and/or legal training and/or prior experience conducting quasi-judicial hearings.

The hearing is a quasi-judicial process exempt from the Open Public Meetings Act
(OPMA). To protect the privacy of student(s) and others involved, the hearing will be
held without public notice and without public access unless the student(s) and/or the
parent(s)/guardian(s) or their counsel requests an open hearing. Regardless of whether the
hearing is open or closed, the district will comply with the Family Educational Rights and
Privacy Act (FERPA) in regard to confidentiality of student education records.

When students are charged with violating the same rule and have acted in concert and the
facts are essentially the same for all students, a single hearing may be conducted for them
if the hearing officer believes that the following conditions exist:

o A single hearing will not likely result in confusion; AND
e No student will have his/her interest substantially prejudiced by a group hearing.

If the hearing officer finds that during the hearing a student’s interests will be substantially
prejudiced by the group hearing, he/she may order a separate hearing for that student. The
parent and student have the right to petition for an individual hearing.

The hearing officer will determine, based solely on the evidence presented at hearing, and
set forth in his/her written decision:

« Findings of fact as to whether the student has been afforded appropriate procedural
due process (e.g., notice, opportunity to inspect evidence prior to hearing);

o Findings of fact as to the alleged misconduct; AND

e A conclusion as to whether the expulsion is appropriate OR whether a lesser form
of corrective action should be imposed.

20




The hearing officer will issue the decision and the district will provide notice of such
decision to the student’s legal counsel, or, if none, to the student’s and his/her

parents/guardians.

The parent/-guardian and student will have the right to appeal that decision. See Appeal
Process for Long-Term Suspension or Expulsion, below.

Readmission
Any student who has been expelled will be allowed to make application for readmission at

any time in accordance with district policy and procedure. (See also Readmission
Application Process, below)

Reporting
Principals will report all expulsions and the reasons therefor to the superintendent or
designee within twenty-four (24) hours after the imposing the expulsion.

Petition for Extension of Expulsion

The principal or designee may petition the superintendent for authorization to exceed the length
of one academic term for a student's expulsion when warranted because of a perceived risk to
public health and safety. The petition may be submitted any time after final imposition of the
expulsion and prior to the end of the expulsion. The petition will include:

o A detailed description of the student’s misconduct, the school rules that were violated,
and the public health or safety concerns of the district;

e A detailed description of the student’s academic, attendance and discipline history, if any;

o A description of the lesser forms of corrective action that were considered and the
reasons why they were rejected;

o A description of all alternative learning experiences, vocational programs and/or other
educational services that may be available to the student;

e The proposed extended length of the expulsion;

o Identification of special education services or accommodations pursuant to Section 504
of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, if appropriate;

» A proposed date for the reengagement meeting.

A copy of the petition will be delivered in person or by certified mail to the student and his/her
parents/guardians in a language they can understand, if other than English, if feasible. The
student and/or parents/guardians may submit a written or oral response to the petition within ten
(10) school business days of receipt of the petition.

Within eleven (11) school business days, but no later than twenty (20) school business days from
delivery of the petition to the student and parent/guardians, the superintendent will issue a
written decision granting or denying the petition. The superintendent, in his/her discretion, may
grant the petition if evidence exists that if a student was to return at or before one calendar year,
he/she would pose a risk to public health or safety. The written decision will include a
description of rights and procedures for appeal.

The student and/or parents/guardians may appeal the decision in writing within ten (10) school
business days of receipt of the decision to the school board.

21




The district will report the number of petitions submitted, approved and denied to the office of
the superintendent of public instruction annually.

Appeal Process for Long-Term Suspension and Expulsion
If a timely notice of appeal is received, the long-term suspension or expulsion may be imposed

during the appeal period if:

o The long-term suspension or nonemergency expulsion is imposed for no more than ten
(10) consecutive days or until the appeal is decided, whichever is the shortest period.

o Any days that the student is suspended or expelled before the appeal is decided are
applied to the term of suspension or expulsion and will not limit or extend the term of the
suspension or extend the term of suspension or expulsion; and

« A suspended student who returns to school before the appeal is decided will be provided
the opportunity upon return to make up assignments and tests missed by reason of

suspension if:
o Such assignments or tests have a substantial effect on the student’s semester or

trimester grade or grades; OR
o Failure to complete such assignment or tests would result in denial of course

credit.

Any parent/guardian or student who is aggrieved by the long-term suspension or nonemergency
expulsion will have the right upon two (2) school business days’ prior notice, to present a written
grievance to the Discipline Appeals Council. A closed meeting may be held for the purpose of
considering the grievance. At that time the student, parent/guardian, and/or counsel will be given
the right to be heard and will be granted the opportunity to present such witnesses and testimony
as the Discipline Appeals Board deems reasonable. The Council will notify the parent and
student of its response to the grievance within five (5) school business days after the date when

he grievance was presented.

If the grievance is not resolved at the Discipline Appeals Council level, the parent/guardian and
student, upon two (2) school business days’ prior notice, will have the right to present a written
or oral grievance to the board at its next regular meeting, or at a meeting held within 30 days,
whichever is earlier. A closed meeting may be held for the purpose of considering the grievance.

The board will agree to one of the following procedures:

e Study the hearing record or other materials submitted and record its findings within ten
(10) school business days; OR

e Schedule and hold a special meeting to hear further arguments on the case and record its
findings within fifteen (15) school business days; OR

e Hear and try the case de novo before the board within ten (10) school business days.

Any decision by the board to impose or to affirm, reverse or modify the imposition of suspension
or expulsion upon a student will be made only by:

e Those board members who have heard or read the evidence;

e Those board members who have not acted as a witness in the matter; AND

e A majority vote at a meeting at which a quorum of the board is present.

22




Within thirty (30) days of receipt of the board’s final decision, any parent/guardian and student
desiring to appeal any action upon the part of the board regarding the suspension or expulsion
may serve a notice of appeal upon the board and file such notice with the Superior Court Clerk of

Spokane County.

The board will notify the parent/guardian and student of its response to the grievance within ten
(10) school business days after the date when the grievance was presented.

If a request is not received within the prescribed period of time mentioned above, the rightto a
grievance will be deemed waived without further opportunity for the student and/or
parent/guardian to contest the matter.

Reengagement Meeting and Plan
The district must convene a reengagement meeting with the student and their

parent(s)/guardian(s) within twenty (20) days of a long-term suspension or expulsion but no later
than five (5) days before the student’s reentry or reenrollment to school.

The district must create a plan tailored to the student’s individual circumstances that includes
consideration of the incident that led to the student’s long-term suspension or expulsion. The
plan should aid the student in taking the necessary steps to remedy the situation that led to the
suspension or expulsion. Additionally, the district will take reasonable steps to develop the plan
with the participation and input of the student and their parent(s)/guardian(s) to ensure that it is
culturally sensitive and culturally responsive.

In developing the reengagement plan, the district should consider shortening the length of time
that the student is suspended or expelled, other forms of corrective action and supportive
interventions that aid in the student’s academic success and keep the student engaged and on
track to graduate. A reengagement meeting conducted by the district involving the student and
his/her parents/guardians is not intended to replace a petition for readmission.

Readmission Application Process

Any student who has been suspended or expelled will be allowed to make application for
readmission at any time. If a student desires to be readmitted to the school from which he/she has
been suspended/ expelled, the student will submit a written application to the principal, who will
recommend admission or non-admission. If a student wishes admission to another school, he/she
will submit the written application to the superintendent. The application will include:

o Reasons the student wants to return and why the request should be considered;
« Evidence which supports the request; AND
« A supporting statement from the parent or others who may have assisted the student.

The superintendent or designee will advise the student and parent/guardian of the decision within
seven (7) school days of the receipt of such application.

Management Resources: 2016 - July Issue

23

S S e el B — — —— e —— — _




2014 - August Issue

Adopted: September 10, 2018

24




MEAD SCHOOL DISTRICT

Board Meeting of June 27, 2022

Continuing Business

Agenda Item:

Background:

Summary:

VIL.B.

2" Reading Policy & Procedure 2161 Revision
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

Revisions to Policy/Procedure 2161, Special Education and
Related Services for Eligible Students, are being presented for
second reading consideration. This policy/procedure was adopted
on September 24, 2007, with revisions to the policy approved on
March 10, 2008 and July 20, 2016. Revisions to the procedure
were approved on March 11, 2010, January 12, 2015 and July 20,
2016. The presented revisions bring this policy/procedure into
compliance with the state’s new special education reporting
process that requires school districts to analyze and update their
special education policies and procedures by August 31, 2022,

WSSDA Sample Policy 2161 and Sample Procedure 2161 were
used as templates for the presented revisions. Proposed policy and
procedure revisions are highlighted in the attached drafts.

Special Education procedures are designed to: 1) Ensure students
who are eligible for services under the Individuals with Disabilities
Act are served appropriately and given assurance of individualized
support for their success, and 2) Limit the district’s liability and
ensure fiduciary responsibility by enacting policy and procedures
that mitigate potential litigation and risk.

The presented revisions to the policy are minimal.

Presented procedure revisions include changing existing language
to meet the requirements of new legislation and/or policy
governance. Important shifts include:

e Amending the process for Specific Learning Disability
Evaluation/Qualification from the Discrepancy Model
(formalized testing with cut score qualifications) to allow
for Response to Intervention models and patterns of
strength and weakness. By 2028 the district must have in
place a robust system for ensuring scientific, research-
based interventions are employed through a RTI approach
for Specific Learning Disability Qualifications. (Prior to
2028 the section of the procedure that addresses this area
will need to be, once again, revised/updated.)




e Clarity around interpreters, First Language support and
communication, as legally required, have been added.

¢ Graduation requirements now require a detailed Transition
Plan and High School & Beyond Plan. These plans allow
access to alternate pathways for credits and course of
study.

e Regarding restraint, isolation and reasonable use of force,
revisions are primarily connected to the type of training to
be used and the increased attention to de-escalation
strategies, and a system that has its emphasis in trauma-
informed practices.

No first reading (June 13, 2022) changes were recommended.
President Burchard requested the policy/procedure revision be
brought back for second reading as a non-action agenda item.

Staffing Implication: None

Other Considerations: None

Recommendation: No second reading action is requested.
Attachments:

e Draft Policy/Procedure 2161



DRAFT Policy 2161
INSTRUCTION

J SCHOOL DISTRICT

SPECIAL EDUCATION AND RELATED SERVICES FOR ELIGIBLE STUDENTS

The district recognizes that students whose disabilities adversely impact educational performance
and who require specially designed instruction can improve their educational performance when
they receive special education and related services tailored to fit their needs. The district adopts
the state’s full educational opportunity goal to provide students in need of special education
services with a free appropriate public education.

Special education programs for students eligible for special education shall be an integral part of
the general educational programs of this district, and shall be operated in compliance with
federal and state requirements governing special education. The district will provide a continuum
of placement options which may include services within and outside the district depending on the

student’s needs.

Not all students with disabilities are eligible for special education services. The needs of those
students will be  addressed individually and, if appropriate, the student will be provided
accommodations or modifications required under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act in

accordance with district policy and procedures.
Mediation or Resolution Agreements

The Board authorizes the Superintendent, or designee, to bind the district to a mediation or
resolution agreement.

Commencement Exercises/Certificate of Attendance

In order to participate in commencement exercises, students must have met the minimum criteria
for graduation prior to the date of the exercise and otherwise be in good standing with their
school through the commencement date. Minimum criteria for participation may be adjusted for
students with an Individualized Education Program (IEP) whose disabilities have impacted
their opportunity to accumulate credits. Each student’s IEP team will determine the student’s
graduation plan, including graduation date. IEP students who have attended four years of high
school and need additional time to complete IEP goals and/or credits may request participation in
commencement exercises. IEP students will receive a certificate of attendance until they

complete their credits for graduation.

The Superintendent, or designee, will develop and maintain special education procedures
necessary to implement this policy. This policy and the procedures will be available to the

public.



Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

Policy 2161
Cross References: 2410 - High School Graduation Requirements
2163 — Response to Intervention
3231 - Student Records
3241 - Student Discipline
3246 — Restraint, Tsolation and Other Uses of Reasonable Force
Legal References: RCW 28A.155 Special Education
RCW 28A.600.485 Restraint of students with individualized
education programs or plans developed
under section 504 of the rehabilitation act
of 1973 — Proceudres — Definitions.
RCW 28A.600.486 District policy on the use of isolation and
restraint — Notice to parents and guardians
of children who have individualized
education programs or plans developed
under section 504 of the rehabilitation act
of 1973.
RCW-49.60— ———— Fawagainst Diseriminationr
Referenced)
WAC 392-172A Rules for the Provision of Special Education
20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq. Individuals with Disabilities Education
Improvement Act of 2004
42 U.S.C. 12131-12133  Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990
28 CFR Part 35 Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability
in State and Local Government Services
34 CFR Part 99 Family Education Rights and Privacy Act
(FERPA)
29 U.S.C. 794 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973,
as amended by the Rehabilitation Act
Amendments of 1974, Pub. L. 93-516, 29
U.S.C. 794
34 CFR Part 104 Nondiscrimination on the basis of handicap in
programs and activities receiving or
benefiting from federal financial
assistance
34 CFR Part 300 Assistance to States for the Education of
Children With Disabilities and Preschool
Grants for Children With Disabilities
34 CFR Part 303 Early Intervention Program for Infants and
Toddlers with Disabilities
Formerly Policy 4210
Adopted: September 24, 2007
Revised: March 10, 2008

Revised: July 20, 2016

Revised:




DRAFT Procedure 2161
INSTRUCTION

.1 I8A SCHOOL DISTRICT

SPECIAL EDUCATION AND RELATED SERVICES FOR ELIGIBLE STUDENTS

The purpose of the district’s special education program procedures is to address program areas where
state and federal regulations require specific local procedures or permit local discretionary choices.

The state regulations governing implementation of special education services pursuant to the
Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act (IDEA) of 2004 are addressed in Chapter
392-172A WAC. These procedures do not address all of the requirements established in the
regulations. District personnel who are not familiar with the regulations need to contact the special
education department director if there are questions regarding special education. These procedures
describe how the district implements its special education program.

Free Appropriate Public Education (FAPE)
The district will apply annually for Federal Part B and state special education funding to assist in the

provision of special education and any necessary related services. This funding is in addition to
students’ basic education funding and state special education funding.

The speeial-edueation—direeter Superintendent or designee, in consultation with building staff, will
annually determine whether to use Early Intervening Services (EIS) funding for students who have not
been identified as needing special education or related services, but who need additional academic and

behavioral support to succeed in a general education environment.

The district will annually report to the Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI) the
number of students receiving EIS; and the number of students who received EIS and subsequently
received special education and related services under Part B of IDEA during the preceding two-year

period.

Services to eligible special education students age three to 21 will be provided without charge to the
student. This does not include incidental fees that are normally charged to all students. Special
education services will include preschool, elementary and secondary education and are provided in
conformance with the student’s Individual Education Program (IEP).

The district provides a continuum of services for students, regardless of the funding source. Where the
district is unable to provide all or part of the special education or necessary related services, it will
make arrangements through contracts with other public or non-public sources, inter-district agreements

or interagency coordination.

Students Covered by Public or Private Insurance

The district may use Medicaid or other public insurance benefits programs in which a student

participates to provide or pay for services required to provide a FAPE, as permitted by the public

insurance program. However, the district will not:

e Require parents to sign up for or enroll in public benefits or insurance programs in order for their
student to receive FAPE under Part B of the IDEA;

® Require parents to incur an out-of-pocket expense such as the payment of a deductible or co-pay
amount incurred in filing a claim;




Procedure 2161
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

e Use a parent or student’s benefits under a public insurance program if that use would:
- Decrease available lifetime coverage or any other insured benefit;
- Result in the family paying for services required after school hours that would otherwise be

covered by the public insurance program;
- Increase premiums or result in discontinuation of insurance; or
- Risk loss of eligibility for home and community-based waivers, based on aggregate health-

related expenditures.

The district may access a parent’s private insurance proceeds to provide FAPE to an eligible student

only if the parent provides informed consent to the district. Whenever the district proposes to access

the parent’s private insurance proceeds, the district will:

e Obtain parent consent in accordance with Chapter 392-172A WAC each time the district wishes to
access benefits for a new procedure; and

e Inform the parents that their refusal to permit the district to access their insurance does not relieve
the district of its responsibility to ensure that all required services are provided at no cost to the
parents.

Before first accessing a parent’s or student’s public benefits, for the first time and annually after the

first notification, the district will provide written notification using the prior written notice provisions

under WAC 392-172A-05010(3) that includes:

e A statement of parental consent provisions;

e A statement of the “no cost” provisions;

e A statement that the parents may withdraw their consent to disclose personally identifiable
information to the agency responsible for administering the state’s public benefits or insurance, and

o A statement that a parent’s withdrawal or refusal to consent does not relieve the school district of
its responsibility to ensure that all required services are provided at no cost to the parents.

After providing the required notification, the district will obtain written informed consent from the

parent allowing the district to disclose information from the student’s educational records to the agency

responsible for administering the state’s public benefits or insurance programs. The consent will

specify:

e The personally identifiable information that may be disclosed, such as records or information about
the services that may be provided to the student;

e The purpose of the disclosure;

e The agency to which the disclosure will be made; and

o That the parent understands and agrees that the public agency may access the parent’s or student’s
public benefits or insurance to apply for services under the act.

To avoid financial cost to parents who would otherwise consent to use private insurance, or public
benefits if the parent would incur a cost such as a deductible or co-pay, the district may use its Part B
funds to pay the cost the parents would incur.

The special education staff is responsible for providing the required notices and requests for consent to
parents under this section.

Parent Participation in Meetings

The district encourages parental involvement and sharing of information between district and parents
to support the provision of appropriate services to its students. As used in these procedures, the term

2




Procedure 2161
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

“parent” includes biological and adoptive parents, legal guardians, persons acting in the place of a
parent, such as relatives and stepparents, foster parents, persons appointed as surrogate parents and

adult students.

Parents (and as appropriate, students) will be provided the opportunity to participate in any meetings
with respect to the identification, evaluation, educational placement and provision of a FAPE
including IEP Team Meetings, School Discipline, and Truancy Meetings. Meetings shall be scheduled
at a mutually agreeable time and place.

When a meeting is scheduled, parents will be:
e Notified of the meeting early enough that they will have an opportunity to attend; anéd

® Notified of the availability of interpretation and translation services at no cost to the parents;
who will be in attendance;

® Notified that the district or the parent may invite others who have knowledge or special expertise of
the student; and

The district shall take whatever action is necessary to ensure that the parent understands the
proceedings of the IEP team meeting, including arranging for an interpreter for parents with-deafness
who are deaf or hard of hearing or whose native language is other than English. The district will
maintain documentation of the language in which families prefer to communicate and whether a
qualified interpreter for the student’s family was provided.

The staff person responsible for inviting the parents to meetings will keep documentation of the
information provided and the methods used to notify the parents of the meeting. The district may
proceed with a the FTEP-er-placement meeting if the district is not able to convince the parent to attend.
In this case, the district will document its attempts to arrange the meeting. This documentation will
include records of telephone calls and the results, copies of correspondence sent to the parent and/or
other means used to contact the parent.

This documentation will be kept in the student’s special education file. Special education staff is
responsible for notification, appropriate forms and making arrangements. If the parent cannot attend
the IEP or placement meeting but wishes to participate, the district will arrange for other means to
participate. This can include individual or conference phone calls, video or other means of
conferencing. A meeting does not include informal or unscheduled conversations involving district
personnel; conversations on issues such as teaching methodology, lesson plans, coordination of service
provisions; or preparatory activities that district personnel engage in to develop a proposal or a
response to a parent proposal to be discussed at a later meeting.

Identification and Referral (Child Find)

Identification
The purpose of Child Find is to locate, evaluate and identify children with suspected disabilities in

need of special education services including those who are not currently receiving special education
and related services and who may be eligible for those services.




Procedure 2161
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

Activities are to reach:

e Children residing in the school district boundaries including preschool-aged children;

e Children attending approved non-profit private elementary and secondary schools located within
the district boundaries.

e Highly mobile children (such as children experiencing homeless, in foster care and living in
migrant conditions ehildren);

e Children who have a disability and may need special education services even though they are
advancing from grade to grade; and

® Children at home or home schooled.

The district will consult with parents and representatives of private school students to ensure its Child
Find activities are comparable in approved non-profit private schools located within district
boundaries. These consultations will occur annually by letter and/or personal meetings.

The district reaches students who may be eligible for special education services through:
e Notification to parents, district-wide through the district newsletter;

Notification to private schools located in district boundaries;

Posting notices regarding referral in schools;

Notifying and coordinating with the designated Part C lead agencies;
Coordination with other public and private agencies and practitioners;
Information regarding child find on the district’s website;

Early childhood screenings conducted by the district.

When district staff have concerns that a student may have a suspected disability which could result in
eligibility for special education services, they will notify their building principal and if appropriate fill
out a referral.

The district’s special education department conducts early childhood screenings for ages birth to five.
These occur monthly at the special education department office. When parents or others inquire about
screenings, the caller will be referred to the appropriate personnel.

The screening process involves the following:

e Parents are asked to provide information to assist in assessing their child; and

e Children are screened to assess cognitive, communication, physical, social-emotional and adaptive
development. Parents will be notified at the screening of the results and the parents will also be
provided written notice of the results within ten days of screening. If the screening supports
evaluation, obtain written consent for evaluation at the exit interview if possible, or include consent
forms with the written notice notifying the parents of the results. If the screening results indicate
that the child does not need an evaluation, written notice will be sent to the parents within 10 days
of the screening explaining the basis for the district’s decision not to evaluate. Evaluation occurs in

accordance with evaluation procedures.

Referral
A student whether or not enrolled in school, may be referred for a special education evaluation by

parents, district staff or other persons knowledgeable about the student. Each building principal will
designate a person responsible for ensuring that district staff understands the referral process and
maintain the availability of the district’s referral form. Referrals are required to be in writing unless the

4




Procedure 2161
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

person referring is unable to write. A person who makes a referral orally must be provided with the
optional district referral form in the requestor’s native language and offered assistance in completing
the referral wnh the support of a quahﬁed mterpreter When needed sheu%d—be—asked—te—e&her—make—the

When a referral is made, the district must act within a 25 school-day timeline to make a decision about
whether or not the student will receive an evaluation for eligibility for special education services.

All certificated employees will document referrals immediately upon a referral being made to or by
them. All other staff receiving a referral from another person shall notify the building principal. The
special education department: (a) records the referral; (b) provides written notice of the referral to the
parent; and (c) advises the building special education assessment team to collect and review district
data and information provided by the parent to determine whether evaluation is warranted.

During the referral period the building special education assessment team will collect and review
existing information from all sources, including parents.

Examples may include:

e Child’s history, including developmental milestones;

e Report cards and progress reports;

o Individual teacher’s or other provider information regarding the child including observations;

e Assessment data;

e Medical information, if provided;

e Other information that may be relevant to assist in determining whether the child should be
evaluated.

If the review of data occurs at a meeting, the parent will be invited. The special education depattment
provides written notice to the parents of the decision regarding evaluation, whether or not the parents

attend the meeting.

- = . AP : Ao, e Eionthe
building spe01a1 educatlon assessment team reviews the request for evaluatlon and supportlng data and
does not suspect that the child has a disability, the district may deny the request. In this case written
notice, including the reason for the denial and the information used as the basis for the denial, must be

given to the parent.

If the determination is that the child should be evaluated, the reviewers will include information about
the recommended areas of evaluation, including the need for further medical evaluation of the student.
This information will assist the district in providing parents prior written notice and will assist the
district in selecting appropriate evaluation group members. The special education department is
responsible for notifying parents of the results using prior written notice. When the determination is
that the child will be evaluated, parent consent for evaluation and consent for release of appropriate
records will be sent with the notice.

District special education staff will seek parental consent to conduct the evaluation without any
unnecessary delay. The school district is not required to obtain consent from the biological parent if:

e The student is a ward of the state and does not reside with a parent;
¢ The parent cannot be located, or their rights have been terminated; or
5




Procedure 2161
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

e Consent for an evaluation is given by an individual appointed to represent the student.

When the parent provides consent, the district shall select an evaluation group. The evaluation group is
to complete the evaluation with 35 school days after the district’s receipt of parent consent, unless:

e The parents and district agree in writing to extending the timeline;
e The parent fails or refuses to make the student available for the evaluation; or

e The student enrolls in another school district after the evaluation is begun but before completion
and the parent and new district have an agreement for completion of the evaluation.

If a parent does not provide written, informed consent, notify the special education department..
District staff will make a determination as to whether it wishes to use mediation to seek agreement to
evaluate or file a due process hearing to override the parent’s refusal to consent. The district may not
override a parent’s refusal to consent for an evaluation if the student is home schooled or is unilaterally
placed in a private school. If the parent does not provide written informed consent and the district does
not use mediation or due process, the special education staff will provide the parent with prior written
notice informing the parent that the district cannot proceed with the evaluation to determine eligibility
and is not responsible for providing special education and related services without an initial evaluation

to determine eligibility.
Evaluation and Reevaluation

Evaluation of Students Moving from Part C to Part B and Participation in Transition Planning

Conferences

The district will participate in transition planning processes, arranged by the local lead agency as

designee of the Part C lead agency for each student who may be eligible for preschool services.

Transition plans will be designed to promote uninterrupted provision of appropriate services to the

child.

e Pre-School Edueation-Speeialist Special Education Staff, will serve as the point of contact with the
family resource coordinator for timely execution of transition planning conferences that are
arranged at least 90 days before the student’s third birthday by the designee of the Part C agency;

e Within 25 days following the transition planning conference, a determination whether or not to
evaluate the student for Part B services will be made;

e The district will follow the procedures for obtaining consent and conducting an initial evaluation,
and provide prior written notice of the decision, if it determines that the student will be evaluated to

determine eligibility for Part B services;

The district will follow the procedures for timelines and evaluation requirements for students moving
from Part C to Part B. exeept However, students turning three, who were previously determined
eligible for early intervention services under Part C of IDEA, will be evaluated for initial eligibility for
special education services under Part B of IDEA. The evaluation must be completed in enough time to
develop an initial IEP by the date of the student’s third birthday.

Evaluation Requirements
The purpose of the evaluation is to collect information about a student’s functional, developmental and

academic skills and achievements from a variety of sources, to determine whether a student qualifies
for special education and related services, and to develop an IEP. This includes information provided
by the parent. All information gathered in this process is reviewed by the IEP team or other group of

qualified professionals.




Procedure 2161
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

The evaluation must be an individual assessment designed to determine:

® Whether the student is eligible for special education and any necessary rclated services; and,

e The nature and extent of special education and related services needed by the student, including
information related to enabling the child to be involved in and progress in the general education
curriculum.

The district’s special education department will select the members of the evaluation group. Members
selected must be knowledgeable about the student and the areas of suspected disabilities.
Qualifications of a group member include having the appropriate professional license or certification
and may include outside practitioners when necessary. When assessing for specific learning
disabilities, the parent and a group of qualified professionals must be part of the group. If the student
requires a medical evaluation in order to determine eligibility, the district will coordinate with the
parents to arrange for the evaluation at district expense or through the use of public or private
insurance if the parent consents to the use of the insurance.

There are many legal requirements for conducting evaluations. Evaluation procedures or materials
must be free of racial, cultural or sexual/gender bias and they must be used for the purpose for which
they are valid and reliable. Tests must be appropriate for the student’s age and stage of developmental
level. Tests should be administered in the native language of the student or conducted in the mode of
communication most familiar to the student. If it appears to be clearly not feasible to conduct a
procedure or test in the mode of communication most frequently used by the student, the IEP team will
contact the special education administrator to develop an individualized strategy for valid evaluation of
the student’s skills. The inclusion of parents in this collaboration is desirable and strongly encouraged.

Specific areas to be included in the evaluation are determined by the special education assessment

team and other qualified professionals, as appropriate, as part of a review of existing data concerning
the student. The evaluation does not rely on one source or procedure as the sole criterion for

determination and should include:
e Review of existing data, including corresponding response to intervention (RTI) documentation;
e Relevant functional and developmental information;

Information from parents;
e Information from other providers;

e Information related to enabling access to and progress within the general education curriculum and
assisting in determining whether there is a disability and the content of the [EP;

e (Current classroom-based evaluations, using criterion-referenced and curriculum-based methods,
anecdotal records and observations;

e Teacher and related service providers’ observations;

® Testing and other evaluation materials, which may include medical or other evaluations when
necessary.

All current evaluation data as well as data previously reviewed by the team must be considered.
Professional members of the evaluation team need to be familiar with qualifying disability definitions
and criteria in federal and state rules.

This review of existing data may be in the form of a meeting of IEP team members, or may be
conducted without a meeting. It could include data provided by parents, data gathered in the general

7




Procedure 2161
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

education classroom or from state and district level assessments. The data may provide information
about the student’s physical condition, social or cultural background and adaptive behavior.

When additional assessments are necessary, the group members have the responsibility of selecting,
administering, interpreting and making judgments about evaluation methods and results, and ensuring
that the tests and assessments are administered by qualified personnel in accordance with the
instructions of the test producer. The gathering of additional data in combination with existing data
must be sufficiently comprehensive to address all areas of the suspected disability and any special
education needs, whether linked to the disability category or not. If the IEP Team determines that no
additional data is needed, the IEP team will notify the student’s parent of that determination and the
reasons for it, and inform them of their right to request additional assessments. The district will

complete the evaluation using existing data.

Parents and district staff are encouraged to work towards consensus, but the school district has the
ultimate responsibility to determine whether the student has a disability or not. The school district will
provide the parent with prior written notice of the eligibility decision, as well as a copy of the
evaluation report. If the parent disagrees with the eligibility decision they need to be informed of their
dispute resolution options described in the procedural safeguards.

Speciﬁc Learnlng Dlsablllty (SLD)

The district uses a combination of severe dlscrepancy and a process based ona student s response to
intervention to scientific, research-based intervention in determining the identification of students with
a specific learning disability consistent with the district’s RTI policy and procedure (2163). Grade
levels and content areas are described in the district’s RTI general education procedure (2163).

Student response is only one element in determining whether a child has a specific learning disability.
The evaluation will be comprehensive and address all areas of suspected disability and will also
include whether the child performs adequately to meet the grade-level standards in the general
education curriculum. The evaluation will also include whether failure to make progress is or is not the
result of:

e A physical, mental, emotional, or environmental factor or limited English proficiency, or

e Inadequate instruction in reading or mathematics.

Evaluation of Transfer Students

If a student transfers into the school district while an evaluation process is pending from the other
district, the special education department is responsible for determining the status of evaluations
conducted to date and making a determination as to whether the evaluation can be completed within
the 35 school day timeline from the date the parent provrded consent If the determ1nat1on is that

; th s : ; : : thhe spec1al educatlon staff
will notlfy the parent and obta1n the parent s agreement to estabhsh a new timeline.

Eligibility
The evaluation group and the parent will determine whether or not the student is-a-speeial-edueation
stadent is eligible for special education services:
® A student is not eligible if the determinant factor is lack of appropriate instruction in reading or
math, based upon the state’s grade level expectations or limited English proficiency; and
e Eligibility may be determined by documented professional judgment when:
- Properly validated tests are unavailable; or

8




Procedure 2161
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

- Corroborating evidence indicates that results were influenced due to measuring a disability.

The parent will be provided with a copy of the evaluation report and the documentation of
determination of eligibility.

Parents will also be provided with prior written notice of the eligibility decision within ten school days
of the decision. The special education department is responsible for sending the notice.

Students remain eligible for special education services until one of four events occur:

e The student is determined through a reevaluation to no longer be eligible for special education;

e The student has met the district’s high school graduation requirements;

e The student has reached age 21. A special education student whose 21%* birthday occurs after
August 31, shall continue to be eligible for special education and any necessary related services for
the remainder of the school year, or

e The student no longer receives special education services based upon a parent’s written revocation
of services.

When a special education student is expected to graduate prior to age 21, or when graduation is part of
the transition plan, the IEP team will document a student’s progress towards achieving course credits
towards graduation on the transition portion of the IEP. The district will provide prior written notice to
parents and adult students that the student is expected to graduate and will no longer be eligible for
special education services. The district will also provide the parents and student with a summary of
academic achievement and functional performance and recommendations to assist the student with

postsecondary goals.

Special education student may substitute special education, vocational, and/or general education
credits upon the recommendation of the student’s Individualized Education Program (IEP) team. In the
event minimum test requirements are adopted by the Board, a student who possesses a disability shall
satisfy those competency requirements which are incorporated into the Individualized Education
Program (IEP). Satisfactory completion of the objectives incorporated into the IEP shall serve as the
basis for determining completion of a course.

See Policy 2410/Procedure 2410, Graduation Requirements.

Evaluation Report

Each person conducting an assessment of the student will specify the procedures and instruments used
and their results and the significance of findings related to the student’s instructional program,
including a specification of the factors interfering with performance and the special education and

related services needed.

The evaluation group will determine who is most appropriate to develop the evaluation report
reflecting the evaluation information. This will be completed before the conclusion of the evaluation

period and will, at a minimum:

o Identify the disability which requires special education and related services, if a disability exists;

® Discuss assessments and review data supporting conclusions regarding eligibility;

e Include the additional information required for the specific learning disability eligibility category;

e Describe how the disability or disabilities affect the student’s involvement and progress in the
general curriculum;




Procedure 2161
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

e Make recommendations to the IEP team with respect to special education and related services

needed, materials or equipment, instructional and curricular practices, student management

strategies, the need for extended school year services beyond 180 school days and location of

services;

Include other information, as determined through the evaluation process and parent input;

Include the additional information required for the specific learning disability eligibility category;

Provide any necessary professional judgments and the facts or reasons in support of the judgments;

and

¢ Be signed and dated by the evaluation group members certifying their agreement. Any group
member who disagrees with the conclusions shall prepare a statement presenting the conclusion.

The special education department is responsible for notifying parents of the date, time and location of
evaluation meetings by following the procedures in the parent participation section for inviting parents

to meetings.

Re-evaluations
A re-evaluation of a student receiving special education or related services is conducted if academic

achievement and functional performance has improved to warrant a reevaluation, if the IEP team
suspects that the student may no longer be a student with a disability or if the child’s parent or teacher
requests a reevaluation. A reevaluation does not occur more than once per year, unless parent and
school agree otherwise. A reevaluation must occur at least once every three years, unless parent and
school staff agree that a reevaluation is unnecessary. An agreement that an evaluation is unnecessary
shall be confirmed in writing to the parent. Special education staff will schedule a review of this

determination and notify the special education department.

Students who turn six who met the ecligibility requirements for the disability category of
“Developmentally Delayed” (DD) under the criteria for ages three to six years need not be reevaluated
at age six under the criteria for six to nine years until three years after their initial evaluation was

completed

Students who were previously eligible under the category “Developmentally Delayed” must be
reevaluated before age sine-ten to determine eligibility within another category.

As part of any re-evaluation, the JEP team members and other professionals the district determines

appropriate will review existing data that includes:

e Evaluations and information provided by the parents;

e Current classroom-based assessment, local or state assessments and classroom based observations;
and

e Observations by other teachers and related services providers data.

Based on this review the team will determine whether any additional data is necessary to determine:

¢ Whether the student continues to be eligible for special education and any necessary related
services;

e The present levels of performance and educational needs; and

e Whether any additions or modifications to the student’s program are needed. This review can occur
with or without a meeting or through individual review. If the IEP team members and any other
persons reviewing the data determine that no further testing is necessary, the district will notify the

10




Procedure 2161
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

parents of this determination, using written prior notice and will inform parents that they have the
right to request assessments if they disagree with the determination that additional testing is not
necessary. Parent consent is not required if the reevaluation does not require additional testing:

e If additional testing is needed, the district assessment team will request written parental
consent for reevaluation and provide prior written notice identifying the areas of assessment;

e If the parents do not return the signed consent form, the district shall send another letter explaining
the need for reevaluation and parent consent and will enclose another consent form and a copy of
the prior written notice. In addition, the district will document its reasonable attempts to obtain
consent such as telephone calls, emails, personal contact and other efforts to obtain consent;

e If the parents do not respond to the request for consent, and the district has documented its
reasonable attempts to obtain consent, the district can proceed with the reevaluation; and,;

e If the parents refuse to consent to the reevaluation, the evaluation group will notify the special
education department so that the district can determine whether it will seek mediation in order to
obtain consent or request a due process hearing to ask an administrative judge to override the

parent’s refusal to consent.

After the reevaluation is completed, the district will both invite parents to the eligibility meeting and
will provide prior written notice after the meeting of the results of reevaluation to parents in their
primary language, indicating one or more of the following:

e Whether the student continues to be eligible and in need of special education;

e Present levels of performance and educational needs of the student; and

e Whether any additions or modifications to the special education and related services are needed to
enable the student to meet IEP annual goals and to participate, as appropriate, in the general

curriculum.

This notice will occur within ten school days of the eligibility decision. The special education
department is responsible for sending the notice.

Re-evaluation and Graduation

No re-evaluation is required when special education eligibility terminates due to graduation from high
school with a regular diploma or due to reaching the end of the school year during which the student
turned 21. Instead, the district will provide prior written notice and the IEP team will provide the
student and the parent, by the student’s anticipated last day of school, with a summary of academic
achievement and functional performance including recommendations on how to assist the student in
meeting post-secondary goals. The special education teacher is responsible for assuring that the IEP
team completes the summary of academic achievement and functional performance.

Independent Educational Evaluations (IEE)
Parents of students eligible for special education, students referred for special education and

determined to not be eligible or students determined not to need an evaluation have a right to obtain an
IEE at public expense, each time the district conducts an evaluation of the student.

When parents request an IEE the district must decide within 15 calendar days whether or not it agrees
to provide it. Any parent request for an independent evaluation should be immediately referred to the
special education department. The special education director shall review the request and determine
whether or not the request is warranted. If the district agrees to provide an IEE, arrangements will be
made promptly. If the district denies the request to pay for an IEE, it must file for a due process
hearing within 15 calendar days of the parent’s request. The district may request mediation as an

11

L I —— e =



Procedure 2161
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

option after filing the due process hearing. If the parents withdraw their request for an IEE the due
process hearing can be dismissed.

When a parent requests an IEE, the district must provide parents a list of district criteria and
evaluators. If the school district initiates a hearing and a decision is made that the district’s evaluation
is appropriate, the parent still has the right to an IEE but not a public expense. A parent is only entitled
to one IEE at public expense each time the district conducts an evaluation with which the parent

disagrees.

If the parent obtains an IEE at either public or private expense, any results of the IEE must be
considered by the district if providing FAPE. The IEE may also be presented as evidence at a hearing
regarding the student.

The following criteria are established for the selection of an individual to conduct an IEE at public
expense. These criteria are established in order to identify the knowledge, experience and
qualifications of individuals selected to conduct the evaluations. Any individual selected to conduct
either a district evaluation or an IEE must be:

e Licensed, credentialed or otherwise qualified within the state of Washington or state of
residence/practice to perform an evaluation in the specific professional discipline for which an
independent evaluation is sought;

Knowledgeable and experienced in evaluating children with similar disabilities;

Geographically located within-the-greater-Spekane-area the state of Washington; and
Available to the district at a maximum fee which does not exceed by more than 25% the prevailing

average for similar evaluations within the state of Washington.

Exceptions to the criteria will be granted only when it can be shown that the unique circumstances of
the child or the disability:

e Make it impossible to identify anyone within the greater-Spekane-area state of Washington who
holds the appropriate credentials or experience necessary to conduct the evaluation; or

e Require a specialized evaluator whose fee exceeds the prevailing average by more than 25%; or
® Include factors, which would warrant an exception in order to obtain an appropriate evaluation.

Individualized Education Programs (IEP)

IEP Development
The term IEP means a written statement for each student eligible for special education that is

developed, reviewed and revised in a meeting in accordance with WAC 392-172A-03095 through
WAC 392-172A-03100. The IEP reflects the implementation of instructional programs and other
services for students who are eligible for special education services, based on the evaluation of student

needs.

An IEP must be in effect before initiation of special education services. The IEP must be developed
within 30 calendar days after the student’s initial determination of eligibility for special services. IEPs
must be updated annually, or revised more frequently if needed to adjust the program and services.

Parent consent is required before the initial provision of special education services. If a parent refuses
to consent to the provision of special education services, the district may not use mediation or due
process to override a parent’s refusal. When a parent refuses to provide consent the special education

12




Procedure 2161
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

department will notify that parent that the district does not have a FAPE obligation to the student. The
notification will be documented in the student’s file.

The district will maintain a copy of the current IEP, which is accessible to all staff members
responsible for providing education, other services or implementation of the IEP. All staff members
will be informed of their responsibilities for its implementation. This includes not only teachers and
other service providers, but also bus drivers, playground and lunchroom supervisors, nursing staff and
others who may be responsible for the proper implementation. The building principa is responsible for
ensuring that staff members are knowledgeable about their responsibilities.

IEPs will be implemented without undue delay following IEP meetings, regardless of the payment
source for special education and or related services.

Parents are members of the IEP team and shall have the opportunity to fully participate. The district
will make sure that the parents understand the proceedings, including arranging for an interpreter for
parents who are deaf or whose native language is other than English. The district will also ensure that
meeting locations are accessible. The special education department is responsible for coordinating
interpreters and making arrangements for the meeting location.

The district will provide parents/guardians with a copy of the district’s Restraint, Isolation and Other
Uses of Reasonable Force policy (Policy 3246) with each initial and annual IEP.

The IEP team includes:

® The parents of the student;

e Not less than one general education teacher (or preschool teacher) of the student if the student is, or
will be, participating in the general education environment. The general education teacher will, to
the extent appropriate, participate in development of the student’s IEP, including determinations of:
1) appropriate positive behavioral interventions and supports for the student; and 2) supplementary
aids and services, program modifications, and support school personnel consistent with WAC 392-
172A-01185 and WAC 392-172A-03110(2)(b);

e Not less than one special education teacher, or if appropriate, not less than one special education
provider of the student;

® A representative of the district, who is qualified to provide or supervise the provision of special
education and related services, is knowledgeable about general education curriculum, and is
knowledgeable about the availability of district resources;

e An individual who can interpret the instructional implications of the evaluation results;

® Any other individuals who have knowledge or special expertise about the student. These
individuals may be invited by both the district and the parents, at the discretion of the person
making the invitation;

® The student, when appropriate, or when required;

Students must be invited when the purpose of the meeting includes discussion of transition needs
or services;

e If another agency is or may be responsible for payment or provision of transition services, an
agency representative will be invited, with the parent’s consent. If the agency representative can
not attend the meeting, district personnel shall keep the representative informed of the meeting and
obtain agency information that will assist in the service provision;

13




Procedure 2161
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

e Parents will be notified of the participation of the Part C service coordinator or other designated
representatives of the Part C system as specified by the state lead educational agency for Part C at
the initial IEP meeting for a child previously served under Part C of IDEA.

The parents and district must agree in writing before any of the above team members are excused from
all or part of a meeting. If a team member’s area of the IEP is being discussed or modified, then the
parent and district must consent to their excusal; and that specific team member must provide advance
written input for their part of the IEP prior to the meeting. If a team member is unable to attend,
parents must be provided with the opportunity to excuse the team member from the meeting. If there
are any changes to the IEP which are related to the general education course(s), then the general
education teacher will need to provide input about the student’s progress or any information pertinent
to the modifications being made to the IEP. The parent must be asked whether they excuse the teacher
and, if so, must consent in writing. The excusal form will be completed in the event the general
education teacher cannot attend. If the parent does not excuse the teacher, the meeting will need to be
rescheduled. Existing team members may fill more than one of these roles if they meet the criteria for

the role. Reference WAC 392-172A03095(5)(a).

Sometimes parents do not attend IEP meetings. There will also be times the parents do not agree with
the IEP as proposed, and despite attempts to reach agreement on IEP content, the team does not reach
agreement. If a parent attends the [EP meeting and agreement is not reached on the IEP, the team will
determine whether another IEP meeting should be scheduled as soon as mutually possible, or whether
there is enough information to complete the IEP. When the decision is made that the IEP will be
implemented the district must send prior written notice of the decisions reached to the parent, including

the date the IEP will be implemented.

When the parents do not attend the IEP meeting, despite the district’s efforts to ensure participation, or

if the team does not reach agreement, it is the district’s obligation to offer an appropriate educational

program:

e Have IEP members present sign the IEP (or document participation if any member is unwilling to
sign);

e Send a copy to the parent, and provide the parent prior written notice that the district intends to
implement the IEP; and

e Forward the documentation of actual or attempted contacts to the special education department for
processing when parents do not attend the meeting;

When making changes to an IEP after the annual IEP meeting for a school year, the parent and the
district may agree not to convene an IEP meeting for the purpose of making changes. The parent and
the district must complete a written document indicating the changes and inform IEP team members
and appropriate individuals of the changes. Individual case managers or special education staff, are
required to complete amendments. If the parent requests that the district revise the IEP to include the
amendments, the designated special education staff will revise the IEP.

IEP Preparation and Content
IEP teams will consider the recommendations in the most recent evaluation to develop the IEP. In

developing the IEP, the team should consider:
® The strengths of the student including the academic, developmental and functional needs of the
student and the concerns of the parents for enhancing the education of their child;

14




Procedure 2161
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

Whether positive behavioral interventions and supports, including a behavioral intervention plan,
as defined by WAC 392-172A-01031, are needed to address the student’s behavior;

The language needs of the student as those needs relate to the student’s IEP, for a student with
limited English proficiency;

Whether Braille instruction is appropriate for a student who is blind or visually impaired;

The communication needs of the student (and in the case of a student who is deaf or hard of
hearing, consider the student’s language and communication needs), opportunities for direct
communications with peers and professional personnel in the student’s language and
communication mode; academic level; and full range of needs including opportunity for direct
instruction in the student’s language and communication mode; and

Whether assistive technology devices or services are needed.

IEP content must include:

The student’s present levels of academic and functional performance with a description of how the
disability(ies) affect the student’s involvement and progress in the general curriculum or preschool
activities;

Measurable academic and functional annual goals for the student (including benchmarks or short
term objectives if the student is participating in alternate assessments) that will meet the student’s
needs resulting from the disability(ies) to enable involvement and progress in the general
curriculum or in preschool activities, and will meet the student’s other educational needs;

A statement of special education services, any necessary related services, and supplementary aids
and services based on peer-reviewed research to the extent practicable to be provided to the student
and program modifications or supports for personnel so that the student may advance towards
annual goals, progress in the general curriculum and be educated and participate with other special
education students and non-disabled students and participate in extracurricular and other
nonacademic activities;

A statement of the extent, if any, that the student will not participate with non-disabled students in
general classroom, extra-curricular and non-academic activities;

A statement of any individual appropriate accommodations in the administration of state or district-
wide assessments of student achievement that are needed to measure academic achievement and
functional performance of the child on state assessments. If the team determines that the student
will not participate in a particular assessment, the IEP will address why the student cannot
participate in the regular assessment(s) and why the particular alternative assessment is appropriate
for the child, and document (a) that the parents were informed that their student’s academic
achievement will be measured on alternate standards, and (b) how participation in an alternate
assessment may delay or otherwise affect the student from completing the requirements for a
regular high school diploma;

The date for the beginning of services and the anticipated frequency, location and duration of
services and modifications;

A statement of how the student’s progress towards goals will be measured, how the student’s
parents will be regularly informed of their child’s progress towards the annual goals and whether
the progress is sufficient to enable the student to achieve the goal by the end of the year.
Measurement of the student’s progress will be based on data collected as designated on the IEP.
The individual responsible for implementing the goal is responsible for maintaining the data used
to measure progress. Information to the parents can be provided at the same time the district issues
progress reports or report cards, or other agreed times as identified in the IEP.

The projected beginning date for the special education and related services;
15




Procedure 2161
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

e With an IEP that is in effect when the child turns 16, or sooner if the IEP team determines it is
appropriate, a statement of needed transition services and any interagency responsibilities or
needed linkages. Transition component must include appropriate measurable postsecondary goals
based on age-appropriate transition and assessments related to training, education, employment,
independent living skills where appropriate; and transition services (including course of study)
needed to assist the child in reaching those goals; and a description of how the postsecondary goals
and transition services align with the high school and beyond plan (HSBP);

e Emergency response protocols, if necessary, by the IEP team for the student to receive FAPE and
parents provide consent. Emergency response protocols must meet the requirements stated in WAC
392-172A-02105;

e A behavioral intervention plan (BIP), if determined necessary by the IEP team for a student to
receive FAPE. The BIP must meet the requirements stated in WAC 392-172A-01301;

e The procedures by which parents/guardians will be notified of the use of isolation or restraint or a
restraint device on their student (see Procedure 3246);

e A statement regarding transfer of rights at the age of majority. Special education staff will provide
prior written notice to the student one year prior to student turning 18 years of age;

e Extended school year (ESY) services. The consideration for ESY services is a team decision, based
on information provided in the evaluation report and based on the individual needs of a student.
ESY services are not limited by categories of disability, or limited by type amount or duration of
the services. If the need for ESY services is not addressed in the IEP and ESY services may be
appropriate for the student, the IEP team will meet by May to address the need for ESY. Factors for
the team to consider when determining the need for ESY may include, but are not limited to: 1)
Evidence of regression or recoupment time based on documented evidence; or 2) A documented
determination based on the professional judgment of the IEP team including consideration of the
nature and severity of the student’s disability, the rate of progress and emerging skills.

Use of Isolation, Restraint and Restraint Devices

e Definitions
- Imminent: The state or condition of being likely to occur at any moment or near at hand, rather

than distant or remote.

- Isolation: Restricting a student alone within a room or any other form of enclosure, from which
the student may not leave. It does not include a student’s voluntary use of a quiet space for self-
calming, or temporary removal of a student from his or her regular instructional area to an
unlocked area for purposes of carrying out an appropriate positive behavior intervention plan.

_ Likelihood of Serious Harm: A substantial risk that physical harm will be inflicted by a student:

a. upon his or her own person, as evidenced by threats or attempts to commit suicide or
inflict physical harm on oneself;

b. upon another, as evidenced by behavior that has caused such harm or that places
another person or persons in reasonable fear of sustaining such harm;

c. upon the property of others, as evidenced by behavior that has caused substantial loss or
damage to the property of others; or

d. after the student has threatened the physical safety of another and has history of one or
more violent acts.

. Positive Behavioral Intervention: Strategies and instruction that can be implemented in a
strategic manner in order to provide alternatives to challenging behaviors, reinforce desired
behaviors, and reduce or eliminate the frequency and severity of challenging behaviors.
Positive behavioral interventions include the consideration of environmental factors that may

16




Procedure 2161
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

trigger challenging behaviors and teaching a student the skills to manage his or her own
behavior.

Restraint: Physical intervention or force used to control a student, including the use of a
restraint device. It does not include appropriate use of a prescribed medical, orthopedic or
therapeutic device when used as intended, such as to achieve proper body position, balance or
alignment or to permit a student to safely participate in activities.

Restraint Device: A device used to assist in controlling a student, including, but not limited to,
metal handcuffs, plastic ties, ankle restraints, leather cuffs, other hospital-type restraints, pepper
spray, tasers or batons. Restraint device does not mean a seat harness used to safely transport
students. This definition is consistent with RCW 28A.600.485(a)(c) and is not intended to
endorse or encourage the use of such devices or techniques with district students.

Practices presumed to be unreasonable when correcting or restraining any student under the age of
18. Under RCW 9A.16.100, the following is a non-exclusive list of acts that are presumed
unreasonable when correcting or restraining a child:

throwing, kicking, burning, or cutting a child;

striking a child with a closed fist;

shaking child under the age of three;

interfering with a child’s breathing;

threatening a child with a deadly weapon; or

doing any other act that is likely to cause bodily harm to a student greater than transient pain or

minor temporary marks.

This non-exclusive list should not be read so as to imply that another, unlisted form of correction or
restraint is permissible. Whether or not an unlisted use of force or restraint is presumptively
permissible depends upon a balanced consideration of all relevant state laws and regulations, and
whether the use is reasonable under the totality of the circumstances.

Conditions specific to use of isolation:

The isolation must be discontinued as soon as the likelihood of serious harm has dissipated.
The enclosure will be ventilated, lighted and temperature controlled from inside or outside for

purposes of human occupancy.
The isolation enclosure will permit continuous visual monitoring of the student from outside

the enclosure.

An adult responsible for supervising the student will remain in visual or auditory range of the
student at all times.

Either the student shall be capable of releasing himself or herself from the enclosure, or the
student shall continuously remain within view of an adult responsible for supervising the
student.

Any staff member or other adults using isolation must be trained and certified by a qualified
provider in the use of trauma-informed crisis intervention (including de-escalation techniques),
and also trained by the district in isolation requirements, unless trained personnel are not
immediately available due to the unforeseeable nature of the emergency.

Conditions specific to use of restraint and restraint devices:

The use of restraint or a restraint device must be discontinued as soon as the likelihood of
serious harm has dissipated.

The restraint or restraint device will not interfere with the student’s breathing.

Any staff member or other adults using restraint or restraint devices must be trained and
certified by a qualified provider in the use of trauma-informed crisis intervention, (including
de-escalation techniques), and such restraint or restraint devices, or otherwise available in the
case of emergency unless trained personnel are not immediately available due to the

unforeseeable nature of the emergency.

17




Procedure 2161
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

In the case of a restraint device, either the student will be capable of releasing himself or herself
from the restraint device or the student shall continuously remain within view of an adult

responsible for supervising the student.

e Prohibited practices involving restraint, use of force and discipline. The following practices are
prohibited with students eligible for special education services:

District personnel are prohibited from using aversive interventions.

District personnel are prohibited from physically restraining or isolating a student, except when
the student’s behavior poses an imminent likelihood of serious harm as defined above.

No student may be stimulated by contact with electric current, including but not limited to
tasers.

A student may not be denied or subjected to an unreasonable delay in the provision of food or
liquid as a form of punishment.

A student may not be the recipient of force or restraint that is either unreasonable under the
circumstances or deemed to be an unreasonable form of corporal punishment as a matter of
state law (see above, for example, for a list of practices presumed to be unreasonable when
used in correcting or restraining of a child).

A student must not be denied or subjected to an unreasonable delay in the provision of common

hygiene care.
A student must not be denied or subjected to an unreasonable delay in the provision of

medication.

A student may not be excluded from his or her regular instructional or service area and isolated
within a room or any other form of enclosure, except under the conditions set forth in WAC
392-172A-02110.

A student must not be forced to listen to noise or sound that the student finds painful.

A student must not be forced to smell or be sprayed in the face with a noxious or potentially
harmful substance.

A student must not be forced to taste or ingest a substance which is not commonly consumed or
which is not commonly consumed in its existing form or concentration.

A student’s head must not be partially or wholly submerged in water or any other liquid.

A student must not be physically restrained or immobilized by binding or otherwise attaching
the student’s limbs together or by binding or otherwise attaching any part of the student’s body
to an object, except under the conditions set forth in WAC 392-172A.02110.

A student must not be subjected to the use of prone (lying face-down) and supine (lying face-
up) restraint, wall restraint or any restraint that interferes with the student’s breathing.

e Documents and Reporting Requirements. Districts must follow the documentation and reporting
requirements for any use of isolation, restraint, or a restraint device consistent with RCW
28A .600.485 and the parental notification requirement of RCW 28A.155.210. (See Policy &
Procedure 3246, Restraint, Isolation and Other Uses of Reasonable Force.)

Transfer Students
Students who transfer from one district to another within the state continue to be eligible for special

education and any necessary related services. When an eligible student transfers into the district, the
building principal will notify the special education department. The special education department and
principal in consultation with parents will review the student’s IEP to ensure the district provides
services comparable to those in the previous IEP until the district adopts the previous IEP or develops,

adopts and implements a new IEP.

18



Procedure 2161
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

When a student who was identified as eligible for special education transfers from out of state into the
district, the building principal will notify the special education department as soon as possible. The
school psychologist will review the evaluation, eligibility documentation and IEP to determine whether
or not the student meets state eligibility criteria. If the student meets the state eligibility criteria the
district will follow the procedures described in the previous paragraph to provide comparable services
until the district develops an IEP for the student. If the student needs to be evaluated to determine
eligibility in this state, special education department will notify the parents, obtain consent and
evaluate the student for eligibility within 35 school days of the receipt of the parent’s consent. The
district, in consultation with the parents, will continue to provide special education services
comparable to the services on the student’s IEP, pending the results of the evaluation.

The district must take reasonable steps to obtain records promptly, including IEP supporting
documents and any other records related to special education or related services from the previous
school. Special education staff are responsible for obtaining records and ensuring follow-up if the

records are not provided.

Placement
No student may receive special education and related services without being determined eligible for

services, and thus the evaluation process and IEP development precedes the determination of the
special education placement. When a student has been evaluated and the evaluation team and parent
have determined student eligibility and the need for special education and related services,
programming decisions must occur. These decisions are made on the basis of information generated
through the evaluation and IEP processes. The actual program is considered within the context of least
restrictive environment (LRE) and the continuum of placement alternatives (reviewed below). When
determining initial eligibility for special education, including determination of the appropriate
placement, the parent or adult student must provide written consent for services before the student
receives special education services. If the parents do not consent to the provision of special education
and related services, the district will not provide special education services to the student. The district
will notify the parents that the student is eligible for services and that the district is willing to provide
the services when the parent provides written consent. The notification will also inform parents that the
district has no FAPE obligation to the student when parents refuse to provide consent.

When program decisions are addressed by the IEP team, proper consideration must be given to the
LRE. Within the educational setting, the student should be placed, whenever possible:

e [In the school the disabled student would normally attend; and,
¢ With non-disabled students in the general educational setting to the maximum extent possible.

Special classes, separate schools or removal of students with disabilities from the general education
environment occurs only when the nature or severity of the disability is such that education in the
general education classroom with use of supplementary aids and services cannot be satisfactorily

achieved.

If the IEP team believes that the student will not be successful within the general education classroom,
the team will consider:
o The educational benefits of full-time placement in a regular classroom;

® The non-academic benefits of such a placement;
® The effect the student will have on the teacher and other students in the regular classroom; and
®

The costs of placing the student in the regular classroom.

19




Procedure 2161
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

The degree to which the student is to be integrated into the general classroom setting is dependent
upon the identified needs of the student. This placement is to occur unless the nature of the needs are
so severe that this cannot be satisfactorily achieved, even with supplementary aids and services. If the
placement is in another building, the appropriate educational placement will be as close to the student's

home as reasonably possible.

Within the nonacademic setting, students will be provided nonacademic and extracurricular activities
with non-disabled students. District or school sponsored activities may include: counseling services,
athletics, transportation, health services, recreational activities, clubs, etc. Limits on nonparticipation
or conditions of participation must be designated in the IEP.

The district will also make opportunities available for students eligible for special education to
participate with non-disabled students in the district’s art, music, computer, career and technical
education classes and physical education.

Within the district, a continuum of alternative placement options exists spanning within a general
education class or regular early childhood program, resource room, self-contained, homebound and
out-of-district provisions. These options are intended to address the individual needs of students
including preschool students with disabilities and they are considered according to the following

process:

The placement of each student with a disability will be determined annually, or sooner if appropriate,
by the IEP team.

The appropriateness of placement options will be based upon various decisions including:

¢ Data-based judgments in [EP development;

¢ Judgments (data-based) in determining LRE;

o The reasonable probability of the placement option(s) assisting the student to attain annual goals
and objectives and the quality of services needed; and

e The consideration of potentially harmful effects upon the student or on the quality of services
needed.

Placement options along the continuum must include alternative placement options identified in the
definition of special education and make provisions for supplementary services such as resource room
or itinerant instruction to be provided in concert with the general education placement.

Students Unilaterally Enrolled in Private Non-Profit Schools by Parents

On November 1, the district shall conduct an annual count of the number of private elementary and
secondary school students eligible for special education who are unilaterally enrolled by their parents
in a private school located within district boundaries. The district special education staff shall will have
timely and meaningful consultation with appropriate representatives of private schools and
representatives of parents of private school students and make determinations about who will receive
services and what services will be provided. The purpose of Child Count is to determine the
proportionate amount that the district must spend on providing special education and related services,
including transportation, to private elementary or secondary school students in the next fiscal year.

The district is required to spend a proportionate amount of federal special education Part B and Section

619 funds to provide special education and related services to private school students. In order to

determine which students will receive services, what services will be provided, how and where the
20




Procedure 2161
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

services will be provided, and how services provided will be evaluated, the district shall consult with
appropriate representatives and parents of private school students. The district shall make the final
decision with respect to services to be provided to eligible private school students. The special
education office will invite each approved non-profit private school operating in the district. An initial
meeting will be called by the district to establish a work plan and schedule with the private school
representatives and representatives of private school parents to discuss how to identify students, the
amount of proportionate share, how the proportionate share was calculated, which students will receive
services, what services will be provided, how and where services will be provided, and how services

will be evaluated.

Special Education staff is responsible for private school involvement and service plan development. A
private school student has no individual entitlement to any service or amount of service (s)he would
have received if enrolled in a public school to receive FAPE. However, for each private school student
receiving special education or related services, the district will initiate and conduct meetings to
develop, review and revise a services plan describing the specific special education and related
services that the district will provide. The services plan must: (1) meet IEP content requirements as
appropriate; and (2) be developed, reviewed, implemented and revised annually consistent with the
requirements for IEP review. The district shall make every effort to include a representative from the
private school at each meeting. If the private school representative is not able to attend, the district
shall use other methods, including individual or conference telephone calls, to assure the

representative’s participation.

Private school students may receive a different amount of services than special education students in
public schools. However, the services provided to special education private school students will be
provided by personnel meeting the same standards as personnel providing the services in the district.

Services to students in private schools including private sectarian schools may be provided on-site.
District personnel may be made available to private schools only to the extent necessary to provide the
services required, if those services are not normally provided by the private school. Services will not
include payment of private school teachers’ or other employees’ salaries, except for services performed
outside regular private school hours and under public supervision and control.

Equipment and/or supplies may be placed on private school premises for the period of time necessary
for the services plan program, but the district shall retain and exercise title and administrative control
of said equipment/supplies. The district shall keep records and make an accounting assuring that said
equipment/supplies is/are used solely for the services plan program. Said equipment/supplies shall be
removed if necessary to avoid its/their use for other purposes or if no longer needed for the services
plan program. No district funds shall be used for repairs, minor remodeling or construction of private

school facilities.

The district will provide services to students in private schools in a manner that: (1) maintains physical
and administrative separation between the private and public school programs; and (2) does not benefit

the private school at public expense.

Procedural Safeguards

Notice of Procedural Safeguards

In addition to protections provided to parents of eligible students, parents also have procedural

safeguard protections when a student’s identification, evaluation or placement is at issue. The school

21




Procedure 2161
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

district will provide a copy of the procedural safeguards notice to the parents and adult students one
time a year and:
e Upon initial referral or parent request for evaluation;
e Upon receipt of the parent’s first state complaint and first request for due process hearing in a
school year;
Upon a disciplinary action that will result in a disciplinary change of placement; and

Upon request by the parent.

The procedural safeguard notice used by the district includes a full explanation of all the procedural
safeguards relating to independent educational evaluation, prior written notice, parental consent, access
to educational records, discipline procedures for students who are subject to placement in an interim
alternative educational setting, requirements for unilateral placement by parents of children in private
schools at public expense, state complaint procedures, mediation, the child’s placement during
pendency of due process proceedings including requirements for disclosure of evidence, due process
hearings, civil actions and attorney’s fees. Copies of the district’s special education procedural
safeguards are available at the districts special education department and website.

Consent

The district will obtain informed, written parental consent before:

¢ Conducting an initial evaluation;

® Providing initial special education and related services to a student; and

® Conducting a reevaluation if the reevaluation includes administration of additional assessments.

Parental consent is not required to review existing data as part of an evaluation or reevaluation, or to
administer a test or other evaluation that is administered to all students unless consent is required of all

students’ parents.

Informed consent means that the parent or adult student:

e Has been fully informed of all information that is relevant to the activity for which the district is
asking consent, and that the information is provided in his or her native language or other mode of
communication;

¢ Understands and agrees in writing to the activity for which consent is sought and the consent
describes the activity and lists any records which will be released and to whom; and

e Understands that the granting of consent is voluntary and may be revoked at any time. If consent is
revoked, the revocation does not negate an action that has occurred after the consent was given and
before the consent was revoked.

The district may not use a parent’s refusal to consent to one service or activity to deny the parent or
child any other service, benefit or activity of the district.

If the district is unable to obtain a parent’s consent, the district may use mediation procedures to obtain
a parent’s consent or request a due process hearing asking the administrative law judge to override the
parent’s refusal to consent to an evaluation or reevaluation. The district may not request a due process
hearing to override a parent’s refusal to consent to initial special education services. The district may
not use mediation or due process procedures to override a parent’s refusal to consent to an evaluation
or re-evaluation if the student is home schooled or enrolled in a private school.

22




Procedure 2161
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

Revocation of Consent
Parents may revoke consent for the continued receipt of special education and related services. If

parents revoke consent, the staff member receiving the revocation will forward the revocation to
special education office staff.

Upon receipt of the parent’s written notice of revocation, the district special education staff will
provide prior written notice for a reasonable time before the district stops providing services. The
notice will include information about the effect of revocation and will inform the parent of the date the
district will stop providing special education and related services.

Discontinuation of special education and related services in response to the parent’s written revocation
will not be in violation of FAPE and eliminates the district’s requirement to convene an I[EP meeting or
develop an IEP. However, the district does have a continuing Child Find duty, and staff will follow
referral procedures if they believe the student should be referred for special education. In addition,
parents may request that the district conduct an initial evaluation for eligibility for special education
services after they have revoked consent for continued services.

Prior Written Notice
Prior written notices are provided to parents when a district makes a decision relating to a student’s

identification, evaluation, placement or provision of a FAPE. Prior written notices document the
decisions made by the IEP teams and evaluation group.

The district will provide prior written notice to the parent whenever the district proposes or refuses to
initiate or change the identification, evaluation, educational placement or provision of a FAPE to the

student.

The prior written notice will include:

e A statement that the parents have procedural safeguard protections and if a copy of the procedural
safeguards do not accompany the notice, a statement that describes how a copy of the statement of

procedural safeguards may be obtained;

® A description of the action proposed or refused by the district;

e An explanation of why the district proposes or refuses to take the action and a description of other
options that the district considered and the reasons why the options were rejected;

® A description of any other factors which are relevant to the district’s proposal or refusal;

e A description of each evaluation procedure, test, record or report the district used as a basis for the
proposal or refusal;

® A description of any evaluation procedures the district proposes to conduct and sources for parents
to contact to obtain assistance in understanding the procedural safeguards provision of this chapter.

Prior written notice and the notice of procedural safeguards must be provided in the native language of
the parent or other mode of communication used by the parent unless it is clearly not feasible to do so.
If the native language or other mode of communication of the parent is not a written language, the
district will take steps to ensure that the notice is translated orally or by other means to the parent. This
may involve:

e Arranging for an interpreter if English is not the native language of the parent or if the parent has a

hearing impairment; or
e Providing notice orally if the written language is not a native language.

23



Procedure 2161
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

The district will document in writing how this information was provided and that the parent
understands the content of the notice. District special education staff are responsible for sending prior
written notices after evaluation, eligibility, IEP team and placement decisions.

Transfer of Educational Rights to an Adult Student

When a student eligible for special education reaches the age of 18, all educational rights under Part B
of the IDEA, previously exercised by the parent, transfer to the student, unless the student is
determined incapacitated in a guardianship proceeding or the district has appointed an educational
representative for the student. Puringthe sehoelyear When the student turns 18, the district special
education staff will notify the parent and student that the educational rights have transferred to the
student and will send any required notices to both the parent and the adult student.

At an IEP meeting occurring one year before the student turns 18, the district will inform the parents
and the student that educational rights will transfer to the student and the district will inform the
student about those educational rights. This information will be documented on the IEP.

Appointment of an Educational Representative

A student over the age of eighteen is presumed to be capable of making educational decisions and able
to provide informed consent unless he or she is determined to be “incapacitated” through a legal
guardianship proceeding. If a parent, another interested party, or the district believes that a student over
the age of eighteen is unable to provide informed consent or to make educational decisions, and the
student does not have a legal guardian, the parent or other interested party may ask the district to
appoint an educational representative. This determination will only be made if two separate
professionals, as defined by WAC 392-172-A-05135(5)(a), state that they conducted an examination
and interviewed the student, and conclude the student is incapable of providing informed consent. The
district will inform the student of the decision and appoint, either the spouse, the student’s parents,
another adult or a surrogate educational representative to represent the student. The appointment of the
educational representative will continue for one year.

The student or other adult may challenge the certification at any time. If a challenge occurs, the district
will not rely on the education representative, until the representative is recertified.

Confidentiality and Records Management

Each building principal is responsible for maintaining the confidentiality of personally identifiable
information pertaining to special education and all other students. The Exeeutive Director of Student
Services will maintain, for public inspection, a current list of the names and positions of district
employees who have access to personally identifiable information of special education students. The
district will provide parent and adult students, upon request, a list of the types and locations of
educational records collected, maintained or used by the district.

The district will provide instruction annually to employees collecting or using personally identifiable
information on the procedures to protect the confidentiality of personally identifiable information. The
training will address the protections outlined in WAC 392-172A, state law and federal regulations

implementing the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act. FERPA. (34 CI'R Part 99).

Upon request, the parent(s) of a special education student or adult student will be afforded an
opportunity to inspect, review and challenge all educational records which shall include, but not be
limited to, the identification, evaluation, delivery of educational services and provision of FAPE to the
student. The district shall comply with the request promptly and before any meeting regarding an IEP
or hearing relating to the identification, evaluation, educational placement of the student or provision

24




Procedure 2161
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

of FAPE to the student, including disciplinary proceedings. In any case, the district shall respond no
more than 45-calendar days after the date the district received the request. If an educational record
includes information on more than one student, the parents (and/or adult student) may only inspect and
review information relating to their child. School personnel receiving requests for educational records
will immediately forward the request to special education department.

If parents believe that information in an education record is inaccurate or misleading or violates the
privacy or rights of the student, they may request that the district amend the information. Policy and
Procedure 3231, Student Records, describes the process and timelines for challenges and hearings

regarding student records.

The district follows the guidelines for records retention outlined in the Secretary of State’s, General
Records Retention Schedule and Records Management Manual. The district shall inform parents or
adult students when personally identifiable information collected, maintained or used is no longer
needed to provide educational services to the student. The information shall be destroyed at the request
of the parent(s) or adult student, or will be provided to the parent or adult student upon their request.
However, a permanent record of the student’s name, address and phone number, his or her grades,
attendance, record, classes attended, grade level completed and year completed will be maintained

without time limitation.

Records management is also governed by Policy and Procedure 4040, Public Access to District
Records.

Surrogate Parents
A surrogate parent is a person appointed by the school district to act on behalf of a student to help

ensure the rights of the student to a FAPE when a parent cannot be identified, the whereabouts of the
parent are unknown or the student is a ward of the state and does not have a foster parent.

Special education staff is responsible for determining the need for appointment of a surrogate parent.

Natural or adoptive parents, foster parents, persons acting in the place of a parent such as stepparents
or relatives and persons with legal custody or guardianship are considered parents. Students who are

homeless and not living with a parent may need a surrogate parent.

The following is guidance for the district to follow to assist in determining the status of the parent’s
rights to make educational decisions:

e In cases where the student is out of home care the district must determine the legal custodial status
of the child.

e Parents who have voluntarily placed their child in state placement still retain legal custody of the
child and retain the right to make educational decisions. In this situation the student is not a ward

of the state.

e Parents whose children are placed in group care, pending a determination of “dependency” may
still retain rights to make educational decisions unless otherwise ordered by the court.

e When a disposition order and order of dependency is issued, the state becomes the legal as well as
physical custodian of the child. Parents may no longer have the right to make educational decisions

during this stage of dependency; and

25




Procedure 2161
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

e Parents whose parental rights are terminated no longer have the right to make educational decisions
on behalf their child.

When a student is placed in foster care the foster parent may act as the parent. When a student is
placed in group care, the district will work with the parents, case-worker(s), foster parents and others
who have knowledge of the student’s legal status in order to determine the need for appointment of a

surrogate.

When selecting a surrogate parent, the district will select a person willing to participate in making
decisions regarding the student’s educational program, including participation in the identification,
evaluation, placement of and provisions of FAPE to the student.

If a student is referred for special education or a student eligible for special education who may require

a surrogate parent stadent transfers into the district that-may require-a-surrogate—parent, the district

special education office will be notified of the potential need. The special education office will then
select a trained individual who can adequately represent the student to ensure that all student rights are

observed.

The person selected as a surrogate:

(1) Must have no interest that conflicts with the interests of the student he or she represents;

(2) Must have knowledge and skills that assure adequate representation of the student; and

(3) May not be an employee of a school district and/or other agency, which is involved in the
education or care of the student. This includes OSPI, DSHS, district employees and group care

providers.

The district will at a minimum, review with the surrogate parent procedural safeguards, parent
involvement in the special education process, parent education publications and special education
regulations. The district will also cooperate with other districts, the ESD or OSPI in training surrogate
parents and in establishing a list of persons willing and able to serve as surrogate parents.

Mediation
The purpose of mediation is to offer both the parent and the school district an alternative to a formal

due process hearing. Mediation is voluntary and requires the consent and agreement of both parties.
Mediation cannot be used to deny or delay access by a parent to a due process hearing. Mediation is
used to resolve disagreements concerning the identification, evaluation and delivery of educational
services or provision of a FAPE to a special education student. Mediation may be terminated by either

party, at any time during the process.

The primary participants are the parents, school district representatives and mediator. The process is
voluntary, confidential and informal. It is a collaborative process, conducted in a nonadversarial
manner. Mediation services will be provided by the Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction

(OSPI) at no cost to either party.

The district’s special education director is responsible for coordinating requests for mediation. If a
parent requests mediation, notify the director and the director will respond to the parent and coordinate
with OSPI’s contracted agent. Staff members are reminded that discussions that occur during the

mediation process are confidential.

26




Procedure 2161
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

One person designated by the district to attend the mediation must have authority to bind the district in
any agreement reached through mediation.

Due Process Hearing
Both parents and districts may file due process hearings involving the identification, evaluation,

placement or provision of FAPE to a student. IDEA requires that specific information be provided as
part of a due process hearing request. The requirements are identified in the notice of procedural
safeguards. If parents request information about how to file a due process hearing, the district will
provide the parent with a due process hearing request that contains the required information. Due
process hearing request forms are available from the special education department and on the OSPI
Special Education and Administrative Resources Web site.

If any staff receives a request for a due process hearing, a copy of the request should be immediately
forwarded to the special education department. If the parent has not filed the request for hearing with
OSPI, the district will forward the parent request to OSPI Administrative Resources Section. The
district may not delay or deny a parent’s due process hearing request. Parents are entitled to a copy of
the notice of procedural safeguards if this is the first due process hearing in a school year. The district
special education staff is responsible for providing the parents a copy of the procedural safeguards in
this situation and documenting that the safeguards were provided to the parent.

When a parent files a due process hearing, the student remains in the placement at the time of the
request for hearing unless the parents and district agree to a different placement. The student’s status
during the pendency of any proceedings does not preclude the IEP team from meeting, as needed or as
required, and updating and implementing the student’s IEP, unless those changes are in dispute. See
the discipline section below for placements when a disciplinary action is challenged.

When parents file a request for a due process hearing, the special education director will immediately
schedule a resolution meeting. The meeting must occur within 15 days after a parent files a due process
request with the district and provides a copy of the request to OSPF OAH, or, within seven days if the
hearing request involves an expedited hearing regarding discipline. The special education director will
determine the appropriate district staff that will attend the resolution meeting. The district will ensure
that one of the district representatives attending the resolution meeting has authority to bind the district
in any resolution agreement. The district will not bring district counsel to a resolution meeting unless

the parent is bringing an attorney to the meeting.

Any resolution agreement reached will be documented in writing and is binding on the parties. The
document will inform the parent of their right to void the agreement within three business days of

signing the agreement.

Discipline

Students eligible for special education may be disciplined consistent with the disciplinary rules that
apply to all students. The district shall determine on a case by case basis whether discipline that is
permitted under WAC 392-400 should occur. However, students eligible for special education must
not be improperly excluded from school for disciplinary reasons that are related to their disability or
related to the district’s failure to implement a student’s IEP. The district shall take steps to ensure that
each employee, contractor and other agents of the district responsible for education or care of a student

is knowledgeable of special education disciplinary rules.

27




Procedure 2161
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

Removal Up to Ten Days
The building principal may order the removal of a special education student from a current placement.

The district need not provide services to a student who is removed from the current placement for ten
school days or less in any school year, if services are not provided to a student without disabilities.

Removal for More than Ten Days
Once a student has been removed from placement for a total of ten school days in the same school

year, and if the district determines that the removal is not a change of placement, the district must,
during subsequent days of removal, provide appropriate services to the extent necessary to enable the
student to participate in the general curriculum, although in another setting, and to progress toward
meeting the goals set out in the student’s IEP. The building principal and special education staff in
consultation with one or more of the student’s teachers, shall make the determination of such necessary

services.

Change in Placement
A change of placement occurs when an eligible student is:

e Removed from his or her current placement for more than ten consecutive school days in a school
year; or

® Subjected to a series of removals in a school year and which constitute a pattern of removal
because: 1) the series of removals total more than ten school days in a year; 2) the student behavior
is substantially similar to the student’s behavior in previous incidents that resulted in the series of
removals; and 3) because of factors such as the length of each removal, the total amount of time a
student is removed, and the proximity of the removals to one another.

Whether a pattern of removal constitutes a change in placement is determined on a case-by-case basis
by the building principal and special education director, and is subject to review through due process
and judicial proceedings. School administration is responsible for notifying the special education
department of disciplinary removals that may exceed ten days.

Manifestation Determination
Within ten school days after the date on which the decision to change the student’s placement is made
the district will conduct a manifestation determination meeting to determine the relationship between

the student’s disability and the behavior subject to the disciplinary action.

The review of the relationship between a student’s disability and the behavior subject to the
disciplinary action will occur in a meeting that includes the parent and relevant members of the IEP
team who are selected by the parent and the district. School administration is responsible for contacting
the parent in order to determine relevant IEP team members and providing notice of the meeting. The
team shall review all relevant information in the student’s file, including the IEP, teacher observations

and information provided by the parent to determine:
e If the conduct was caused by or had a direct and substantial relationship to the child’s disability; or

e [f the conduct in question was the direct result of the district’s failure to implement the student’s
IEP.

If the team determines that the behavior resulted from any of the above, the behavior must be
considered a manifestation of the student’s disability.

The district will take immediate action to remedy the deficiencies, and will:

28



Procedure 2161
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

1) Conduct a functional behavioral assessment (unless already completed) and implement a
behavioral intervention plan if one is not already in place; or

2) Review the existing behavioral intervention plan and modify it to address the behavior; and

3) Return the child to the placement from which he or she was removed from unless the parents and
the district agree a change is necessary as part of the behavioral intervention plan, or unless the

infraction involves drugs, weapons or serious bodily injury.

Special Circumstances
School personnel may order a change in placement to an appropriate interim alternative educational

setting for the same amount of time that a student without disabilities would be subject to discipline,

but for not more than 45 school days, if a special education student:

® Possesses a “dangerous weapon” or carries such a weapon to school or to a school function; or

e Knowingly possesses or uses “illegal drugs” while at school or a school function; or

e Sells or solicits the sale of a “controlled substance” while at school or a school function.

e Inflicts serious bodily injury upon another person while at school or a school function. Serious
bodily injury means a substantial risk of death, extreme physical pain, protracted and obvious
disfigurement or protracted loss or impairment of the function of a bodily member, organ or mental
faculty.

Any interim alternative educational setting in which the student is placed is determined by the

student’s IEP team and will:

e Be selected so as to enable the student to participate in the general curriculum, although in another
setting and to progress toward meeting the goals set out in the student’s IEP; and

® Include services and modifications designed to address the behavior or to prevent the behavior
from recurring.

The district may ask an administrative law judge, or seek injunctive relief through a court having

jurisdiction of the parties, to order a change in placement to an appropriate interim alternative

educational setting for not more than 45 school days or seek injunctive relief through a court having

jurisdiction of the parties when:

e The district believes that maintaining the student’s current placement is substantially likely to
result in injury to the student or others. If the student’s IEP team believes that the student may not
be maintained in his or her current placement, the IEP team should work with the district’s Student

Services department.

Unless the parent and the district agree otherwise, if a parent requests a hearing to challenge either the
manifestation determination or the interim alternative educational setting, the student must remain in
the interim alternative educational setting pending the decision of the hearing officer or until the
expiration of the 45-day period, whichever occurs first.

Basis of Knowledge
A student who has not been determined eligible for special education services may assert the

protections if the district had knowledge that the student was a eligible for special education before the
behavior that precipitated disciplinary action occurred.

29



Procedure 2161
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

The district is deemed to have knowledge if:

e The parent expressed concern in writing (or orally if the parent does not know how to write or has
a disability the prevents a written statement) to district supervisory or administrative personnel or a
teacher that the student is in need of special education and related services;

e The parent requested that the student be evaluated for special education services; or

e The teacher or other school personnel has expressed specific concern about a pattern of behavior
demonstrated by the student to the director of the special education department or to other
supervisory staff.

If instituting disciplinary action that would exceed ten days and the principal believes that one or more
of these events applies to the student, the principal will notify the special education department to
determine the appropriate disciplinary procedures.

The district is not deemed to have knowledge if, as a result of receiving the information described

above, the district either:

¢ Conducted a special education evaluation of the student and determined that the student was not
eligible for services; or

e The parent of the student has not allowed an evaluation of the child or has refused services.

If the district is not deemed to have knowledge that a student is a special education student, the student
may be disciplined as a student without disabilities who engages in comparable behaviors. The district
shall conduct an evaluation, which is requested during the time period such a student is subjected to
disciplinary measures, in an expedited manner. Until the evaluation is completed, such a student will
remain in the educational placement determined by the district, which can include suspension or

expulsion witheut-edueational serviees.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the district may report a crime committed by a student eligible special
education services student to appropriate authorities. In the event of such a report, the district shall
ensure that copies of the student’s special education and disciplinary records are transmitted for
consideration by the appropriate authorities to which the crime is reported, to the extent transmission
of the records is permitted by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA).

Staff Qualifications
All employees of the district funded in whole or part with state or federal excess special education

funds will meet the standards established by the State Board of Education (SBE) and defined in WAC
392-172-A-02090.

All employees will hold such credentials, certificates or permits as are now or hereafter required by the
SBE for the particular position of employment and shall meet such supplemental standards established

by the district.

All-special-educationteachersproviding, Special education and related services must be provided by

appropriately qualified staff. Other staff, including general education teachers and paraeducators, may
assist in the provision of special education and related services, provided that the instruction is
designed and supervised by special education certificated staff (or early childhood special education
certificated staff, deaf education certificated staff, deaf education with American Sign Language
proficiency certificated staff, teacher of the V1sually unpalred certlﬁcated stafi) or for related serv1ces
by a certificated staff associate. designing iSHE—eV : otk FRABF




Procedure 2161
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

sapeﬁﬂteﬂdem—ef—pabhe—ms%meﬂeﬂ—smdent progress must be momtored and evaluated by spec1al

education certificated staff or for related services, a certificated educational staff associate.

In the event a special education teacher does not have a certificate endorsed in special education, (or
early childhood special education endorsement, deaf education endorsement, deaf education with
American Sign Language proficiency endorsement teacher of the v1sua11y 1mpa1red endorsement) toa

special education position, a district humas :
staff-may apply for a pre-endorsement waiver through the spec1al educatlon section of the OSPI To

qualify for the special education pre-endorsement waiver, the teacher must meet-SBE PESE criteria
outlined in WAC 181-82-110.

If the district must temporarily assign a classroom teacher without a special education endorsement (or

early childhood special education endorsement, deaf education with American Sign Language

proficiency endorsement, teacher of the visually impaired endorsement) to a special education position,

the district the human resources department will document in writing that:

e The district is unable to recruit a teacher with the proper endorsement who was qualified for the
position; and/or

® The need for a teacher with such an endorsement could not have been reasonably anticipated and
the recruitment of such a classroom teacher at the time of assignment was not reasonably practical;
and/or

e The reassignment of another teacher within the district would be unreasonably disruptive to the
current assignments of other classroom teachers or would have an adverse effect on the educational
program of the students assigned to the other teacher.

If one or more of these criteria can be documented and the district determines that a teacher has the
competencies to be an effective special education teacher and the teacher has completed two hundred
forty (240) clock hours (or the equivalent of 24 quarter or 16 semester credits )six-semester-hours-or

nine-gquarter—hours—of-course—work—which—are—applicable to one or more Washington state special

education teaching certificates (early childhood special education endorsement, deaf education
endorsement, deaf education with American Sign Language endorsement, teacher of the visually

impaired endorsement) the-speeial-eduecation-endersement, the district can assign the teacher to special

education in compliance with the process for making out-of-endorsement assignments and reporting
them to the state.

Classified staff will present evidence of skills and knowledge necessary to meet the needs of students
with disabilities. The district will provide training to classified staff to meet the state recommended

core competencies.

Personnel Development
In order to provide a staff development program to improve the quality of instructional programs, the

following procedures will be employed:




Procedure 2161
Special Education and Related Services for Eligible Students

& Special education concerns will be identified through a staff needs assessment completed by
administrators, teachers, educational staff associates, program assistants, parents and volunteers;

e All personnel who use restraint, restraint devices and/or isolation must be certified and annually
trained in the use of such restraint, restraint devices and/or isolation.

# In-service training schedules will be developed based upon the results of the district assessment
and in support of needs identified;

® Training activities will be conducted for regular general and special education staff of other
agencies and organizations and private school staff providing services for students eligible for
special education; and

® Training for classified staff in the state recommended core competencies will occur through district
wide classified training provided by the district.

Public Participation
Any application and any required policies, procedures, evaluations, plans and reports are readily

available to parents and other members of the public through the district’s special education office and
the office of the superintendent. A notice regarding the availability of such documents will be placed

on the district’s website.

Formerly Procedure 4210
Adopted: September 24, 2007
Revised Date: March 11, 2010
Revised: January 12, 2015
Revised: July 20,2016
Revised:

32



MEAD SCHOOL DISTRICT

Board Meeting of June 27, 2022

Continuing Business

Agenda Item:

Background:

Summary:

Staffing Implication:
Other Considerations:
Recommendation:

Attachments:

VI.C.

2niReading Policy 3246 Review & Procedure 3246 Revision
Restraint, Isolation and Other Uses of Reasonable Force

A revision to Procedure 3246 and the review of Policy 3246,
Restraint, [solation and Other Uses of Reasonable Force, are being
presented for second reading consideration. This policy/procedure
was adopted on July 18, 2011, with revisions approved on
December 14, 2015 and September 12, 2016. The presented
review/revision brings this policy/procedure into compliance with
the state’s new special education reporting process that requires
school districts to analyze and update their special education
policies and procedures by August 31, 2022.

WSSDA Sample Procedure 3246 was used as the template for the
presented procedure revisions. Current Policy 3246 was compared
to WSSDA Sample Policy 3246 with no policy changes
recommended following this comparison/analysis. The review of
the policy is brought to the board as the district must, to comply
with new state requirements, show the policy was revisited to

ascertain if revisions are needed.
No revisions to the policy are recommended/needed.

Presented procedure revisions include changing existing language
to meet the requirements of new legislation and/or policy
governance. Primary revisions are connected to the type of training
to be used and the increased attention to de-escalation strategies,
and a system that has its emphasis in trauma-informed practices.
Restraint, isolation and reasonable use of force data will be
reported annually, as legally required, to OSPL.

No first reading (June 13, 2022) changes were recommended.

President Burchard requested the policy review/procedure revision
be brought back for second reading as a non-action agenda item.

None
None

No second reading action is requested.

e Draft Policy/Procedure 3246




J STUDENTS
1 SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 1 of 2

Restraint, Isolation and Other Uses of Reasonable Force

Mead School District supports school-wide programs and services that motivate, teach, and
support positive behavior to create a school climate that is highly conducive to learning. It is the
policy of the Mead School District Board of Directors that the district maintains a safe learning
environment while treating all students with dignity and respect. All students in the district,
including those who have an individualized education program (IEP) or plan developed under
section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, will remain free from unreasonable restraint,
restraint devices, isolation, and other uses of physical force. Under no circumstances will these
techniques be used as a form of discipline or punishment.

This policy is intended to address district students. It is not intended to prevent or limit the use of
restraint or other reasonable force as necessary with adults or other youth from outside the

district as allowed by law.

Use of restraint, isolation, and other forms of reasonable force may be used on any student when
reasonably necessary to control spontaneous behavior that poses an "imminent likelihood of
serious harm" as defined by RCW 70.96B.010 and Chapter 392-172A WAC and explained in the
procedure accompanying this policy. Serious harm includes physical harm to self, another, or
district property. Staff will closely monitor such actions to prevent harm to the student and will
use the minimum amount of restraint and isolation appropriate to protect the safety of students
and staff. The restraint, isolation, and other forms of reasonable force will be discontinued when

the likelihood of serious harm has dissipated.

The superintendent or a designee will develop procedures to implement this policy, including
review, reporting and parent/guardian notification of incidents involving restraint or isolation as
required by law. Additionally, the superintendent or designee will annually report to the board on
incidents involving the use of force.

2161 — Special Education and Related Services for Eligible

Cross References: Students

Legal References: RCW 9A.16.020 Use of force — When lawful

RCW 9A.16.100 Use of force on children — Policy — Actions
presumed unreasonable

RCW 28A.150.300 Corporal Punishment Prohibited - Adoption




Management Resources:

Page 2 of 2

of policy
RCW 28A.155.210 Use of restraint or isolation — Requirement
for procedures to notify parent or guardian.

RCW 28A.600.485 - Restraint of students with individualized
education programs or plans developed under section 504 of the
rehabilitation act of 1973—Procedures—Definitions. [as
amended by SHB 1240]

RCW 70.96B.010 - Definitions
Chapter 391-172A WAC — Rules for the provision of special
education

WAC 392-400-235 Discipline — Conditions and limitations

2016 — March 2016
2015 - July Policy Alert
2013 - December Issue

2013 - July Issue
Policy News, December 2008 Use of Reasonable Force Policy

Adoption Date: July 18, 2011

Revised: December 14, 2015
Revised: September 12, 2016

Revisited:




M Procedure 3246
SCHOOL DISTRICT STUDENTS

Page | of 7

Restraint, Isolation and Other Uses of Reasonable Force

This procedure is intended to apply to a broad range of circumstances whenever it is deemed
reasonably necessary by district staff to control spontaneous behavior by any student that poses
an imminent likelihood of serious harm. This procedure is intended to be interpreted consistent
with the requirements of RCW 28A.600.485, RCW 9A.16.020, RCW 9A.16.100, RCW
28A.160.300, RCW 28A.155.210, WAC 392-400-235, and, for students with an IEP, consistent
with the regulations of Chapter 392-172A, WAC.

Definitions:

¢ Behavioral intervention plan: A plan incorporated into a student’s Individualized
Education Program (IEP), which at a minimum describes: 1) The pattern of behavior that
impedes the student’s learning or the learning of others; 2) The instruction and/or
environmental conditions or circumstances that contribute to the pattern of behavior(s)
being addressed by the IEP team; 3) The positive behavioral interventions and supports
to: i) reduce the pattern of behavior(s) that impedes the student’s learning or the learning
of others and increases the student’s desired prosocial behaviors; and ii) ensure the
consistency of the implementation of the positive behavioral interventions across the
student’s school-sponsored instruction or activities; and 4) The skills that will be taught
and monitored as alternatives to challenging behavior(s) for a specific pattern of behavior
of the student.

e Chemical spray: Pepper spray, OC spray, or other similar chemicals that are used to
control a student or limit a student’s freedom of movement.

e De-escalation: The use of positive interventions and other district-approved strategies to
defuse a student who has lost self-control, is non-compliant or is demonstrating
unacceptable behavior. These strategies address behavior that is dangerous, disruptive or
otherwise impedes the learning of a student or others.

o Imminent: The state or condition of being likely to occur at any moment or near at hand,
rather than distant or remote.

e Isolation: Restricting a student alone within a room or any other form of enclosure, from
which the student may not leave. It does not include a student’s voluntary use of a quiet
space for self-calming, or temporary removal of a student from his or her regular
instructional area to an unlocked area for purposes of carrying out an appropriate positive
behavior intervention plan.

e Likelihood of serious harm: a substantial risk that physical harm will be inflicted by a
student:

o upon his or her own person, as evidenced by threats or attempts to commit suicide
or inflict physical harm on oneself;




o upon another, as evidenced by behavior that has caused such harm or that places
another person or persons in reasonable fear of sustaining such harm;
o upon the property of others, as evidenced by behavior that has caused substantial
loss or damage to the property of others; or
o after the student has threatened the physical safety of another and has a history of
one or more violent acts.
Physical force: The use of bodily force or physical restriction that substantially
immobilizes or reduces the free movement of a student.
Positive behavioral interventions: Strategies and instruction that can be implemented in
a strategic manner in order to provide alternatives to challenging behaviors, reinforce
desired behaviors, and reduce or eliminate the frequency and severity of challenging
behaviors. Positive behavioral interventions include the consideration of environmental
factors that may trigger challenging behaviors and teaching a student the skills to manage
his or her own behavior.
Restraint: Physical intervention or force used to control a student, including the use of a
restraint device. It does not include appropriate use of a prescribed medical, orthopedic or
therapeutic device when used as intended, such as to achieve proper body position,
balance or alignment or to permit a student to safely participate in activities.
Restraint device: A device used to assist in controlling a student, including, but not
limited to metal handcuffs, plastic ties, ankle restraints, leather cuffs, other hospital-type
restraints, pepper spray, tasers or batons. Restraint device does not mean a seat harness
used to safely transport students. This definition is consistent with RCW 28A.600.485
(1)(c), and is not intended to endorse or encourage the use of such devices or techniques
with district students.
School police officer: An employee of the school district responsible for security
services in the district under the direction of a school administrator, but who also is a
commissioned officer.
School resource officer: A commissioned law enforcement officer who provides law
enforcement services and may perform other duties for the district, and is assigned by the
employing police department or agency to work in collaboration with the district.
School security officer: A classified or contracted school district employee other than a
school resource officer who provides security services in the district under the direction
of a school administrator.

General Use of restraint, isolation, or other forms of reasonable force:

Restraint, isolation, or other forms of reasonable force may be used to prevent or
minimize imminent bodily harm to self or others, or if de-escalation or other positive
behavioral interventions fail or are inappropriate, to protect district property, where there
is an “imminent likelihood of such serious harm” occurring, as defined above.

Restraint, isolation, or other forms of reasonable physical force may be used when a
student has caused a substantial loss or damage to the property of others, and the
student’s behavior poses a substantial risk that such property damage will be inflicted.




Restraint devices may be used as needed to obtain possession of a known or reasonably-
suspected weapon or other dangerous object on a person or within the control of a person.
An IEP or plan developed under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 must not
include the use of restraint or isolation as a planned behavior intervention unless a
student’s individual needs require more specific advanced education planning and the
student’s parent or guardian agrees. Nothing in these procedures is intended to limit the
provision of a free appropriate public education (FAPE) under Part B of the Individuals
with Disabilities Act (IDEA) or Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973.

Restraint, isolation, or other forms of reasonable physical force will not be used as a form
of discipline or punishment.

Restraint, isolation, or other forms of reasonable physical force will not be used as an ini-
tial response to destruction of property, school disruption, refusal of the student to
comply with school rules or a staff directive; or a verbal threat that does not constitute a
threat of imminent bodily injury, unless other forms of de-escalation and positive
interventions fail or are inappropriate.

Restraint, isolation, or other forms of reasonable physical force should not be used as an
intervention if the school employee, school resource officer or school security officer
knows that the student has a health condition or physical problem and the condition or
problem would be exacerbated by the use of such techniques.

Practices presumed to be unreasonable when correcting or restraining any child (RCW
9A.16.100):

Under RCW 9A.16.100, the following is a non-exclusive list of acts that are presumed
unreasonable when correcting or restraining a child:

throwing, kicking, burning, or cutting a child;

striking a child with a closed fist;

shaking a child under age three;

interfering with a child’s breathing;

threatening a child with a deadly weapon; or

doing any other act that is likely to cause bodily harm to a student greater than transient
pain or minor temporary marks.

This non-exclusive list should not be read so as to imply that another, unlisted form of correction
or restraint is permissible. Whether or not an unlisted use of force or restraint is presumptively
permissible depends upon a balanced consideration of all relevant state laws and regulations, and
whether the use is reasonable under the totality of the circumstances.

Conditions specific to use of isolation with students eligible for special education (consistent
with WAC 392-172A-02110):

The isolation enclosure will be ventilated, lighted and temperature controlled from inside
or outside for purposes of human occupancy.




e The isolation enclosure will permit continuous visual monitoring of the student from
outside the enclosure.

¢ An adult responsible for supervising the student will remain in visual or auditory range of
the student at all times.

e Either the student shall be capable of releasing himself or herself from the enclosure, or
the student shall continuously remain within view of an adult responsible for supervising
the student.

e Any staff member or other adults using isolation, restraint or a restraint device must be
trained and currently certified by a qualified provider in the use of trauma-informed crisis
intervention (including de-escalation techniques) and the safe use of isolation, unless
trained personnel are not immediately available due to the unforeseeable nature of the

emergency.

Prohibited practices involving restraint, use of force, and discipline specifically for students
eligible for special education (consistent with WAC 392-172A-02076):

e District personnel are prohibited from using aversive interventions with a student.
District personnel are prohibited from physically restraining or isolating any student,
except when the student’s behavior poses an imminent likelihood of serious harm as
defined above.

¢ No student may be stimulated by contact with electric current, including, but not limited
to, tasers.

e A student may not be denied or subjected to ari unreasonable delay in the provision of
food or liquid from when the food or liquid is customarily served as a form of
punishment.

¢ A student may not be the recipient of force or restraint that is either unreasonable under
the circumstances or deemed to be an unreasonable form of corporal punishment as a
matter of state law (see above, for example, for a list of practices presumed to be
unreasonable when used in correcting or restraining a child).

e A student must not be denied or subjected to an unreasonable delay in the provision of
common hygiene care.

e A student must not be denied or subjected to an unreasonable delay in the provision of
medication.

¢ A student may not be excluded from his or her regular instructional or service area and
isolated within a room or any other form of enclosure, except under the conditions set
forth in WAC 392-172A-02110.

A student must not be forced to listen to noise or sound that the student finds painful.
A student must not be forced to smell or be sprayed in the face with a noxious or
potentially harmful substance.

e A student must not be forced to taste or ingest a substance which is not commonly
consumed or which is not commonly consumed in its existing form or concentration.

A student’s head must not be partially or wholly submerged in water or any other liquid.

e A student must not be physically restrained or immobilized by binding or otherwise
attaching the student’s limbs together or by binding or otherwise attaching any part of the




student’s body to an object, except under the conditions set forth in WAC 392-

172A.02110.
e A student must not be subjected to the use of prone (lying face-down) or supine (lying
face-up) restraint, wall restraint or any restraint that interferes with the student’s

breathing.
Degree of force:

e Restraint, isolation, or other forms of reasonable physical force will be discontinued as
soon as a determination is made by the staff member administering the restraint,
isolation, or other forms of reasonable physical force that the likelihood of serious harm
has dissipated.

e Restraint, isolation, or other forms of reasonable physical force must be administered in
such a way so as to prevent or minimize physical harm to the student. If, at any time
during the use of restraint, isolation, or other forms of reasonable physical force, the
student demonstrates significant physical distress, the technique must be reduced
immediately and, if necessary, school staff must take immediate steps to seek medical

assistance.
Monitoring:

An adult must continually monitor any student when restraint, isolation, or other forms of
reasonable physical force is used. The monitoring must be conducted by continuous visual
monitoring of the student. Monitoring must include regularly evaluating the student for signs of

physical distress.
Post-incident notification and review with parent/guardian:

e Within twenty-four (24) hours following the use of restraint, isolation, or other forms of
reasonable physical force with a student, the principal or designee must make a
reasonable effort to verbally inform the student’s parent or guardian of the incident.

e The principal or designee must also send written notification, (Form No. SS-80) as soon
as practical, but postmarked no later than five (5) business days after restraint, isolation,
or other forms of reasonable physical force has been used with a student. If the school or
district customarily provides the parent or guardian with school-related information in a
language or mode of communication other than English, the written report must be
provided to the parent or guardian in that language or mode of communication.

e The principal or designee will review the incident with the student and the parent or
guardian (though not necessarily at the same time) to address the behavior that
precipitated the use of the technique and the appropriateness of the response.

e The principal or designee will review the incident with the staff person(s) who
administered the restraint, isolation, or other forms of reasonable physical force to discuss
whether proper procedures were followed and what staff training or support is needed to
help the student avoid similar incidents.




¢ [EPs and 504 plans will include the above procedures for notification of
parents/guardians regarding the use of isolation and restraint on their student.

Incident report:

Any school employee, school resource officer or school security officer who uses restraint,
isolation, or other forms of reasonable physical force, as defined in this procedure, on any
student during school-sponsored instruction or activities, will inform the principal or a designee
as soon as possible and within two (2) business days submit a written report of the incident to the
district office. The written report will contain, at a minimum:

e The date and time of the incident;
The name and job title of the staff member who administered the restraint, isolation, or
other form of reasonable physical force;

¢ A description of the activity that led to the restraint, isolation, or other form of reasonable
physical force;

e The type of restraint, isolation, or other forms of reasonable physical force used on the
student, and the duration;

e Whether the student or staff was physically injured during incident involving restraint,
isolation, or other forms of reasonable physical force;

e Any medical care provided to the student or staff; and
Any recommendations for changing the nature or amount of resources available to the
student and staff members in order to avoid similar incidents.

Resolution of concerns about the use of force incident:

A student or his/her parent or guardian who has concerns regarding a specific incident involving
restraint, isolation, or other forms of reasonable physical force may seek to resolve the concern
by contacting the Mead School District administrator overseeing Student Services.

Providing parents/guardians with Restraint, Isolation, and Other Use of Reasonable Force
policy:

The district will make available to all parents/guardians of students the district’s policy on
Restraint, Isolation and Other Use of Reasonable Force. If the student has an IEP or 504 plan,
the District will provide the parents/guardians a copy of the policy when the IEP or 504 plan is
developed.

Staff training requirements:
e All training will include instruction in positive management of student behavior, cultural

sensitivity, effective communication for defusing and de-escalating disruptive or
dangerous behavior and safe and appropriate use of force, isolation and restraint.




Annually, administrators will provide all staff with the district established policy and
procedure regarding the use of reasonable force.

All staff should be informed of de-escalation strategies and proper physical intervention
procedures. Appropriate staff and those who are required or reasonably anticipated to
provide physical force intervention will be trained in the use of physical force
intervention.

Only staff trained by a qualified provider and authorized to use isolation, restraint,
restraint devices or chemical spray procedures will administer it to students. The
appropriate personnel will include those staff members who are most likely to be called
upon to use isolation, restraint, restraint devices or chemical spray to prevent or address
disruptive or dangerous student behavior.

Submission of incident reports to the Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction:

Beginning January 1, 2016 and annually by January 1 thereafter, the district will summarize the
written incident reports described above and submit those summaries to OSPI. The summaries

will include:

the number of individual incidents of restraint and isolation;
the number of students involved in the incidents;

the number of injuries to students and staff; and

the types of restraint or isolation used.

Annual Report:

The building administrator or a designee will maintain a log of all instances of use of force as

defined by this procedure, with data reported to OSPI annually as required by law. which-will-be

Adoption Date: July 18, 2011
Revised: December 14, 2015
Revised: September 12, 2016
Revised:




MEAD SCHOOL DISTRICT

Board Meeting of June 27, 2022
New Business VIL.A.

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda

Background:
The Consent Agenda contains items that are normal and customary in the operation of the

school district.

Fiscal Impact:
The Consent Agenda items have no significant impact beyond the adopted budget.

Expenditure or employment requests that exceed budget authorization should not appear as
a consent item.

Staffing Implications:
None, other than the personnel recommendations, as presented.

Other Considerations:
None

Recommendation:
Approval of the Consent Agenda, as presented, is recommended.




Consent Agenda
Regular Board Meeting of June 27, 2022

Hire Certificated Personnel:
Nate Bartlett | Highland | Cert | 1.0 FTE Continuing Principal effective 7/1/22

Hire Classified Personnel:

Tony Davis Transportation | Class 1.0 FTE Continuing Transportation Director
effective 7/1/22 (vacating Transportation
Assistant Director position)

Melissa Johnson Student Class Classified Nurse (6 hrs/day) effective 5/25/22

Services

Timothy Ehli Transportation | Class Bus Driver (5.16 hrs/day) effective 6/1/22

Deborah Fletcher Transportation | Class Bus Driver (4.91 hrs/day) effective 6/20/22

Deborah Hunt Transportation | Class Bus Driver (5.42 hrs/day) effective 6/20/22

Approve AP Vouchers for General Fund, Capitol Projects, Private Purpose Trust and ASB,
as attached.

Approve Supplemental, Co-Curricular & Extra-Curricular contracts (attached).
Declare the following items as Surplus:

¢ Old Scoreboard
e Wood Stove

Approve Requests for Unpaid Leave (i.e. parenting, medical, Good of the District, etc.):

Amanda Miller Creekside Cert 1.0 FTE Leave 1* semester 22/23

Valerie Gaber Mt. Spokane Class 6/13/22 - 6/20/22

Brandee Elmore Shiloh Hills Class 6/15/22 - 6/20/22

Ginny Ekins Skyline Class 5/18/22 - 6/20/22

Approve Retirements and Resignations:

Don Beloved Mead High School | Cert Retirement effective 8/29/22

Sara Ferris Farwell Cert Retirement effective 8/29/22

Doug Edmonson District Office Cert Resignation effective 6/30/22

Jill Harms Mead High Cert Resignation effective 8/29/22

Mary Binder Special Services Class Retirement effective 10/31/22

Amanda Patrick Mead Learning Cert Resignation effective 6/21/22
Options

Michael Sodergren Maintenance Class Resignation effective 7/4/22




Mead School District No. 354
Spokane County, Mead, Washington

Affidavit covering payment of payroll and invoices fox."‘General Fund,
Capital Projects Fund, Associated Student Body Fund, and Transportation Vehicle Fund

THIS IS TO CERTIFY under penalty of perjury that the undersigned has examined the attached vouchers and payroll of Mead School District
No. 354, Spokane, Washington, and that each of the invoices and vouchers were duly certified and have been received and checked as to price
and quantity and have been duly certified by the claimant, as required by law, and that the exterisions and additions of said invoices and

vouchers have been checked by the Business Office of the District and were found to be correct.

Heather Ellingson, Auditing Officer -

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that the warrants of the Mead School District No. 354, Spokane County, Washington, as listed
below, have been allowed by the School Board of this District.

Fund Name Vouchers (Inclusive) Warrants (Inclusive) Amount
General Fund:
6/16/2022 PR-1230 & 1231 ACH $193,868.20
6/16/2022 PR-25 106624-106631 - $6,951.44
6/17/2022 AP-1232 106632-106726 $354,344.90
6/17/2022 AP-1233 ACH $1,334.09
6/24/2022 AP-1237 106748-106820 $289,540.98
6/24/2022 AP-1238 ACH $1,236.97
TOTAL/General Fund: $847,276.58]
Capital Projects:
6/17/2022 AP-1234 . 106727 . $10,328.97
6/24/2022 AP-1239 106821-106822 $11,891.92
TOTAL/Capital Projects: $22,220.89)
Associated :
Student Body Fund:
6/17/2022 AP-1235 106728-106747 $14,431.67
6/17/2022 AP-1236 ACH $204.27
6/24/2022 AP-1240 106823-106847 $112,367.55
6/24/2022 AP-1241 ACH $25.00
TOTAL/ASB Fund: $127,028.49)
Trust Fund:
TOTAL/Transportation Fund: $0.00|
TOTAL ALL FUNDS $996,525.96
Secretary Board Signature
Board Signature Board Signature

Board Signature

Board Signature




General Fund




Mead School District No 354

Payee Listing
Fiscal Year: 2021-2022

Criteria:

Bank Account: SPOKANE COUNTY TREASURER Voucher: 1232
153607390207

Starting Check Number: 106632

Check # Date Payee Amount
106632 06/17/2022 ACCESS INFORMATION PROTECTED $6.75
106633 06/17/2022 ACE HARDWARE $36.81
106634 06/17/2022 ALLSTREAM $4,164.09
106635 06/17/2022 AMAZON $1,794.66
106636 06/17/2022 AMAZON WEB SERVICES INC $36.46
106637 06/17/2022 AMERIGAS PROPANE LP $818.14
106638 06/17/2022 AMI GRAPHICS, INC $228.78
106639 06/17/2022 ANGUS MEAT INC $6,719.85
106640 06/17/2022 APPLE COMPUTER INC $7,641.51
106641 06/17/2022 ARC DOCUMENT SOLUTIONS $6,320.00
106642 06/17/2022 BARRINGTON, BRIDGET $51.05
106643 06/17/2022 BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS OF SPOKANE CITY $10,016.71
106644 06/17/2022 BROWN, STEPHANIE $42.05
106645 06/17/2022 CAMP FIRE INLAND NORTHWEST $990.00
106646 06/17/2022 CAMTEK $1,876.61
106647 06/17/2022 "CINTAS $488.28
106648 06/17/2022 CITY GLASS $1,751.23
106649 06/17/2022 CLARIS INTERNATIONAL INC $5,599.58'
106650 06/17/2022 CO ENERGY $336.55
106651 06/17/2022 CONTINENTAL ATHLETIC SUPPLY INC $1,676.23
106652 06/17/2022 CULLIGAN SOFT WATER SERVICE $325.39
106653 06/17/2022 CURALINGC, LLC $5,124.00
106654 06/17/2022 DEPT OF LICENSING $13.00
106655 06/17/2022 DING, CHAN $88.95
106656 06/17/2022 DUNSMOOR, CHLOE $29.45
106657 06/17/2022 ESD 113 $497.75
106658 06/17/2022 FARLEY, HEIDI $33.00
106659 06/17/2022 FLEXHIBIT $1,820.52
106660 06/17/2022 FOLLETT SCHOOL SOLUTIONS INC $6,218.00
106661 06/17/2022 GADY PUMP AND ELECTRIC COMPANY INC $1,614.83
106662 06/17/2022 GRADUATION ALLIANCE $32,670.72
106663 06/17/2022 GREAT MINDS $1,344.89
106664 06/17/2022 GSL DISTRICT #8 SCHOOLS $4,774.00
106665 086/17/2022 HARLOW'S SCHOOL BUS SERVICE INC $818.48
106666 06/17/2022 HENRY SCHEIN INC $67.08
106667 06/17/2022 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES $257.37
106668 06/17/2022 HOME DEPOT PRO $1,028.45
106669 06/17/2022 HORIZON AUTOMATIC RAIN COMPANY DBA $22,305.75

2021.4.25 Page: 1

Printed: 06/15/2022 10:42:04 AM. Report: rptGLPayeelListing




Mead School District No 354

Payee Listing

Fiscal Year: 2021-2022

Criteria:

Bank Account: SPOKANE COUNTY TREASURER 1232
153607390207

Starting Check Number: 106632

Check # Date Payee Amount
106670 06/17/2022 HUB INTERNATIONAL NORTHWEST LLC $100.00
106671 06/17/2022 INLAND POWER & LIGHT CO $11,251.17
106672 06/17/2022 JACKHAMMER PROMOTIONS INC $1,227.17
106673 06/17/2022 JOHNSTONE SUPPLY $141.54
106674 06/17/2022 KCDA $2,918.08
106675 06/17/2022 LAMB, JODIE $76.75
106676 06/17/2022 LANGUAGE LINE SERVICES INC $5.78
106677 06/17/2022 LAWSON PRODUCTS INC $519.55
106678 06/17/2022 LES SCHWAB TIRE $130.68
106679 06/17/2022 LEVEL DATA INC ) $37,505.16
106680 06/17/2022 LILAC CITY BEHAVIORAL SERVICES PLLCU : $9,166.67
106681 06/17/2022 LUPTON, KASEY $135.00
106682 06/17/2022 M & L SUPPLY $51.80
106683 06/17/2022 MAXIM STAFFING SOLUTIONS $1,373.35
106684 06/17/2022 MCGUIRE BEARING CO $197.16
106685 06/17/2022 MEAD SCHOOL DISTRICT $1,009.96
106686 06/17/2022 MILLER PAINT CO INC $35.21
106687 06/17/2022 MOBIUS SPOKANE $600.00
106688 06/17/2022 MODERN OFFICE EQUIP $452.35
106689 06/17/2022 MULARSKI, LISA $37.80
106690 06/17/2022 MULTICARE CENTERS OF OCCUPATIONAL MEDICI $321.30
106691 06/17/2022 NAPA AUTO PARTS $89.77
106692 06/17/2022 NISKA, PAM. $11.65
106693 06/17/2022 NORTH 40 OUTFITTERS $372.94
106694 06/17/2022 NORTHWEST TECH PRODUCTS INC $1,9682.94
106695 06/17/2022 OFFICESUPPLY.COM $136.23
106696 06/17/2022 OSPI. - $2:531.70
106697 06/17/2022 OXARC $7.25
106698 06/17/2022 PETROCARD SYSTEMS INC $48,105.97
106699 06/17/2022 PLANET TURFAJCC LTD $1,455.16
106700 06/17/2022 PROJECT LEAD THE WAY INC $17,636.01
106701 06/17/2022 PROVIDENCE HEALTH CARE FOUNDATION $555.00
106702 06/17/2022 PURE FILTRATION PRODUCTS INC $16,556.46
106703 06/17/2022 RIPPY, KIMBERLY $33.00
106704 06/17/2022 RWC INTERNATIONAL $7,858.01
106705 06/17/2022 RYDIN SIGN & DECAL $1,302.68
106706 06/17/2022 SCHOOL SPECIALTY $149.90
106707 06/17/2022 SCHOOLS INSURANCE ASSOC OF WA $2,500.00

Printed: 06/15/2022 10:42:04 AM Report:  rptGLPayeel.isting 2021.4.25 Page; 2




Mead School District No 354

Payee Listing
Fiscal Year: 2021-2022
Criteria:
Bank Account: SPOKANE COUNTY TREASURER Voucher: 1232
153607390207
Starting Check Number: 106632
Check # Date Payee Amount
106708 06/17/2022 SHERWIN WILLIAMS $123.66
106709 06/17/2022 SILL, NANCY $56.20
106710 06/17/2022 SINGLEY, CHRIS $28.15
106711 06/17/2022 SMITH, BRENT $6.90
106712 06/17/2022 SPOKANE CO SOLID WASTE $1,091.42
106713 06/M17/2022 STAPLES ADVANTAGE $2,024.67
106714 06/17/2022 STONEWAY ELECTRIC $2,313.75
106715 06/17/2022 SUNSHINE DISPOSAL & RECYCLING $3,335.42
106716 06/17/2022 TALX UC EXPRESS $609.68
106717 06/17/2022 TRAMPUSH, DONN $148.15
106718 06/17/2022 TROPHIES UNLIMITED $39.24
106719 06/17/2022 VERIZON. $3,573.71
106720 06/17/2022 VEX ROBOTICS INC $6,311.84
106721 06/17/2022 WA ST FIRST AID $680.00
106722 06/17/2022 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF SPOKANE $22,384.13
106723 06/17/2022 WELLS FARGO FINANCIAL LEASING INC $874.47
106724 06/17/2022 WEST VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT $2,235.03
106725 06/17/2022 WHITWORTH UNIVERSITY.. . $160.00
106726 06/17/2022 WHITWORTH WATER DIST 2 $10,171.36
Total Amount: $354,344.90
End of Report
2021.4.25 Page: 3

Printed: 06/15/2022 10:42:04 AM Report: rptGLPayeel.isting




:afey

T Y44

Arewwingiooyisyonoadwids  poday WY €2:9€'0L  2202/51/90

‘pajulg

L6618 LORLSIA NIFTIAVEL  0000°000°60°L0'L858°92°€ELZ' 050" L
SlIej BUUBYOL ‘JOSNBYISAQ
o1'98$ |eJO| Jopus
o1'88% LORLSIA NIF13AVEL  0000°000°20°20° 188" L10086°0E5°0°)
Olilc] MBI ‘YEMSO
0L'v1$ ‘|ejo] Jopuap
0LvL$ S3DIA¥3S 4004 T100HDS  0000°000°00°22'0000°Z2"0086°096°0' 1
v Ayied "nisinzoopy
oL ‘|ejo] Jopuap
AT S3MNddNS TVAIDNIId  0000°000°22'22°0015°€2'00L0°0ES 0L
ES319} ‘Iaye
06'85% [e}0] Jopusp
05'85$ LORILSIA NI-TIAVEL  0000°000°S0" 10" L858 22°00G9°085°0" |
uiqoy PNEp ‘HoooueH
Ly 0L ‘lejoj Jopuap
Lr'OLS AORILSIA NI-TIAVEL  0000°000°S0°L0' 1858 2200L0°0ES 0" L
W eAue] ‘1ayjung
50°252% Jej0} Jopuap
S0°'262¢$ ADRILSIA NIFTIAVYEL  0000°000°28°10°1858'22°0026°085°0' |
uyor ‘1o
€5 r9$ ‘[ejoL Jopuap
£5'v98 AORILSIA NI-13AVEL  0000°000°60°10°L8S8'9Z°EELZ085°0")
1 uasey] ‘Yyoequasyaig
66°G6% ‘|ejo | Jopusp
66'56$ LORLSIA 40 LNO-TIAVYEL  .0000'000°50"L0°2858° LE0ZEL 0S50}
auie(3 jayoey ‘Apeig
€8°0¢3 ‘[ejo] Jopuap
£8°0e$ LOI-RLSIA NI-TIAVEL  0000°000°52°6Z 1L.8S8'€2°0020°085°0"L
- M suuelg .._msmm
junowyy uoiduoassq JUNOooYY it Jopuap SWeN JWay Jopuap
220Z-1Z0Z :1eaj |easiy
2202124190 €€Z1 OquIN yojeg Joyonop

Arewwing Junosay juswajddng saysnop

pSE ON 101381q Jooyog pesiy




€EZL :aquINN yojeq Jayanop

2 ‘abed STy'ieoe fewwingpovisyonondvids  podey WV €2:9€0L  2202/G1/90 pajuLg
|
_
Hoday 40 pug
60'vEE LS ‘lejo pueis)
¥8°62$ ‘[ejo) Jopusp
v8'62$ LORILSIA NI-TIAVEL  0000°000°60°1L0°18G8°2Z'6012°085°0°)
pAo fessny 'siswsipn
00°'6evs$ [ej0] JopudaAp
00°6ev$ LORLSIA 40 LNO-T3AVIL  0000°000°6€ 2Z'2958" 12 LOLE 0S5 '0'L
qooer ppoy ‘Jaje|s
000¢eLs ‘[ejo] lopuap
)
00'0£L$ LOIULSIA 40 LNO-T3AVAL  0000°000°98'60'2858'25°0066°085°0'L
9 AueT ‘ineq
86zes ‘[ej0] Jopuap
]
8572es LORLSIONIF1IAVEL  0000°000'80'10°1858'92'6210°085°0°) !
W usisiny ‘uediey
L6'GLS ‘|e10 | JOPUSA
— e
unowy uonduosaq JUNODDY # JOpusp _ SWeN JWay Jopuap
M 2Z0Z-120Z :Jea, [edsiy
720Z/L1190

Arewwing Junoosoy juowajddng Joyonop

¥SE ON 1913SIQ [00YoS peajy




Mead School District No 354

Payee Listing

Fiscal Year: 2021-2022

Criteria:
Bank Account: SPOKANE COUNTY TREASURER Voucher: 1237
153607390207

Starting Check Number: 106748

Check # Date Payee Amount
106748 06/24/2022 A TO Z RENTALS ACTS REC $545.00
106749 06/24/2022 ACE HARDWARE $38.34
106750 06/24/2022 Al-MEDIA TECHNOLOGIES LLC $1,274,00
106751 06/24/2022 AIREFCO INC $1,879.96
106752 06/24/2022 ALL ABOUT TOWING $226.72
106753 06/24/2022 ALPHA OMEGA TOURS & CHARTERS $350.20
106754 06/24/2022 AMAZON $3,556.82
106755 06/24/2022 AMERICAN ON SITE SERVICES $1,253.47
106756 06/24/2022 AMERIGAS PROPANE LP $766.30
106757 06/24/2022 ANDERSON, CASSIE $33.45
106758 06/24/2022 APPLE COMPUTER INC $668.90
106759 06/24/2022 BALLOU, CASIDI $28.65
106760 06/24/2022 BECK, KIMBERLEE $13.65
106761 06/24/2022 BECKER, SUE $168.60
106762 06/24/2022 BERG, LAURA $63.45
106763 06/24/2022 BORDERS, RACHEL $41.60
106764 06/24/2022 ‘BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS OF SPOKANE CITY $3,833.87
106765 06/24/2022 CINTAS $243.04
106766 06/24/2022 CITY GLASS $643.20
106767 06/24/2022 COLE, ERIN $49.10
106768 06/24/2022 DINGES, ERIC $31.75
106769 06/24/2022 ESD 101 $1,323.05
106770 06/24/2022 EXCELSIOR HOLISTIC SCHOOLS LLC $13,000.00
106771 06/24/2022 FIRST IMPRESSIONS $147.15
106772 06/24/2022 FISHER'S TECHNOLOGY $2,337.26
106773 06/24/20_22 FOLLETT SCHOOL SOLUTIONS INC $1,526.60
106774 06/24/2022 GIBSON, BRIDGETT $270.00
106775 06/24/2022 GONZALES, SONIA $7.50
106776 06/24/2022 GRIESHABER, DEIRDRE $19.45
106777 06/24/2022 HALEY, JENNY $33.00
106778 06/24/2022 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES $17.08
106779 06/24/2022 HOME DEPOT PRO $189.14
106780 06/24/2022 HORIZON AUTOMATIC RAIN COMPANY DBA $62.65
106781 06/24/2022 HUFFMAN, TANJA $68.95
106782 06/24/2022 IML SECURITY SUPPLY $193.70
106783 06/24/2022 JOSTENS $2,240.74
106784 (06/24/2022 KCDA $5,124.87
106785 06/24/2022 KUEHN, CHERYL $4.05

Printed: 06/22/2022 10:54:24 AM Report: rptGLPayeelisting 2021.4.25 Page: 1




Mead School District No 354

Payee Listing

Fiscal Year: 2021-2022

Criteria:
Bank Account: SPOKANE COUNTY TREASURER Voucher: 1237
153607390207

Starting Check Number: 106748

Check # Date Payee Amount
106786 06/24/2022 LAWSON PRODUCTS INC $744.94
106787 06/24/2022 LEARNING A-Z $322.34
106788 06/24/2022 LES SCHWAB TIRE $936.95
106789 06/24/2022 LILAC CITY BEHAVIORAL SERVICES PLLC $18,322.16
106790 06/24/2022 MCCUNE'S INSTRUMENTS INC $73.04
106791 06/24/2022 MEAD SCHOOL DISTRICT $512.14
106792 06/24/2022 MILLER PAINT CO INC $364.61
106793 06/24/2022 MT SPOKANE ASB $125.00
106794 06/24/2022 NAPA AUTO PARTS $903.97
106795 06/24/2022 NASCO EDUCATION LLC $646.83
106796 06/24/2022 NEW MANAGEMENT $30.00
106797 06/24/2022 NICOL, SHANNA $14.75
106798 06/24/2022 NORTH 40 OUTFITTERS $32.42
106799 06/24/2022 NORTHWEST TECH PRODUCTS INC $866.84
106800 06/24/2022 PETROCARD SYSTEMS INC $50,971.69
106801 06/24/2022 RIFTON EQUIPMENT $407.56
106802 06/24/2022 RIVERSIDE INSIGHTS $151.05
106803 06/24/2022 RWC INTERNATIONAL $5,743.99
106804 06/24/2022 SEATTLE POTTERY SUPPLY $246.47
106805 06/24/2022 SIMPLE SOLUTIONS LEARNING INC $2,596.00
106806 06/24/2022 SPECIAL TOUCH FLORIST $294.90
106807 06/24/2022 SPOKANE HOPE $1,050.00
106808 06/24/2022 STAPLES ADVANTAGE $91.93
106809 06/24/2022 STONEWAY ELECTRIC $129.68
106810 06/24/2022 TRANSFINDER $2,600.00
106811 06/24/2022 TREBRON CO INC $8,032.46
106812 06/24/2022 TSUBER, NATALIYA $46.50
106813 06/24/2022 TURNER, MARCELLES $91.73
106814 06/24/2022 US BANK CORPORATE PYMT SYSTEM $146,825.43
106815 06/24/2022 WA ST FIRST AID $750.00

$120.00

106816 06/24/2022 WAMOA REGION 1
106817 06/24/2022 WCP SOLUTIONS $387.34

106818 06/24/2022 WIERSMA, NOELLE $97.10
106819 06/24/2022 WILDROSE GRAPHICS $10.90
106820 06/24/2022 ZEARN, INC $2,725.00

Total Amount: $289,540.98

End of Report

Printed: -06/22/2022 10:54:24 AM Report: rptGLPayeelisting 2021.4.25 Page: 2




:abeyd

Sev'izoc

Arewungiooyiayanopdwids  uodey WV 00:2€:01 €202/2z/90 -pajund

82°6c$

68°6L%
68'61%

59'89%

G9'89%

Ge'Lg

Ge'Ls

££°9e$

€E'9es

za'ees

[ARN*Y

91°6¢%

91°62$

6v'6C$

6¥'62$

¢L61%

zLeis

L5°9v$

FARC 4

[ej0] JopusA

‘lejo| Jopusp

‘fejo] Jopuap

:[elo] JOpUaA

‘|ejo L Jopuap

‘fejo] Jopusp

{|2J01 Jopuap

|BJO | JOpUBA

Jjejo ] Jopusa

LOM41SIA NI-T3AVYEL
L3141SIa NI-13AVYL

$SAddNS DNITISNNOD

1OR1SIA NIFTIAVEL

LIIM1SIa NI-TIAVYL

1IOILSIA NI-T3AVEL

L1ORI1SIA NI-T13AVYL

LOME1SIA NI-T3IAVYL

1DR1SIA NI-T13AVYL

LORLSIA Ni-T3AVYL

0000°000°€0'8¢"1859°/2°00L0°0E5°0°L
0000°000°€0°0Z°1858°22°00L0°0€5 0L

000000021 CL°00LS Y2 00L0°0E5°0°L

0000°000°£0°£0°1 858 L ¥'0086°0€5°0' |

0000°000'60°1L0°L8S8' P2 LELC0ESO'L

0000°000'60°1L0°1858'92°€ELT 0SS 0L

0000°000+E°20'1858°L9°00.6'0£G°0° )

0000'000'60°'1L0°1858°£2'00L.Z°0ES'0' L

0000°000°60°L0'L8S8'9C°EELC 0ESO'L

0000°000°60'40'L8S8°9Z'€ELT 0ES'0'L

7] 48JlUUSP ‘uasuHB

ang uffoer ‘uepiop

Jajluuap ‘punjboH

SuUUY 97 [ayoey ‘vewpie

umeQ AlJaquury ‘eusaspos)

7 el0|9 ‘uoung

[ Jopuuap ‘paig

3 Aepy sepuig

umeq ‘uos|ipg-Buipjeg

0 uues( ‘uewaag
junouwy uonduosag junoooy # lopuap SWeN Nay Jopusp
¢20C-1202 :1eap |edsiq

¢20Z/veI90 €21 aquinN ydjeg Joyonop

Aewwng Juno29y juswejddng Jayanop

¥S€ ON J0U3siqg |ooyds pesiy




0000'00060°'10°1858°92°1.0L2'0£6°0°)

4 obed SC1'1202 Arewuingioowiayanoadvid  rpoday NV 00:ZE:0L  Z202/22/90 :paiuld
06°05$ LORLSIA NI-TIAVEL  0000°000°60°L0°L8S8 22 0ELZ° 0S50 L
Siul4 “Jauinyg
96°8¢$ ‘|ejo Jopusp
95'8es AORILSIA NIFT3AVEL  0000°000°80°10°1858°92°62L0°0SS 0L
eusjor ‘1aadg
912ELS ‘|[ejo| Jopuap
9bcels LORLSIO NI-TIAVL  0000°000'60°L0°18S8'92°2Z0LZ°055°0"L
piaeqg Lo9 ‘Aey
99°G8¢S ‘|ejo ) jopusp
98'G8¢$ AORILSIA NIFT3AYEL  0000°000°60°10°1858°2Z0ELZ° 0S50’ L
noT Alep ‘Jsupip-lssusuuesd
6 LV$ ‘|ejo | Jopusp
6E°LP$ LORISIA NI-T3AVYL  0000°000'60°L0°L8S8'9Z'EELZ0S5°0"L
yeleg auusyley ‘Aijey
eEPLS ‘[ejo]_Jopusp
£evLS LORILSIA NI-T3AVEL  0000°000°60°L0°18S8'9Z'€ELZ°0E5°0"L
SUeW euueyor ‘1asneylanp
68°19% ‘fejo] Jopuap
68198 LORLSIA NI-TIAVEL  0000°000°60°10° L858 22'6012°085°0" |
uuoQqg ._._Ow_mZ
16'9¢$ ‘lejo} lopuap
16928 ADNRLSIA NI-TIAVEL  0000°000°6E°20°1858'€9°0026°0€5°0"L
S auueakay) ‘Aydinpy
00°'62$ ‘lejo] Jopuap
SADIANYIS
00°52$ INIWJOT3AIA ANV DNINIVYL 30N 0000000 VS 20°0E€2 29°0026 056 0"}
1ap|ig obny ‘ousiopy eIl
0591$ J|ejo Jopusp
05'9L$ 1DI1SIA NI-T3AVYL

Junowy

2Z02/¥2I190

uonduosag

8€Z1 :JoquinN yojeq Jaysnop

JUnoosoy

# Jopuap SWeN Jway Jopuap

€202-120C :aedp [edsiy
Arewwing junooay Juswejddng Jayonop

¥S€ ON 3oH}SIQ |00YDS pesyy




:abeg

T B A4

ArelungoyIaysnopndyids  Hodey WV 00:2€:0L €c0e/ee/on  pejuLd

Hoday jo pug

L6'9€T'1L$ ‘fejo} pueig
LEPLLS [BI0Y JOpUBA
LEVLLS LOILSIA NIFT3AVEL 0000°000°60°10° 18S8'9Z'€€12°0E5°0")
M ajjeueq ‘Jsinpp
(Y4 |ejo Jopuap
6zzes DRLSIANIFTEAYEL  0000°000°60°10°1858°/2'60L2°05°0'L
pAoIT |lossny ‘sisWwang
06'06%$ J[e101 Jopuap
o E:oc..l(l . uonduosaq JUNOJDY # JOpUDp SLIEN WSy JOPUIA
7202-120Z :Jeap [eds|y
2e02vZion 8€C1. -Jaquinp yojegq Jayanop

Arewwng juno29y Juswsajddng Jayonop

¥S€ ON 3011s1Q |ooYydS pesiy




Capital Projects Fund




Mead School District No 354

Payee Listing

Fiscal Year: 2021-2022

Criteria:
Bank Account: SPOKANE COUNTY TREASURER Voucher: 1234
1563607390207
Starting Check Number: 106727
Check # Date Payee Amount
106727 06/17/2022 KCDA $10,328.97
Total Amount: $10,328.97
End of Report
2021.4.25 Page: 1

Printed: 06/15/2022 10:47:22 AM Report: rptGLPayeelisting




Mead School District No 354

Payee Listing

Fiscal Year: 2021-2022

Criteria:
Bank Account: SPOKANE COUNTY TREASURER Voucher: 1239
153607390207
Starting Check Number: 106821
Check # Date Payee Amount
106821 06/24/2022 DISCOUNT LUMBER & BUILDING SUPPLIES INC $9,349.86
106822 06/24/2022 US BANK CORPORATE PYMT SYSTEM $2,542.06
Total Amount: $11,891.92

End of Report

Printed: 06/22/2022 10:58:59 AM Report:  rptGLPayeelListing 2021.4.25 Page: 1




ASB




Mead School District No 354

Payee Listing

Fiscal Year: 2021-2022

Criteria:

Bank Account: SPOKANE COUNTY TREASURER Voucher: 1235
153607390207

Starting Check Number: 106728

Check # Date Payee Amount
106728 06/17/2022 AMAZON $377.23
106729 06/17/2022 AWARDMASTERS $400.75
106730 06/17/2022 CDA 3 POINT CLUB INC $1,125.00
106731 06/17/2022 COFFIELD, JESSICA $65.00
106732 06/17/2022 DEMOULIN BROTHERS & CO $474.41
106733 06/17/2022 ENGRAVER $332.56
106734 06/17/2022 EZ FLEX SPORT MATS $2,224.69
106735 06/17/2022 HARE, TAMMY $15.00
106736 06/17/2022 LINES, ADELLE $30.00
106737 06/17/2022 MARK, JESSICA $26.00
106738 06/17/2022 MEAD FOOD BANK $1,567.64
106739 06/17/2022 MEAD SCHOOL DISTRICT $380.61
106740 06/17/2022 MOMENTUM INC $2,642.93
106741 06/17/2022 OILFIELD ARMY $1,453.07
106742 06/17/2022 RAMAX PRINTING & AWARDS, INC $264.30
106743 06/17/2022 REIJONEN, SARA $50.00
106744 06/17/2022 TROPHIES UNLIMITED $180.94
106745 06/17/2022 UNIVERSAL ATHLETIC $1,256.54
106746 06/17/2022 WHITWORTH UNIVERSITY.. . $1,500.00
106747 06/17/2022 WISENOR, TAD $65.00

Total Amount: $14,431.67
End of Report
Printed:  06/15/2022 10:50;52 AM Report: rptGLPayeeListing 2021.4.25 Page: 1




L :abey

SZ¥'1e0c Alewwingiooy1ayonopdyads ‘Hodey WV G1:.€:01 CC0Z/S1/90  :pSjuld
uoday jo pug
L2'v02% ‘[ejol puel
89'99% ‘lejo) Jopuap
89'99% EIA:E 0000°000°00°82°0000°00°0L¥E 0SS 0
1 I9BUDIN ‘WIBA0IS
6G6°2¢L% ‘lejo Jopuap
6.°'89% 470D STAID 0000°000°00°22°0000°00°09+Z 0E5°0'
08'89% 4100°SA08 ° 0000°000°00°2Z'0000°00'05H2°0ES 0y
uojjiweH. ueky ‘uosjeN
unowyy uonduosag Junoogy # Jopuap 3WeN Jway Jopuap
¢20C-120T :lea) |easiy
Z202/21/90

9eZ1 :AqWINN yodjeg Jeysnop

Arewwing 3uno2oy jusweiddng 13Yonop

¥S€ ON 1913Siq [00Yog pesiy




Mead School District No 354

Payee Listing

Fiscal Year: 2021-2022

Criteria:
Bank Account: SPOKANE COUNTY TREASURER Voucher: 1240
153607390207

Starting Check Number: 106823

Check # Date Payee Amount
106823 06/24/2022 ALPINE FRAMES $72.32
106824 06/24/2022 AMAZON $39.18
106825 06/24/2022 AWSL $1,425.00
106826 06/24/2022 BSN SPORTS $4,153.22
106827 06/24/2022 DORIAN STUDIO $16,512.00
106828 06/24/2022 ESCALANTI, TY $500.00
106829 06/24/2022 GENERATION ALIVE $2,721.00
106830 06/24/2022 GONZAGA ATHLETICS $2,700.00
106831 06/24/2022 HERFF JONES INC $18,608.73
106832 06/24/2022 INLAND NW YEARBOOK CAMP $1,770.00
106833 06/24/2022 MEAD SCHOOL DISTRICT $2,846.83
106834 06/24/2022 MOCA CREATIONS $597.79
106835 06/24/2022 MOMENTUM INC $1,084.78
106836 06/24/2022 MUSIC THEATRE INTERNATIONAL $88.68
106837 06/24/2022 PATTISON'S NORTH ROLLER SKATING CTR $1,759.50
106838 06/24/2022 PURPURA, TEAGAN $20.00
106839 06/24/2022 ROSS POINT $762.13
106840 06/24/2022 SANFORD, CALEB $20.00
106841 06/24/2022 SANTOS IV, DONACIANO $159.00
106842 06/24/2022 SHADLE PARK HIGH SCHOOL $100.00
106843 06/24/2022 UNIVERSAL ATHLETIC $320.98
106844 06/24/2022 US BANK CORPORATE PYMT SYSTEM $46,624.91
106845 06/24/2022 WASHINGTON OFFICIALS ASSOCIATION $8,941.50
106846 06/24/2022 WHITWORTH UNIVERSITY.. . $500.00
106847 06/24/2022 WIAA $40.00

Total Amount: $112,367.55

End of Report

Printed: 06/22/2022 11:00:20 AM Report: rptGLPayeelListing 2021.4.25 Page: 1




3 ‘obed

STV 1202 Arewwinglooyiayonoadwvids  podey WV G5:/S0L  Z20Z/22/90 :pajuid
poday jo pug
00'G2$ ‘lejo pueln
00°5z$ :jejo] Jopusp
00'62$ AOOFYVIA ESY  0000°000°00°81°0000°00°00LL'096'0't
aung Aespul ‘Bipury
Junowy uonduasaqg JUNOODY # 10pusp alUEN JNWaY JOPUSA
Z202/v2/90

LbZL equiny yajeg 1oydnoA

2202-120Z :Jeaj [eIsly
Alewwng junosoy juswe|ddng Jayanop

¥S€ ON 3013siQg jooYyas pespy




EXTRA CURRICULAR CONTRACTS

June 27, 2022

Location First Name Last Name Activity Amount

Creekside Amy 'Hegwood Math is Cool S 398.00
Creekside Ashliegh Kenison Math is Cool 'S 398.00
Creekside Ashliegh Kenison STEM Club Coach S 796.00
Creekside Lila Pippin 'STEM Club Coach S 796.00
Evergreen Elementary  Andrea Williams ASB '$ 1,592.00
Evergreen Elementary  Molly McCarthy ASB S 1,592.00
Evergreen Elementary  Karin Llyr Mustang Mallets S 796.00
Highland Middle Marcy ‘Gallinger CTSO - Shark Tank Club $ 2,500.00
Mead High Jim McCollum Baseball Post Season S 909.60
Mead High Steve Hare Baseball Post Season 'S 1,364.20
Mead High Drew Lochhead ‘Boys Golf Post Season S 141.96
Mead High :PauI Peters Boys Golf Post Season S 1,398.67
Mead High Steven ‘Acosta Boys Soccor Post Season ' S 2,269.68
Mead High Steven Del Pizzo 'Boys Soccor Post Season $ 1,186.08
Mead High Tanner Wilburn Boys Soccor Post Season S 635.94
Mead High Brian Collins Boys Tennis Post Season S 430.50
Mead High Bryce Borland 'Boys Tennis Post Season S 1,611.68
Mead High Conner Busch Boys Tennis Post Season 'S 86.08
Mead High Amanda Chan ‘Boys Track Post Season | 5 614.25
Mead High Austin Stuchell 'Boys Track Post Season S 987.74
Mead High :Jacob Sturtevant Boys Track Post Season S 614.25
Mead High James Lehr Boys Track Post Season $ 1,159.08
Mead High Mike Fleming Boys Track Post Season S 1,309.88
Mead High Mike Phillips Boys Track Post Season $ 1,309.88
Mead High Amanda Chan Boys Track Regular Season S 2,976.80
Mead High Jason Roberts CTSO - Cyber Patriots Lead S  2,500.00
Mead High ‘Andy Arnold 'CTSO - Manufacturing Club S 2,500.00
Mead High ‘Brandon Butler DECA Club S 7,000.00
Mead High Sammy Schmidt 'DECA Club Co-Advisor S 1,250.00
Mead High Breanna Regalado FastPitch Softball Post Season S 380.64
Mead High 'Halley Cey FastPitch Softball Post Season ) 261.76
Mead High Tiffany ‘Casedy FastPitch Softball Post Season ~ $  1,264.10
Mead High Adam Strate Girls Golf Post Season S 165.62
Mead High Keith Ross Girls Golf Post Season S 1,398.67
Mead High Jon Wrigley Girls Tennis Post Season | $ 1,255.30
Mead High Aaron ‘Bagnall Girls Track Post Season S 938.52
Mead High Claire Spring (Girls Track Post Season S 377.52
Mead High Corissa Hutchinson \Girls Track Post Season S 623.04
Mead High :Dori Whitford Girls Track Post Season $ 1,803.75
Mead High Hanna Bjerkestrand Girls Track Post Season S 718.24
Mead High Laurie ‘Chadwick Girls Track Post Season 'S 915.75
Mead High Makena Busch Girls Track Post Season S 405.79




EXTRA CURRICULAR CONTRACTS

June 27, 2022

Location First Name 'Last Name Activity Amount

Mead High Kristal Pride HOSA Club '$  3,500.00
Mead High Joseph Schamber HOSA Club Co-Advisor S 1,250.00
Meadow Ridge Seth Bergman ‘Music Club 5 796.00
Meadow Ridge Shannon Cosner Yearbook Club $ 1,990.00
Mountainside Josh Woollett Increased Stipend Due to VOE S 517.00
Mt. Spokane David Pratt 2022 Spring Conditioning S 250.00
Mt. Spokane Adam Morris Baseball Post Season S 1,646.55
Mt. Spokane Alex Schuerman Baseball Post Season '$ 2,245.80
Mt. Spokane Gabe ‘Martin Baseball Post Season $ 650.44
Mt. Spokane ‘Brian Gardner Boys Golf Post Season S 708.00
Mt. Spokane Terry Cloer Boys Golf Post Season '$  1,004.52
Mt. Spokane Jay Vela Boys Soccor Post Season S 921.70
Mt. Spokane _Todd Slatter ‘Boys Soccor Post Season | S 1,805.44
Mt. Spokane Dustin McConnell Boys Tennis Post Season S 946.80
Mt. Spokane Danny Figueira Boys Track Post Season S 1,720.55
Mt. Spokane Devan Nelson ‘Boys Track Post Season S 793.00
Mt. Spokane Finis Turner Boys Track Post Season S 1,311.57
Mt. Spokane lason Miller Boys Track Post Season S 1,311.57
Mt. Spokane Jonathan Harrison Boys Track Post Season S 317.20
Mt. Spokane Justin King Boys Track Post Season S 1,35291
Mt. Spokane Scott :Daratha Boys Track Post Season S 1,35291
Mt. Spokane Ryan Nelson _Girls Golf Post Season _ S 1,291.08
Mt. Spokane Sally Van Wert Girls Golf Post Season S 438.84
Mt. Spokane Jacob Fry Girls Tennis Post Season S 807.50
Mt. Spokane Jeanne Helfer Girls Tennis Post Season S 926.90
Mt. Spokane 'Andy Sonneland Girls Track Post Season S 728.49
Mt. Spokane Annette Helling Girls Track Post Season S 971.25
Mt. Spokane Rebecca Coley Girls Track Post Season S 566.79
Mt. Spokane :Bre Booher ‘Softball Post Season S 293.16
Mt. Spokane Carl Adams Softball Post Season S 643.26
Mt. Spokane Natalie ' King Softball Post Season S 401.45
Mt. Spokane Dave Harvey ‘Track Post Season E 728.49
Mt. Spokane Emily Stiles ‘Track Post Season 'S 440.44
Mt. Spokane Katie ‘Mann Track Post Season S 427.00
Northwood Middle Maya Heissenbuttel CTSO - NW Robotics Club S 2,500.00




SUPPLEMENTAL CONTRACTS

June 27, 2022

Location FFirst Name Last Name Activity Amount

Creekside Courtney _Alder Check Infout Faci. & PBIS Tier 1 Team Class Staff Rep. S 455.00
Creekside Cindy Latella PBIS Coordinator S 530.00
Creekside Ashleigh Kenison PLC Facilitator S 200.00
Creekside Cindy Latella PLC Facilitator S 200.00
Creekside Lila Pippin PLC Facilitator '$  200.00
Creekside Mindi Bos PLC Facilitator S 200.00
Creekside ‘Michelle Norwood Tier 3 Intery, Facilitator $ 530.00
Highland Middle Bryan Smith CTE Responsibility Stipend $ 2,500.00
Highland Middle Courtney  Kelley CTE Responsibility Stipend S 2,500.00
Highland Middle Jill Fetcho CTE Responsibility Stipend $ 2,500.00
Highland Middle Marcy Gallinger CTE Responsibility Stipend $ 2,500.00
Highland Middle ‘Meg Maglio 'CTE Responsibility Stipend S 2,500.00
Learning Services Kelly _ZeIIer ELC PreSchool Overload _ S 3,878.38
Learning Services Jaci Gregg ‘Overload - per MOU S 1,200.00
Mead High Alia Brown /AP Test Proctor $ 120.00
Mead High Elizabeth  Lewis AP Test Proctor S 180.00
Mead High Emily Shick AP Test Proctor S 240.00
Mead High lenna Cosgrove AP Test Proctor S 60.00
Mead High Lindsey Carlson AP Test Proctor 'S 300.00
Mead High Andy Arnold 'CTE Responsibility Stipend $ 2,500.00
Mead High ‘Brandon Butler 'CTE Responsibility Stipend $ 2,500.00
Mead High Carol Dever 'CTE Responsibility Stipend S 2,500.00
Mead High Gunnar Drew 'CTE Responsibility Stipend S 2,500.00
Mead High Jared Thomas 'CTE Responsibility Stipend $ 2,500.00
Mead High Jason _Roberts CTE Responsibility Stipend _ S 2,500.00
Mead High Jason Tebbets CTE Responsibility Stipend ~$ 2,500.00
Mead High loseph Schamber CTE Responsibility Stipend $ 2,500.00
Mead High Kristal Pride CTE Responsibility Stipend S 2,500.00
Mead High Makena ‘Busch CTE Responsibility Stipend $ 2,500.00
Mead High Marci Steinbach CTE Responsibility Stipend $ 2,500.00
Mead High Rick Biggerstaff 'CTE Responsibility Stipend S 2,500.00
Mead High Sammy Schmidt CTE Responsibility Stipend $ 2,500.00
Mead High Allison McCready Panthers Pratect Panthers S 300.00
Midway Suzanne Bofenkamp ‘Marathon Kids S 398.00
Midway Tia Rupe 'Marathon Kids S 398.00
Mountainside Ben ‘Hunter CTE Responsibility Stipend _ S 2,500.00
Mountainside Chris ‘Weiland CTE Responsibility Stipend S 2,500.00
Mountainside Craig Triplett 'CTE Responsibility Stipend S 2,500.00
Mountainside David Neale 'CTE Responsibility Stipend S 2,500.00
Mountainside Jeff Lochhead CTE Responsibility Stipend S 2,500.00
Mountainside Jim Louie CTE Responsibility Stipend S 2,500.00
Mountainside Shannon Stiles CTE Responsibility Stipend S 2,500.00




SUPPLEMENTAL CONTRACTS

June 27, 2022
Mountainside Susy Breneman 'CTE Responsibility Stipend $ 2,500.00
Mt. Spokane Breann Booher CTE Responsibility Stipend S 2,500.00
Mt. Spokane :Dan Melin CTE Responsibility Stipend '$ 2,500.00
Mt. Spokane David Pratt CTE Responsibility Stipend S 2,500.00
Mt. Spokane :Jenne Hatcher CTE Responsibility Stipend $ 2,500.00
Mt. Spokane Joel ‘Murphy 'CTE Responsibility Stipend S 2,500.00
Mt. Spokane Maureen  Collins CTE Responsibility Stipend S 2,500.00
Mt. Spokane Nick Herberger 'CTE Responsibility Stipend $ 2,500.00
Mt. Spokane Raeleen Epperson CTE Responsibility Stipend $ 2,500.00
Mt. Spokane 'Rebecca Young CTE Responsibility Stipend S 2,500.00
Mt. Spokane ‘Ryan ‘Nelson 'CTE Responsibility Stipend S 2,500.00
Mt. Spokane Stephanie Semb CTE Responsibility Stipend $ 2,500.00
Mt. Spokane :Susan Best CTE Responsibility Stipend '$ 2,500.00
Mt. Spokane Todd Slatter CTE Responsibility Stipend $ 2,500.00
Mt. Spokane Zoe Tatylor CTE Responsibility Stipend $ 2,500.00
Mt. Spokane David Pratt DECA Co-Advisor '$ 1,000.00
Mt. Spokane Todd Slatter DECA Lead S 7,000.00
Mt. Spokane Rebecca Young FCCLA CoAdvisor S 1,000.00
Mt. Spokane Maureen  Collins 'FCCLA Lead $ 3,500.00
Mt. Spokane Dan Melin HOSA Club $ 1,000.00
Mt. Spokane ‘Raeleen Epperson HOSA Club S 4,000.00
Mt. Spokane Breann Booher ‘Sports Med Advisor S 4,000.00
Northwood Middle Brittany Page 'CTE Responsibility Stipend S 2,500.00
Northwood Middle Dave Gamon CTE Responsibility Stipend $ 2,500.00
Northwood Middle :Jennifer Romo CTE Responsibility Stipend _ S 2,500.00
Northwood Middle Josh ‘Wilcox CTE Responsibility Stipend S 2,500.00
Northwood Middle Renee Demand CTE Responsibility Stipend S 2,500.00
Northwood Middle Dave Gamon STEM Coordinator _ S 5,000.00
Special Services Jamie :Bowman ‘Bldg. Lead Highland $ 500.00
Special Services DeAnna ‘Ganea Bldg. Lead Mead HS S 500.00
Special Services Nicole Leslie Bldg. Lead Mead HS S 500.00
Special Services Kim Killman Bldg. Lead Mountianside '$ 500.00
Special Services Kelli Burkhardt Bldg. Lead Mt. Spokane S 500.00
Special Services Ben Mortensen Bldg. Lead Northwood S 500.00
Special Services :Christina Elliot Ed Spec Increased Workload MOU S 2,500.00
Special Services _Hayley Calhoun Ed Spec Increased Workload MOU S 2,500.00
Special Services Katie 'Bagdon Ed Spec Increased Workload MOU S 2,500.00
Special Services Kimberly | Gortsema Ed Spec Increased Workload MOU S 2,500.00
Special Services May Schober Ed Spec Increased Workload MOU $ 2,500.00
Special Services Tera Wolf-Brasch Ed Spec Increased Workload MOU $ 2,500.00
Special Services Jessica Rumberger ‘Overload - per MOU S 9,016.39
Special Services Teresa Arnzen School Psychologist Overload S 6,375.00
Special Services Ashly Hoffman SLP Overload - per MOU S 6,358.95




SUPPLEMENTAL CONTRACTS

June 27, 2022
Special Services ‘Brenna Weishaar SLP Overload - per MOU '$2,311.73
Special Services Brittany ‘Hopkins SLP Overload - per MOU S 1,254.14
Special Services Emily Erwin SLP Overload - per MOU ' S 886.96
Special Services Erin Van Blaricom SLP Overload - per MOU S 1,078.01
Special Services Holly Kranches SLP Overload - per MOU S 886.96
Special Services Jamie Kissler 'SLP Overload - per MOU S 97476
Special Services Jenny Martinsen SLP Overload - per MOU S 1,141.05
Special Services Kristin Sherwood SLP Overload - per MOU S 1,254.14
Special Services Laura Pederson SLP Overload - per MOU S 1,254.14
Special Services Meghan Wallblom SLP Overload - per MOU 'S 886.96
Special Services Melissa Kehr 'SLP Overload - per MOU $ 1,105.58
Special Services Sarah Alkire SLP Overload - per MOU S 366.38
Special Services Sarah Ramsden 'SLP Overload - per MOU $ 1,005.84
Special Services Shannon  Main 'SLP Overload - per MOU S 3,566.82
Special Services Sophie 'Pichardo SLP Overload - per MOU S 3,349.32
Special Services ‘Tammy Spence SLP Overload - per MOU ' S 4,617.17
Special Services ‘Heidi Kieper Spec Ed Program Oversight Responsibility = $ 1,500.00
Special Services Kristin Hermann Add'l Responsibilities - Per MOU S 2,600.00




CO CURRICULAR CONTRACTS
June 27, 2022

Location First N\ame Last Name Activity Amount

Learning Services Andrew ‘Savage Orchestra Director S 1,634.00
Mead High Greg Bertsch Musical $ 2,971.00
Mead High Brandon Campbell Musical '$ 1,274.00
Mead High Emily McKinney Musical S 1,274.00
Mead High Quinn Gamon Musical S 1,274.00




MEAD SCHOOL DISTRICT
Board Meeting of June 27, 2022
New Business

Agenda Item:

Background:

Attachments:

VILB.

Establish Calendar for
2022-2023 (August — June) Board Meeting Dates

According to Policy 1400 regular board meetings
will be at 6 p.m. two Mondays each month or at
other times/places as determined by the Board or
the Superintendent.

It is a practice of the Mead School District to notify
the local newspaper of regular board meetings and
to post a board meeting calendar on the district’s
website.

For 2022-2023 the district will hold two public
meetings each month with the exception of
December and July. The attached draft calendar for
2022-23 follows this format.

e Draft 2022-23 School Board Meetings Calendar




ARLIRL scroorDistricT

2022-2023 (August — June)
School Board Meeting Dates

Date Time Location

8/15/22 6:00 PM Union Event Center

Union Event Center

8/29/22 6:00 PM

9/12/22 6:00 PM Union Event Center

9/26/22 6:00 PM Union Event Center

10/10/22 6:00 PM Union Event Center

10/24/22 6:00 PM Union Event Center

11/7/22 6:00 PM Union Event Center

6:00 PM Union Event Center

11/21/22

12/12/22 6:00 PM Union Event Center

1/9/23 6:00 PM Union Event Center

1/23/23 6:00 PM Union Event Center

2/13/23 6:00 PM Union Event Center

2/27/23 6:00 PM Union Event Center

3/13/23 6:00 PM Union Event Center

3/27/23 6:00 PM Union Event Center

4/10/23 6:00 PM Union Event Center

4/24/23 6:00 PM Union Event Center

5/8/23 6:00 PM Union Event Center

5/22/23 6:00 PM Union Event Center

6/12/23 6:00 PM Union Event Center

6/26/23 6:00 PM Union Event Center




MEAD SCHOOL DISTRICT

Board Meeting of June 27, 2022
New Business VIL.C.

Agenda Item: Student Travel Proposal
Mt. Spokane High School Performing Arts Department

Background:
The Mt. Spokane High School Performing Arts Department requests permission to

take part in the Anaheim Heritage Festival taking place in Anaheim,
California/surrounding areas March 30, 2023 - April 5, 2023. It is estimated 200
students and 26 staff/chaperones will participate. A copy of the trip itinerary is
included in the attached Student Travel Proposal.

Students will miss two days of school (March 30 & March 31). The remainder of
the trip takes place during Spring Break.

Fiscal Impact:
The estimated per student/adult cost is $1622.00, with fund raising

opportunities provided.

Other Considerations:
Mt. Spokane teaching staff taking part in the trip will need subs for March 30 and

March 31. Sub costs will be covered by the Mt. Spokane High School Building
Budget.

Recommendation:
Approval of the presented trip from the Mt. Spokane High School Performing Arts

Department to travel to Anaheim, California, March 30 - April 5, 2023, to take
part in the Anaheim Heritage Festival, is recommended.

Attachment(s): Student Travel Proposal



[T41)
AL STUDENT TRAVEL PROPOSAL

ROUNAM METRICT

School: Mt. Spokane HS Group: Mt Spokane HS Performing Arts Department

Trip Name: Anaheim Heritage Festival Submission Date:  June 10, 2022

Extended Field Trip (Overnight)
Trips related to club, leadership or academic activities that involve
overnight stays in Washington, Montana, Idaho, Oregon or British

For every student who
travels as part of this
activity | will have in my

possession: Columbia (e.g. overnight leadership camps). Requires preliminary
approval of building Principal, Activities/Athletic Director & Director of
* Asigned Student Secondary Education or Director of Elementary Education (depending on
Travel Permission grade level).
Form
* A Medical Emergency X special Event Trip {Overnight)
Information Form Co-curricular or extra-curricular trips that are not part of sanctioned

regular or post-season schedules and involve overnight stays and
substantial cost to the student (e.g. band trip to bowl parade and trips to

Teacher/Coach/Advisor
Sy Hovik national or regional student leadership conference). Requires preliminary
approval of building Principal, Activities/Athletic Director & Director of
Date Secondary Education or Director of Elementary Education {depending on

grade level) followed by final School Board approval. All trips to
destinations outside of Washington, Montana, ldaho, Oregon or British
Columbia fall into this category.

June 10, 2022

Academic Study Trip (Overnight)

School sponsored academic trip that is supervised by schooi staff and
results in educational credit for the student {e.g. government class trip to
Washington, D.C., etc.). Requires preliminary approval of building
Principal, Activities/Athletic Director & lead Student Services
administrator followed by final School Board approval.

Day Trip
No overnight stay . . . Requires building principal authorization only.

Date(s) of Trip: __ March 30, 2023 - April 5, 2023 Person in Charge Sy Hovik

Destination{s) Anaheim, CA and surrounding areas

Approvals

PrmCIpalé f /é /A W%(ééctwltles/mhletlc Director N
Director of Elementary or Secondary o Nurse
School Board - o __Final Approval Date

Revised 08/21




Trip Educational Benefit and Planned Activities:

The Mt. Spokane High School Performing Arts Department is requesting travel to Anaheim, CA to participate in the Worldstrides International Music Festival.

Our band, orchestra, and cholr students will gat the opportunity to perform in world class venues and receive educational feedback about their

performance:

s from world renown musicians and educators.

Please see

attached trip proposat for more information on the itinerary and educational benefit.

Cost & Funding Sources:

Fundraising Opportunities:

‘ Building Budget
‘ Covering: This will be determined based on how many students choose not to travel.

|$

Number of subs needed for the performing arts department will be based on this. $155.00
ASB Funds S
| Covering:
! $0.00
f |
District Funds S
Covering: Cost to be determined by HB1660

Student/Parent Cost (per student) ~ Expense Breakdown
Covering — Please itemize: Transportation - (air and ground) $742.00

Hotel Lodging $507.00
Entertainment and Workshops - {admisslon to parks)$307.00
Meals - 2 provided each day while in Disneyland Park $66.00
$1622.00 TOTAL

Note:
Figures are approximate based on 200 students and 26 adults

Our programs have prided themselves on the fundraising opportunitles we provide both through the 3it. Spokane HS ASB and through

our booster arganizations. Listed below are Just a few that are available that our students and families will have access to in an effort

to help themselves and their peers in the group reach the funds needed.

Available Fundraisers - Cookle dough sales, World's Finest Chocolate Sales, dine out fundraisers, car washes, program ad sales.

Revised 08/21




Participants:

26

Estimated # of Students  ?°°  Estimated # of Adults {Chaperons & Staff)

# of School Days Missed: _ 2 # of Sub Days Meeded: __ 2 Student/Chaperone Ratio: __ 8to1

Additional Information:

1. Does the trip involve any of the following . . . please circle:
s+ Swimming and/or Boating
¢ _Remote Locations/Hiking
» \ Outdoor Education
e Animals
L
-

Motorized Activities

This reservation is being determined by our travel rep w/ Worldstrides. We will be within 1 mile of Disneyland Resort.

2. Llodging:

3. Transponation: Air travel, charter bus services for LAX, Disneyland ground transportation (buses, gondola)

Please see atiached trip proposal for additional Information

4, Supporting Documents:

Preliminary Trip Itinerary attached? X _ Yes No
Related brochures/informaticn attached: x_Yes No
Student Trip Expectations attached; ¥x__Yes No

Revised 08/21




MT. SPOKANE HIGH SCHOOL PERFORMING ARTS DEPARTMENT

CALIFORNIA 2023

TRIP PROPOSAL




INTRODUCTION LETTER

Greetings!

As directors of the Mt. Spokane High School Performing Arts Department, we would like to
express our excitement once again for this potential experience for our students. We are first
and foremost committed to working closely with our nurses and administrators to specifically
address restrictions, guidelines, and mandates pertaining to Covid, and are also committed to
working through the financial implications of House Bill 1660 to ensure all of our students have

safe access to this special experience.

At this time, we are seeking preliminary, or complete approval to move
forward with planning and financial aspects that are time-sensitive
while we remain in a risk-free window of opportunity. Unfortunately,
any further delays will result in limited to no availability or much high
prices due to the large amount of travel cancellations in 2020 & 2021,
including our own 2022 plans.

In addition to the wonderful educational, social, and cultural
experiences the students will receive, as outlined in the itinerary
overview section of this proposal, we would also like to share our
experiences and training as directors that will assist in making this an incredible event for our
students and a comfortable approval decision for you. Aside from our personal experiences on
many, many occasions, our directors have first-hand professional experiences planning all
phases of Disney travel opportunities with our very own Mt. Spokane HS performing arts
students. These experiences have included everything from airfare to meals, lodging,
transportation, performances, equipment, safety and security.

Many ask, “why do we so often travel to Disney locations?” From the directors, the answer is
easy; Walt Disneyland provides for the students’ security, safety, cleanliness, organization,
basic hospitality, and of course, wonderful educational workshops and performances. We have
all been incredibly impressed with the overall environment and the positive experiences our

students have received.

We are thankful for your time serving our students and consideration in approving this event
for our Mt. Spokane HS Performing Arts students.

Regards,
~ Sy Hovik

“ORMING ARTS DEPARTMENT




GENERAL INFORMATION

Dates of Travel:
Persons In Charge:
Destination:

Eligible Students:

Estimated # of
Students:

Estimated # of
Adults:

# of School Days
Missed:

# of Sub Days
Needed:

Student/Chaperone
Ratio:

Additional Activities:

Lodging:

Transportation:

March 30, 2023 - April 5, 2023
Mt. Spokane Performing Arts Department
Anaheim, CA and surrounding areas

Current and active students within the MSHS Performing Arts
Department

200
likely to be less but this is the number used for budgeting

20 - 6 staff, 14 parent chaperones
Numbers to be adjusted as student number is determined

2

4 directors needing 2 days of sub coverage
Consolidation of classes is likely to save on sub needs

10:1
This ratio includes all staff and assigned parent chaperones

Swimmina/Boating - students will have access to hotel pools and
Disney World water parks. All water areas are under the
supervision of lifeguards.

Remote Locations/Hiking - NO

Qutdoor Education - NO

Animals - NO

Air Travel - Participants of this trip will be traveling via airplane.
Airline undetermined at this time.

Motorized Activities - NO

This reservation is being determined by our travel rep w/
Worldstrides. We will be within 1 mile of Disneyland Resort.

Air travel, charter bus services for LAX, Disneyland ground
transportation (buses, gondola)

page 3of 8



ITINERARY OVERVIEW

Thursday, March 30 - Travel Day to Anaheim

Morning air travel to LAX - participants meet at Spokane Int'l Airport
Charter Transportation

Early evening hotel check in at TBD
Dinner in chaperone led groups near Disneyland. NOT provided.

Friday, March 31 - Festival Competition Day

Charter Transportation for EACH group (Band, Orchestra, and Choir)
Worldstrides Festival (All Day)

Box Lunch Provided
AIM Experience (Instrument specific masterclass led by world renowned

musicians)
e Dinner in chaperone led groups near Disneyland. NOT provided.

Saturday, April 1 - Festival Awards Day in Disneyland Park

Breakfast on your own in chaperone led groups near Disneyland. NOT provided.
Free time in the Disney Parks

2 Meal Vouchers provided for lunch and dinner

Worldstrides Awards Ceremony in Disneyland Park

page 4 of 8




ITINERARY CONTINUED

Sunday, April 2 - Day in Disneyland Park

e Breakfast on your own in chaperone led groups near Disneyland. NOT provided.

e Free time in the Disney Parks
e 2 Meal Vouchers provided for lunch and dinner

Monday, April 3 - Universal Studios Day

Breakfast on your own in chaperone led groups near Disneyland. NOT provided.
Charter Transportation to Burbank

Universal Studios Day via charter bus

Lunch on your own at Universal

Charter Transportation back to Anaheim

Dinner in chaperone led groups near Disneyland. NOT provided.

Tuesday, April 4 - Day in Disneyland Park

Breakfast on your own in chaperone led groups near Disneyland. NOT provided.

Free time in the Disney Parks
Disney Workshop Film Experience (Band, Orchestra, Choir)
2 Meal Vouchers provided for lunch and dinner

® & o o

Wednesday, April 5 - Educational Experience/Travel Day Home

Breakfast on your own in chaperone led groups near Disneyland. NOT provided.
Hotel Checkout

Charter Transportation

Griffiths Observatory

Charter Transportation to LAX

Students arrange for pick up from the Spokane Int'l Airport

page 5of 8




COST & FUNDING SOURCES

Expense Overview
This Special Event Trip, as defined by MSD Board Policy 2152, will be self-funded as outlined

in said policies primarily by the individual student attending the trip. Financial assistance will be
provided for those in need and as resources allow. Additionally, students qualifying as Low
Income will have fees waived to comply with House Bill 1660. (See HB 1660 process for
optional, non-credited band events here). Building, ASB, and other district funds will be used
only for the purpose of assisting those in need.

Student Expenses
$742.00 Transportation - (air and ground)

$507.00 Hotel Lodging
$307.00 Entertainment and Workshops - (admission to parks)
$66.00 Meals - 2 provided each day while in Disneyland Park

$1622.00 TOTAL
note: Figures are approximate based on 200 students and 26 adults

Fundraising Opportunities

Our programs have prided themselves on the fundraising opportunities we provide both
through the Mt. Spokane HS ASB and through our booster organizations. Listed below are
just a few that are available that our students and families will have access to in an effort to

help themselves and their peers in the group reach the funds needed.

Available Fundraisers - Cookie dough sales, World's Finest Chocolate Sales, dine out
fundraisers, car washes, program ad sales.

House Bill 1660 Considerations
It has always been our mission to find a way for all interested students to participate in our

activities regardless of financial means, resources, or status. With that said, there is no doubt
that a trip of this magnitude does present added challenges with regard to assisting those in
need: both those that qualify as low income and those that do not, but would like to attend.
Quite frankly, there is no fundraising campaign that would cover the entire budget for this trip.

As with any ambitious project, we will rely heavily on multiple revenue sources including
donations, fundraising, and student fees to meet our financial goals.

page 6 of 8




TRIP EXPECTATIONS

School Event Awareness
First and foremost, students will be made aware that this is a school event. ALL policies set forth by the

Mead School District and Mt. Spokane High School Student Handbook are to be followed by all
travelers. Behavior, actions, and general conduct should be in alignment with what would be acceptable

while at school.

Behavioral Expectations While Traveling

The following are expectations found at www.meadbands.ora/handbook that provide some
additional guidance for expectations while on a trip. Mt. Spokane HS and Mead HS are in the
process of aligning our student handbooks to make sure that we have the same expectations

of our students across the district.

Excerpts....
Participants on school related trips are subject to all school district rules and policies

while on that trip. Overnight stays will be subject to strict rules and expectations with
serious consequences for violations. Any violation of travel rules/expectations may
result in suspension from the activity and additional consequences for violation of
general school rules.

Expectations

1.

2.
3.

o

8.
9.

Represent his/her school well with high levels of musicianship & adult-like
behavior.

Students must be in groups of a minimum of three at all times.

Follow rules: If in doubt, don’t “just do it” - ASK first. If your teachers/parents
were standing next to you, would you still do it? What does your gut feeling tell
you?

Be alert to changes to schedules

Stay with assigned rooms, bus, bus/plane seats, unless permission is granted by
directors and others in authoritative positions.

Speak respectfully to all adult leaders & fellow travelers.

Follow policies set forth by the professional bus driver, pilots, flight attendants,
etc.

Enter buses by giving your last name to the individual taking attendance.
Students may not be on buses without adult supervision. Exceptions may be for
“on-and-off” trips to load or grab items left behind.

10. Stay in bus/plane seats at all stops until released by the directors, chaperones, or

other persons in authoritative positions.

11. Be at assigned locations, on time & stay with a group at all times. Required

number of students in a group is generally 3 but will be stated for each particular
situation.

page 7 of 8




12.0nly bring a “personal audio” device with headphones if you choose to listen to
music.

13.Be in your assigned room at designated times. At night, stay in the room & turn
lights out.

14.Do not smoke, drink alcohol, take illegal drugs, etc. Prescription AND
non-prescription medication may only be taken following school policy, which
requires a school permission form filled out by a doctor (get one from the nurses
office)

15. Refrain from “emotional activity” also known as PDA (public displays of affection).

16.Clean up after yourself on the bus and in other areas used near you such as
hotel rooms and gyms.

17.Spend your money wisely, considering the needs of the entire trip (meals that is
at the expense of the students, souvenirs, etc)

18. Be responsible for your instrument, uniform, and personal belongings throughout
the trip, ALL with labels.

Hotel Guidelines
1. Students will ONLY be in the room that was assigned to them. Boys will NEVER

be in a girls room and girls will NEVER be in a boys room.
2. Outgoing phone calls, pay TV movies, & other incidental charges will not be
accessible to the room. Please do not access them if they are accidentally

available.
a. Any charges to the room will be the responsibility of those in the room and

they will need to be explained to the directors.
3. Please keep in mind that we are among many paying customers in the hotel.

CLOSING

We would again like to thank you for your consideration in approving this proposal. Along with
our students and families, we are excited to begin returning to “normal” activities rather than
canceling them. We are all understanding these activities will likely include Covid safety
protocols as directed by state, regional, and district health authorities in addition to vendors
used while on this trip. Again, we are incredibly excited to be in a position to return to
experiences that broaden and enrich our students’ lives through musical/artistic activities, allow
them to experience new locations, travel processes, budgeting, time management, patience,
grace and quite frankly, put huge smiles on their faces!

Please let us know if you have any additional questions, or need elaboration on any of the
details presented.

With Appreciation,

Mt. Spokane High School Performing Arts Directors
page 8 of 8




MEAD SCHOOL DISTRICT

Board Meeting of June 27, 2022
New Business VILD.

Agenda Item: Athletic Participation Fees (2022-2023)

Background:

For the past twelve school years the board has approved participation
fees for students participating in extra-curricular athletics. To date,
participation fees have received board approval annually. A copy of the
proposed Participation Fee Plan, which includes no increase in fees, is

attached.

Fiscal Impact:
In 2021/2022 approximately $66,000 in participation fees was collected.
It is expected a similar amount will be collected in the 2022/23 school

year.
Staffing Implications:

Participation fees are used to help maintain extra-curricular athletic
programes.

Other Considerations:
None

Recommendation:
Approval of participation fees for 2022-2023 is recommended.

Attachment: 2022-2023 Participation Fee Plan




2022-2023 Participation Fee Plan

. Participation Fee Schedule:
e $35.00 Middle School
e $45.00 High School

. Frequency of Payment:
e Students are assessed a one-time, non-refundable, fee per academic school year
regardless of the number of designated activities in which he/she participates.

. Activities that Apply:

e Students who participate in activities that require an eligibility packet to be filled
out and turned in before they can participate (i.e. cheerleading, sports, dance/drill,
etc.).

e The fee does not apply to clubs, band, choir, orchestra, debate, etc.

. The principal at each school will designate the person(s) needed to track and collect the
fees, as well as designate someone to deposit funds appropriately using the correct district

revenue account code.

. Students need to pay their designated fee before participation. The fee is non-refundable
unless a student is cut from a team and it is the only sport or activity he/she participates in
during the school year. Note: It is not considered “being cut” from a sport if the student
decides to quit because they made the “C” or “JV” team.

Students who are eligible for Free or Reduced Lunch will have their participation fee
waived.
o Parents must complete a Consent to Share Child Nutrition Program Eligibility
Information form for fees to be waived.
e For fall sports the previous year’s F/R Lunch List will be used to determine
eligibility.
e Unless alternate arrangements are made, students who are eligible for F/R Lunch
for the first time will pay the full participation fee and be reimbursed once their
status is verified.




MEAD SCHOOL DISTRICT

Board Meeting of June 27, 2022

New Business

Agenda Item:

Background:

Recommendation:

VILE.

Contract/Bargaining Agreement
1135 MT (Bus Drivers)

1135 MT (Bus Drivers) and the Mead School District have reached
a tentative one-year contract agreement (September 1, 2022 -
August 31, 2023). The association has ratified this tentative

agreement.

A summary of contract changes, including a cost estimate where
appropriate, is attached. Regarding salary, the 2022/2023 salary
schedule will include the IPD plus step adjustments to provide for
consistency in step increases.

Approval of the one-year tentative collective bargaining agreement
between 1135 MT (Bus Drivers) and the Mead School District is

recommended.




1135 MT (Bus Driver) CONTRACT CHANGES 2022-2023 - Board Summary

Changes impacting Budget
> Salary Increase: IPD and step adjustments for consistent increases between steps.

Estimated Cost for 2022/23= $176,000

Substitute Wage Change: Substitutes will be paid on a graduating wage scale based upon
amount of days worked within the previous school year. Estimated Cost $10,000-$12,000

Itinerant Driver: The District will hire four-hour drivers minimum of 4 hours per day for
the school year to be assigned to any available am and pm route on any given day These
hiring measures were designed to help with the current sub/driver shortage situation.
(Anticipate Hiring from current sub pool). Estimated cost of: $10,000

Cost Neutral Changes

>

Seniority Date: Seniority will now begin at the point of hire as an itinerant as opposed to the
90 day worked.

Evaluation Period for contract changes: Added an evaluation period to be utilized for
changes to routes to stabilize the administration of changes to employee pay.

Pre/Post Trip Language: Rolled in 45 minutes previously provided through an MOU with
specific guidelines for using the time allotted for pre and post trips.

Displacement Language: Provided clarifying language for the process for when drivers are
displaced due to loss of route.

Employee Recall Language: Clarified expectations for employees around recalls. Brought
language into alignment with other bargaining agreements.

Association Related Language: Updated association language to ensure compliance with
Janus Decision.

Duration: 1 year (2022-2023)




MEAD SCHOOL DISTRICT

Board Meeting of June 27, 2022

New Business

Agenda Item:

Background:

Fiscal Impact:

Staffing Implications:

Other Considerations:

Recommendation:

Enclosure:

Award for Caps & Gowns 2022/2023

Mead School District requested bid
proposals for Caps & Gowns and related
items including announcements, thank you
notes and tassels for Mt. Spokane & Mead
High Schools. One vendors submitted a bid
on April 29, 2022 for the 22/23 school year.
Jostens was the low cost vendor and can
meet the needs of the district.

Please see attached financial spreadsheet
summarizing the bid.

None.

None

It is recommended that the Caps & Gowns
Bid be awarded to Jostens for the 2022/23
school year with four consecutive one-year
renewal options.

Bid Recap Sheet 2022/2023




GRADUATION CAPS & GO
APRIL 22, 2022

JOSTENS
FACTORS: WEIGHT
PRICE 30 30
QUALITY 25 25
SERVICE 15 15
PREVIOUS WORK EXPERIENCE 15 18
REFERENCES 15 15
TOTAL 100 100
MT SPOKANE PARTNERSHIP PRIVILEGES
School Note Cards/Stationary $640.00
Athletic Certificates $225.00
Diplomas $3,920.00
Calendars $55.00
Wildcat Statue $300.00
SUB TOTAL $5,140.00
MEAD H.S. PARTNERSHIP PRIVILEGES
School Note Cards/Stationary $855.00
Athletic Certificates $180.00
Dipiomas $4,759.00
Calendars $55.00
Panther Statue $300.00
Faculty Gowns $480.00
SUB TOTAL $6,629.00
TOTAL BACK TO SCHOOLS $11,769.00
GRADUATION PRICING
Cap & Gown Unit + Souvenir Tassel $30.00
Announcements (25) $36.25
Personal Name Cards - Flat Print $17.00
Thank You Notes (25) $14.75
Envelope Seals (50) $14.50
Handling $10.95
TOTAL EXPENSES $123.45
TOTAL COSTS FOR STUDENTS 750 $92,587.50

TOTAL WITH PARTNERSHIP PRIVILEGES $80,818.50




MEAD SCHOOL DISTRICT

Board Meeting of June 27, 2022

New Business

Agenda Item:

Background:

Fiscal Impact:

Staffing Implications:

Other Considerations:

Recommendation:

Enclosure:

Award for Photography 2022/2023

Mead School District requested bid
proposals for Photography Services and
related items including individual student
pictures, formal and informal dance
pictures, extracurricular pictures and
graduation pictures for Mt. Spokane & Mead
High Schools. Two vendors submitted a bid
on April 29, 2022, Dorians Studio and
Lifetouch Studio. Dorian Studio was the low
cost vendor that best meets the needs of

the District.

Please see attached financial spreadsheet
summarizing the bid.

None.

None

It is recommended that the Photography
Bid be awarded to Dorians Studio for the

2022/23 school year with four consecutive
one-year renewal options.

Bid Recap Sheet 2022/2023




PHOTOGRAPHY SERVICES

May 02, 2022
LIFE
DORIANS TOUCH

FACTORS: WEIGHT
PRICE 30 30 29
QUALITY 25 25 25
SERVICE 15 15 15
PREVIOUS WORK EXPERIENCE 15 15 5
REFERENCES 15 15 15
TOTAL 100 100 89
Premium Package $55.00 $60.00
Plus Package $44.00 $45.00
Standard $33.00 $30.00
Basic Package $12.00 $15.00

Total All Packages $144.00 $150.00




MEAD SCHOOL DISTRICT

Board Meeting of June 27, 2022

New Business

Agenda Item:

Background:

Fiscal Impact:

Staffing Implications:

Other Considerations:

Recommendation:

Enclosure:

2022/2023 K-5 School Supplies

Mead School District requested bid
proposals for K-5 basic education
classroom supplies such as glue sticks,
crayons, pencils, erasers etc. Four vendors
submitted bids on June 10, 2022 for the
22/23 school year. EPI was the low cost
vendor and can meet the districts delivery
requests August 2022.

The overall pricing is consistent with the
initial budget for these products.

None.

None

It is recommended that the School Supplies
Bid be awarded to EPI (Educational Products
Inc) for 2022/23 school year.

Bid Recap Sheet 2022/2023



TezEvzots

— || Jeeeeteers - _ L - -
I
aimoeynuew wouy Apoanp paddiys sway| - | - T T 1 - - o
SPZev'lS 560§ va| - I | -
9£°80.'S$ 65°Z$ v3 | _ - - -
sgm is.,m_ - 00°0% SC'168°LES  [SL'ES 9Nd| N 1251 | |painy moueN -
96'8V8°L$ 9£°0$ 9€'619'Z$ 1508 | v3 ¥022Z PaINy apIm - .
.86'808'Z$ 62'1$ e1'se'es SS'1$ va _ - :$400qaJON uonnsodwo)
SP'80'0LS |6£°T$ $8°€58'91$  |18'€$ ¥Z Mod| | 9josyoed|  |gll¢ j2ed g - 810j09 paplossy Ue)ybIYBIH puelg aidseys
60'65¥'6$ 6103 I / | |80°v08‘6$ 88'0$ v3 | 9eLS 10346YB1H MmolloA pueig aidieys
19€°22¢°98 25°0$ 1 v3 _|v9zes‘ss £2°0$ v3 8.1g | 0 gpueig 8AjEUId)|Y JO ZO g aN|9 SIW(T
cS16L8 (2108 v3 £0°825°1$ €208 | zZLx08 vZjo sioed |gGev yoed pg - sjidusg paiojo) ejokesd
69'252'128  |66'1$ . v3] | [1se0cs |61°0% 2l Md 5 _ (54911 1 Auupys - siaxuey odxg
187298v1$  ezes 0 | va SviEL'ves ve'S$ | ZENd| - | |seLzh 3pIm ‘aseis AIp - suaxey odx3|
eryvo'sly ezes 00 | va vTsiv'zes zlss ZiNd _ 9659 . suases] |Jead Muid
i¥'9e6'vS (1208 val | |pLSSELIS (vLLS ¥Z ld Z1 jo saxog | 1€601 Z# - Slioued pauadieysaid ‘eBosapuoaly
$8'985'PL$  [S8°0% w3 £2'6.E'L$ €r'0$ v3 Z1 jo syoed iy (12 21) Auupis ‘siqeysem “10]09 - siaxely ejokels
N_‘ JO s)joed hwwm Auu N_.v opIMm .O_szwﬂs .._O_Oo ~ SUEeN m_0>m._0v
=01 _ ®dud wun| 1oL pud | wn|  (pzoswoed|  [1we || N0 4z - suokeu) ejoheid
$.10NA0¥d TOOHIS AINVIAd sanddns _._oo=ow 3avosvo 19121 20 1" - SY21§ anj9 9)dind suowigz
1
—_ - ——— — — __ — — ———— t — = —t - — = —
|rrzvvotts B 0Z'STE'ETTS - B - L ] - - B - _
i - 1 | . L. — = 1 } . S — .
1 | I N I _ — 1 - - R
B _evzoets  zoks | va| |eveso'zs [sgu$ v3 — ] ___|panymoueN - B
¥8'sLL'zs 9608 V3| |zeiee’zs  e€i$ o val _¥0zz | panyepm
_ B - 1 - va| L &@moaoz uopnsodwoyn
_|00°220%8  [80°L$ ss| |s2'66€6$ 6v°2$ aq 9josaded  gu/e | yded 9- 81003 papossy “ayBlybiy puesg aidieyg
25'.2627¢  |18°0$ v3a| |8z'I8L'i$  gzo$ 0 oiq] - leels ~ 183yByyBiH mojeA pueiq sidieyg|
88°0s8'k$  |58°0$ ss| |obZry'vs ¥0'Z$ vaf, 8.1 | 20§ pueig 3AjEUIS)Y 40 ZO g aN|S siawg
ST'S0L‘LLS  |sg2zd va| |ogioe'ss [z6L$ val vziosided|  scep _ %oed pZ - sjouad paiojo ejohesy
LP2S2LLS [ 1L0°LS _ v3| |vr'ese’es p80s v3 I | h41%% _ - fuupis - siaxsely odx3
o veese'vis (8L1$ v3| |00'89LZLS  [001S | va| - 89121 Il _OpIm ‘aseia Aip - susysey odx3
- 08'628$ 15008 ss| |zs'1628 ZLos | _v3 ) . |eess | | _ siesei3 pead yuid
11'560'2$ 6108 .~ v3| |es296°k$  8L0$ _ o v3| Z1 4o soxog _Tnmop _ Z# - siouad pouadieysaid ‘eBosopuoaiy
o vZ's68'LL8  96'e$ | va| |eeoss ‘G1$  |es | v3 2Lio SYed 6y | (9.z)) Auupis ‘ajqeysem 10j0s - sJalel ejohei)
o ve'Lv9lzs |z8'es _v3| [s0°L9g'8LS  vZes _v3|l  [zijosyoeq 299 T(P zI) opim ‘aiqeysem ojoo - ssoe ejokein
e |seerv'ss |s8'0$ V3| |LLveves (18 va #2 40 sxyoed L JuNoo 4z - suohei ejohkes
L |svseL'sis [s1u$ val |00'L9L°LLS  [00°1$ | v3 ey 20 22’ - s¥24g @nio ojding siswg
! _
..... B leloL | eoug Hun moL  dud |, up| _  ALILNVND| «.._L o a
..... ALTv103dS JO0HOS $.19Na0¥d Id3 ~ VI0L % 2202I04L/9

saiga >.._n_n_Dﬂ AOOHNS £20717707




%LL'6
TI820SYT §
889'€S0'ST S

sainupuadx3 paiadpng Jo ¥

aduejeg pun4 juatin)

aduejeg pun4 Suiuui8ag
duejeg pun4

(££8°SYS) $ (6T€9TZ’L) ¢

duejeq pun4 uj adueyd 19N

VYA 74
%9'LL

- S

CrE'69T0TT
9v'€T9'60T

BTLEEV'SYT §
60V LITIVT §

Spun4 Jay1o wouiy/(01) siajsues|

sasn Sudueul4 J9Y)Q 13 sainypuadxy
$324n0§ SuueUl JBYIQ 13 SBNUDADY
sain}puadxy )3 sanuaAay

%t7L°0

STvL

S1'8ST°0T

{eNPVY alA

00'%80°0T
(1euiduio)

193png |enuuy

zzoz/1e/s Jo se
Alewwng snyeys 198png
PLISIQ [ooYyds peay

Juawijosuy



00'86% Tv p21eBpng zz/1Z
yi'e6e [e30]
L€895 |02 [0S'vT [L€TeS S00ET SH auexods ‘1
0z'ss [os'8  [o02T |oZvE 43 BEE9T 190Y25 ySiH peapy
L¥'95 |00'0T (008  |i¥'sE 1T
05'¥9 |00T |00'E  |0509 ot £5'89€ {eloL
09'1S |00 [0ST [oT'iv 6 (YAZ S pueySiH
ST°8ST0T 1e10} pueig 00°6€ 00°6€ 8 $8'201 apisulelunoly|
00'2LE  Wels Buuuny padpng zz/tz £T9T siooq uadg 09°tv 09°vY L 86°LZT poomyLion
01874 Hes duuuny 0925 09°ZS 9 jeuonedon
9./l |vs'z9z [oozpl [009EE 1204 85'958'6 1e101 ZT-N 0Z'9€ 0Z'9¢ S
9ty |[68°9E 00’8  |oo8¥ dd3N - 3N 3A1] 0S'9TT'E Z1-6 S3peso 0T'SE 0z'SE ¥ 18 VET €61
¥3'9 [99'LZL |00'89 |00°1G% aueyods 199591 8- S3peID 0z [(T&43 € JH Q3L3 OHZT-2|  JH9N
96’9  [20'60L [00'LL [o0°Z€L 100U2S YBIH pea ST'SSS'T 9-G S3peIn 08’1 08'1€ z diglL
ETE 3l OH H aunf - 12qoP0 0T€2L ¥ apein Ov'LE Ov'LE 1
J0A | J0A Auo | oL uels Sujuuny 18'85TT €-1 Sapes 091 09°1€ Y 9T 9% Lt
-UoN | a8ay0) 60°9%9 uspediapuly L4 WIOLBLI SHSWELISHN| 3d 3V 90A  20p AGN JH
ddan
Ayvoy-Aewng 314 DNVITIV NOWLYNGYY 00'8T  payadpng zz/17
85'958°6 a8a||0) 03 Aemaien 1 si00q uadg sepnpuy,,
\1 4/
| LETTS | PR EcTSEl [0Sv8ST |00'T9 [€8'SSL [SB'YBL [L5°SGL [00'SIE [00'S9E [LS6Tv |00'Scy |00 V6E |006Er 0026y |96°622 00'2€v |0L'08v | 2T0Z/91230L |
0LYE 62°€L7  |EVESE ZT 3pesn
|Lt'8€E 15767  |€8°0SE 1T apess
0509 | LE068_ |09'b2y 0t 9pess
% 0T Ly 90°S6€  |¥9'SSY 69pesp
looeE | Z9'vST |vS'LST |66°Z0C 8 3peig
{09 vy | 09'64Z [€S'TLT |62°S9T L3peiy
109'28 | 19'22T |BL VST |62°9VC 9apesy
lozog | 00'1T S opeln
0T°GE | 00'€ET 0079 J00'6S [00'99 [00'6L [00°€9 [00'8Z [00°88 |00°ZZ |00'0Z |00°E8 ¥ spesy
102TE | 006 0099 0069 [00°'ZZ [00'BZ |00°'ZZ |00'T6 |GO'T6 |00'6Z |00'BZ |00SE € apeig
08'TE | 00'ET 00'vS |00CS [00'¥9 |00¥9 [00°6S |00'ZL |00'8Z |00'z¥ |000Z |00z T 3pein
OF'LE | 00T 0069 |00'9L |00'S9 [00°£9 [00'T9 [00°8¢ [0O'BL |Lv'€r |00'69 |00TZ T apesn
109°TE | 00'S 0085 [00'8S |00°0Z/ [00'6S [00°09 |0009 [00'T9 |6v'8E |00°99 00'6L Aeq (i1 3]
4 w
1 3 | = g a s |3 |z |8 | 3|8 |5 |8 g | & | g | B 2
P £ g T < g | % 2 | m z < | < g = g g | @ g
Sl 3 | » 3 L g 2 g | = 3 & 3 = = 3 pd B 2
=2 N © o =% a 3 m 2 m [+% m m 3 m
: @ 8 = 2 S = ) o B 2 3 3
; -4 [ > Dm. W © 3 3 m 3
B B s |7 3
>
=
zz0z ‘T aung

woday Juswijoiuy 314




Headcount Enrollment
6/1/2022

NN AR P A= e R ad
3|2(B| %R |R|R(8|8(8(8| 2| = (5|5
ZZoz dunrjelol 1 o|e
i | el
~<ao] |o
alA[m[&| |B
Y1y aueyods 3N -
QWM g
2938 |8
{ooyds YSiH peal ]
NN MWD O || [11]
mno|jonim|m|wn| < <t |Oon|<r :’D’
Jels Yuon/ddan
n|o|m o |~ Ll
NEE ]
PIPPINI 3pisulelunoA) N B Y ~
OImN 0
NN -]
3|PPIN POOMUYLION e FeN ~
g
o o -l
3|PPIN puejy3iH N[N N ~ g ©
[t
IR RS n O =) o0
||| ofwolin v g U = ~
o < I
|
w33 auyhys 3 g
2
8 =
<
oD n ™~ wn
t|~|wn|ofn|n © 8 2y o o«
wa|3s|iH Yyonys| R EER -
5
nlo = m
W33 MIIA SMteld| < g T n
A|G|S|RIRIR 9 2
L
wajg Aempin - < 3 23495 ﬁ
[=4
Ol Nm| < <
ARV Ve R B (V-0 o) (-]
waj3 a8piy mopeain ™
SEHEEEE 2
waj3 jjamaeq e
HNEEEE 3
wa|3 uaaldiang <
[ A K<l IS in
% g T NN o
Wwa|3 IPISHDILD) o~
QOO T g
W OIS0 m
wa|3 13q|oJ =
=N NN~ -l
NS00 00j00| 00 o0
waj3 poomiudig <

K Full Day
Grade 1
Grade 2
Grade 3
Grade 4
Grade 5

Total 6/2022

Grade 6
Grade 7
Grade 8
Grade 9
Grade 10
Grade 11
Grade 12



[ 0% | 01222’ v11s [ 29v°6€9'v68 | 8€9°Z85°0L§ | L0O'S0Z ZLIS | €90°L06'LS [ 8¥5'552°96% | 066°156'€L$ | renpv [ejoL
98t'90Z'vL 0 0 AvNLoY
€e.'208'01 X © oewnsy

2202/LE/8

98’902 vL 0 0 vNLOY
€g.'z08'01: . ‘ajeusy

2202/L6/2

98¥'90Z°v) 0 VNLOY
£22208°01 ‘opeunsy

2202/0€/9

981'902°v} YZL'TL8'TL £Z1°809'01L 200'v92'7 8ZL'685'LL 566261 1£0°016'6 169'98%°L YNLOY
£2.°208°0) S o oA ‘oJewWSg

220Z/L6/5

z88'asy'si £l2'srr'zl 0i6°sEv ol £0£'600°Z 6vL'ee8’sl 61020l §50'092°¢1 S19°)iv'0 YNLOV
£2.'208°04 , g Lo e ‘ojeulsy

2202/08/t

s¥eiooL‘s 195°¢68°LL z9z'czo’ol 662°042°1 616'9€£'Z1 862262 SiV'8L0°LL LP1°996 YNLOVY
€2.'208'0f ‘ . _ K o - ‘ojeusy

gc0z/Lee

886°999°2 ov66€5°ZL £60'599°01 Lve'vis‘) ££2'602'L1 682'Z8 TEL'SLO'LL 2ST'YS IIVNLOY
£2.°208°01 o i . . aelunsy

2202/82/2

v61°286'8 ¥££'029°21 Y9zZ'vLv'01 LLO‘96L°Z 9085801 69°LLL 126°099°01 6812z IYNLOY
£2.°208°04 : : : ‘ajewsg

2202/LE/1L

€2L'208°0L veL'oes'LL 80L°LIS 0L ¥29'620°L y1- 2 TR 29896 zLZe0‘sL 88'ss YNLOY
v Ce , ‘ -ejeuyys3

L20Z/1LE2L

000'SZLL) v2S'VLS°LL zz0°25b 01 266'290°1L glz'018'e LpS'6L9 888'LLY L 8€2'858 VNLOY
i m ‘ajeusg

L202/08/1L 1L

Log‘eLg‘sl PeZPLL'YL TPo'9sv'oL T¥9'L89°e 81'628°c) £ro'ZhL LLYOPZ'0L v06‘sti'e IVNLOY
. g B ) : : ..QmE.amm

L202/1E/04

191°851L'v) ovs‘ov9o‘Ll Zro‘sivol 86Z°2ZZ°) 8152452} £22°182 062°280°Z) $06'60Z TvNLOY
B D 2 E gp : o e “ P :sjewpey

L202/0€/6
066'v22'CL 1202/1/6 Yysed Bujuuibeg

JONYIvE NVYO1  |ONNA ¥3HLO|LNINISHNESIA| TIONMAVS J19VAVYd INPEEREN JNNIAZY | LNIWNOLLMOCY |SNOILOTTIOD| HINOW

ANINLSIANI | ANNF-HTLNI | HI4SNVHL WLOL SINNOJOY WLOL Y¥3IHLO 31VIS XvL
® HSYD
ZZ0Z ‘1€ LSNONV OL 120Z ‘L ¥38W3LdIS
TINAIHIS MO HSVD
aNnd vy¥aNIo

PSe# LOIMLSIA TOO0HDS avain




o

[AATA ] le-0za 0z-610

865'SvS'y
966'986'y

108'e48'

€£€'689°

0L9°L90'8

960°€60'L L

L16'652'01

LL1'PP0'LL

T6Y'GLE'TL

aouejeg pund paubissy ssa
aouejeg yseo JaN Jo uosiedwo) Jeaj-0}-1ea pasiAay

000°000'C

000°000'%

000°000°9

000'000°8

000°000°01

000°000°Z}

000°'000°vL




Mead School District No 354

Budget Status Report

Fiscal Year 2021-22
May 01, 2022 through May 31, 2022

[ include Pre Encumbrance
A. Revenue
1000 Loca! Taxes (+)
2000 Local Support Nontax (+)
3000 State, General Purpose (+)
4000 State, Special Purpose (+)
5000 Federal, General Purpose (+)
6000 Federal, Special Purpose (+)
7000 Revenues Fr Oth Sch Dist (+)
8000 Other Agencies & Associates (+)
8000 Other Financing Sources (+)
TOTAL Revenue
B. Expenses
00 Regular [nstruction (-)
10 Federal Stimulus (-)
20 Special Ed Instruction (-)
30 Vocational Ed Instruction (-)
40 Skills Center Instruction (-)
50 & 60 Compensatory Ed Instruction (=)
70 Other Instructional Programs (-)
80 Community Services (-)
90 Support Services (-)
TOTAL Expenses
C. Other Fin Uses Trans Out
D. Other Fin Uses

E. EXCESS OF REVENUES/OTHER FIN. SOURCES
OVER(UNDER) EXP/OTHER FIN USES (A-B-C-D)

F. TOTAL BEGINNING FUND BALANCES

G. GI/L 898 PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (+*OR-}
H. TOTAL ENDING FUND BALANCE (E+F+/-G)
I. ENDING FUND BALANCE ACCOUNTS

G/L 810 Restricted for Other ltems (-)

G/L 821 Restricted for CO of Restricted Rev (-)
G/L 828 Restricted for CO of F/S Rev (-)

G/L 830 Restricted for Debt Service (-)

GIL 835 Restricted For Arbitrage Rebate (-)
G/L 840 Nonspnd FB - Inventory & Prepaid (-)
G/L 870 Committed to Other Purposes (-)

GIL 875 Assigned to Contingencies (-)

G/L 888 Assigned to Other Purposes (-)

G/L 891 Unassigned to Minimum FB Policy (-)
G/L 898 PY Corrections or Restatements (-)
G/L 890 Unassigned Fund Balance (H - 1)
TOTALS

General Fund

ANNUAL  ACTUALFOR  ACTUAL
BUDGET DATERANGE FORYEAR ENCUMB  BALANCE % USED
13,361,390.00 1,486,696.87 13,551,990.04 (190,600.04) 101.4%
1,540,215.00 166,096.28 1,129,893.65 410,880.12 73.3%
94,760,713.00 5,575,613.12 69,076,680.76 25,684,032.24 72.9%
20,872,949.00 1,088,334.32 14,985,585.35 5,887,363.65 71.8%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
10,602,642.00 3,246,089.13 10,439,224.30 163,417.70 98.5%
75,000.00 1,425.00 26,026.02 48,973.98 34.7%
4,500.00 0.00 0.00 4,500.00 0.0%
0.00 0.00 414,064.00 (414,064.00) 0.0%
141,217,409.00 11,564,254.72  109,623,464.12 31,594,503.65  77.6%
84,338,650.00 7,507,926.19 63,615,731.85 20,573,811.33 149,106.82 99.8%
1,721,720.00 107,611.55 1,274,993.53 151,086.36 295,640.11 82.8%
19,862,563.00 1,670,640.82 14,827,000.47 4,743,356.43 292,206.10 98.5%
5,664,711.00 396,025.55 3,617,618.69 1,369,974.75 677,117.56 88.0%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5,280,010.00 446,669.35 3,669,108.88 1,193,729.81 417,171.31 92.1%
408,629.00 7,486.69 46,327.84 19,104.00 343,197.16 16.0%
284,647.00 15,144.67 187,536.59 41,545.28 55,565.13 80.5%
30,872,798.00 2,751,201.59 22,931,023.74 5,125,301.11 2,816,473.15 90.9%
12,902,706.41 33,217,909.07  5046,477.34  96.6%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00  0.0%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 000  0.0%
(7,216,319.00) (1,338451.69)  (545,877.47) 26,548,026.31 (19.0%)
0.00 15,053,688.35
XXX 0.00 110,169,342
(7,216,319.00) usozgtoss | = 74.22%
148,433,728
0.00 0.00
0.00 446,352.19
0.00 143,367.88
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 631,261.07
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 3,168,990.48
0.00 10,663,716.73
0.00 0.00
(7.216,319.00) (545,877.47)
(7,216,319.00) 14,507,810.88




Mead School District No 354

Budget Status Report

Fiscal Year 2021-22
May 01, 2022 through May 31, 2022

Capital Projects Fund

ANNUAL ACTUAL FOR ACTUAL

D Include Pre Encumbrance BUDGET DATE RANGE FOR YEAR ENCUMB BALANCE % USED
A. Revenue
1000 Local Taxes (+) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2000 Local Support Nontax (+) 225,000.00 6,678.37 108,487.94 116,512.06 48.2%
3000 State, General Purpose (+) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4000 State, Special Purpose (+) 0.00 3,445.30 44,855.11 (44,855.11) 0.0%
5000 Federal. General Purpose (+) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
6000 Federal, Special Purpose (+) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
7000 Revenues Fr Oth Sch Districts (+) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
8000 Other Agencies & Associates (+) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
9000 Other Financing Sources (+) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL Revenue 225,000.00 10,123.67 153,343.05 71,656.95 68.2%
B. Expenses
10 Sites (-) ' 2,400,000.00 0.00 10,046.36 0.00 2,389,953.64 0.4%
20 Buildings (-) 5,730,000.00 1,346.56 2,691,565.09 45,385,432.55 (42,346,987.64)  839.0%
30 Equipment (-) 1,524,000.00 93,172.03 1,197,992.67 347,800.97 (21,793.64) 101.4%
40 Energy (-) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
50 Sale and Lease Expenditures (-) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
60 Bond/Levy Issuance (-) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
90 Debt (-) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL Expenses 9,654,000.00 94,518.59 3,899,594.12 45,733,233.52 (39,978,827.64) 514.1%
C. Other Fin Uses Trans Out 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
D. Other Fin Uses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
E. EXCESS OF REVENUES/OTHER FIN. SOURCES

OVER(UNDER) EXP/OTHER FIN USES (A-B-C-D) (9,429,000.00) (84,394.92)  (3,746,251.07) 40,050,484.59 (446.0%)

F. TOTAL BEGINNING FUND BALANCES
G. G/L 898 PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (+OR-)
H. TOTAL ENDING FUND BALANCE (E+F+/-G)

I. ENDING FUND BALANCE ACCOUNTS
G/L 810 Restricted For Other items (-)

G/L 830 Restricted For Debt Service (-)

GIL 835 Restricted For Arbitrage Rebate (-}

G/L 861 Restricted From Bond Proceeds (H-l)
G/L 863 Restricted From State Proceeds (H-)
GIL 870 Committed to Other Purposes (-)

GI/L 889 Assigned to Fund Purposes (H-l)

G/l 890 Unassigned Fund Balance (H - 1)
TOTALS

10,097,151.00
20000¢X
668,151.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
(9,654,000.00}
0.00

0.00
10,322,151.00
0.00
668,151.00

13,030,822.04
0.00
9,284,570.97

0.00

0.00

0.00
7.317,212.05
44,855.11
0.00
1,922,503.81
0.00
9,284,570.97




Mead School District No 354

Budget Status Report

Fiscal Year 2021-22
May 01, 2022 through May 31, 2022

[ Include Pre Encumbrance
A. Revenue
1000 Local Taxes (+)
2000 Local Support Nontax (+)
3000 State, General Purpose (+)
5000 Federal, General Purpose (+)
6000 Federal, Special Purpose (+)
9000 Other Financing Sources (+)
TOTAL Revenue

B. Expenses
Matured Bond Expenditures (-}

Interest on Bonds (-)

Interest on Interfund Loan (-)

Bond Transfer Fees (-)

TOTAL Expenses

C. Other Fin Uses Trans Out
D. Other Fin Uses

E. EXCESS OF REVENUES/OTHER FIN. SOURCES
OVER(UNDER) EXP/OTHER FIN USES (A-B-C-D)

F. TOTAL BEGINNING FUND BALANCES
G. G/L 898 PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (+OR-)
H. TOTAL ENDING FUND BALANCE (E+F+-G})

I. ENDING FUND BALANCE ACCOUNTS
G/L 810 Restricted For Other ltems (-)

G/L 835 Restricted For Arbitrage Rebate (-)

G/L. 870 Committed to Other Purposes {-)

GIL 889 Assigned to Fund Purposes (-}

G/l 890 Unassigned Fund Balance {-)

G/L 830 Restricted For Debt Service (H - 1)

TOTALS

Debt Service Fund

ANNUAL ACTUAL FOR ACTUAL
BUDGET DATE RANGE FOR YEAR ENCUMB BALANCE % USED
0.00 1,231,870.86 13,083,166.18 (13,083,166.18) 0.0%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
0.00 1,231,870.86 13,083,166.18 (13,083,166.18) 0.0%
0.00 0.00 5,040,000.00 0.00 (5,040,000.00) 0.0%
0.00 0.00 3,986,231.25 0.00 (3,986,231.25) 0.0%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
0.00 0.00 1,626.58 0.00 (1,626.58) 0.0%
0.00 0.00 9,027,857.83 0.00 (9,027,857.83) 0.0%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
0.00 1,231,870.86 4,055,308.35 (4,055,308.35) 0.0%
0.00 3,533,185.86
KKK 0.00
0.00 7,588,494.21
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 7,588,494.21
0.00 7,588,494.21




Mead School District No 354

Budget Status Report

Fiscal Year 2021-22
May 01, 2022 through May 31, 2022

Associated Student Body Fund

ANNUAL  ACTUALFOR  ACTUAL
[ Inciude Pre Encumbrance BUDGET DATE RANGE FOR YEAR ENCUMB BALANCE % USED
A. Revenue
1000 General Student Body (+) 865,194.00 31,161.61 399,736.11 465,477.89 46.2%
2000 Athletics (+) 490,837.00 67,046.19 355,605.15 135,306.85 72.4%
3000 Classes (+) 914,200.00 51,028.05 642,228.45 271,971.55 70.3%
4000 Clubs (+) 139,800.00 6,627.22 51,413.47 88,386.53 36.8%
6000 Private Moneys (+) 161,200.00 6,933.26 18,898.35 142,301.65 11.7%
TOTAL Revenue 2,571,231.00 162,796.33 1,467,881.53 1,103,444.47 57.1%
B. Expenses
1000 General Student Body (-) 654,155.00 12,381.98 151,627.93 2,485.72 500,041.35 23.6%
2000 Athletics (-) 768,500.00 48,301.98 400,563.76 67,954.11 299,982.13 61.0%
3000 Classes (-) 1,012,944.00 21,181.74 639,5631.53 11,820.76 361,591.71 64.3%
4000 Clubs (-) 169,314.00 10,128.37 52,528.89 135.61 116,649.50 31.1%
6000 Private Moneys (-) 167,962.00 1,911.83 10,206.87 0.00 157,755.13 6.1%
TOTAL Expenses 2,772,875.00 93,905.90 1,254,458.98 82,396.20 1,436,019.82 48.2%
C. Other Fin Uses Trans Out 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
D. Other Fin Uses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
E. EXCESS OF REVENUES/OTHER FIN. SOURCES
OVER(UNDER) EXP/OTHER FIN USES (A-B-C-D) (201,644.00) 68,890.43 213,422.55 (332,575.35) 8.9%
F. TOTAL BEGINNING FUND BALANCES 1,062,292.00 1,101,349.36
G. GI/L 898 PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (+OR-) XXX 0.00
H. TOTAL ENDING FUND BALANCE (E+F+/-G) 860,648.00 1,314,771.91
|. ENDING FUND BALANCE ACCOUNTS
G/L 810 Restricted For Other ltems (-) 0.00 0.00
G/L 840 Nonspnd FB - Invent/Prepd ltms (-} 0.00 0.00
G/L 850 Restricted For Uninsured Risks (-) 0.00 0.00
G/L 870 Committed to Other Purposes (-) 0.00 0.00
G/L 889 Assigned to Fund Purposes (-) 0.00 0.00
GIiL 890 Unassigned Fund Balance (-) 0.00 0.00
G/L 819 Restricted For Fund Purposes (H - ) 860,648.00 1,314,771.91
TOTALS 860,648.00 1,314,771.91




Mead School District No 354

Budget Status Report

Fiscal Year 2021-22
May 01, 2022 through May 31, 2022

Transportation Vehicle Fund

ANNUAL ACTUAL FOR ACTUAL
D Include Pre Encumbrance BUDGET DATE RANGE FOR YEAR ENCUMB BALANCE % USED
A. Revenue
1000 Local Taxes (+) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2000 Local Support Nontax (+) 2,500.00 25.81 20,831.41 (18,331.41)  833.3%
3000 State, General Purpose (+) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4000 State, Special Purpose (+) 590,000.00 0.00 0.00 590,000.00 0.0%
5000 Federal, General Purpose (+) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
8000 Other Agencies and Assoc. (+) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
9000 Other Financing Sources (+) 0.00 0.00 16,884.28 (16,884.28) 0.0%
TOTAL Revenue 592,500.00 25.81 37,715.69 554,784.31 6.4%
B. Expenses
Type 30 Equipment (-) 1,100,000.00 0.00 565,695.51 0.00 534,304.49 51.4%
Type 60 Bond Levy Issuance (-) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Type 90 Debt (-) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL Expenses 1,100,000.00 0.00 565,695.51 0.00 534,304.49 51.4%
C. Other Fin Uses Trans Out 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
D. Other Fin Uses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
E. EXCESS OF REVENUES/OTHER FIN. SOURCES
OVER(UNDER) EXP/OTHER FIN USES (A-B-C-D) (507,500.00) 25.81 (527,979.82) 20,479.82 (45.1%)
F. TOTAL BEGINNING FUND BALANCES 595,338.00 564,187.56
G. GI/L 898 PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (+OR-) XXX 0.00
H. TOTAL ENDING FUND BALANCE (E+F+/-G) 87,838.00 36,207.74
I. ENDING FUND BALANCE ACCOUNTS
GI/L 810 Restricted For Other ltems (-) 0.00 0.00
G/L 830 Reserved For Debt Service (-) 0.00 0.00
G/L 889 Assigned to Fund Purposes (-) 0.00 0.00
G/L 890 Unassigned Fund Balance (-) 0.00 0.00
G/L 819 Restricted For Fund Purposes (H - 1) 87,838.00 36,207.74
87,838.00 36,207.74

TOTALS



